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The provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes 297.425 through 297.555, inclusive, require that an 
independent audit of the financial records and affairs of all District fund types be completed within six 
months following the close of the fiscal year.  The auditors selected by the Board of Education, Pauly, 
Rogers and Co., P.C., have completed their audit of the basic financial statements for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2004, and their unqualified Independent Auditors’ Report is presented as the first 
component of the financial section of this report.   
 
The Single Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 require state and local 
governments that expend $500,000 or more in federal assistance in a year have a special form of audit 
conducted for that year.  For the sixteenth consecutive fiscal year, Portland Public Schools has issued a 
separate report on these requirements and the requirements of the implementing circular, and the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments, on which 
Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. have also provided various required reports.  Contained in the separately 
issued Single Audit Report are schedules of expenditures of federal awards, required reports on internal 
controls and compliance with laws and regulations. 
 
GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter 
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The 
Portland Public Schools’ MD&A can be found immediately following the Independent Auditors’ Report. 
 
Profile of the District 
 
Established in 1851, Portland Public Schools is the largest and oldest school district in the State of 
Oregon.  Located in northwestern Oregon at the confluence of the Columbia and Willamette rivers, the 
District’s boundaries are generally the same as the City of Portland.  The District covers an area over 145 
square miles and has a population in excess of 400,000 including portions of the cities of Portland (pop. 
538,544), Lake Oswego (pop. 36,085), and Milwaukie (pop. 20,638).  The District maintains 106 facilities 
with a total floor area in excess of 9.5 million square feet.   
 
Student enrollment at October 31, 2003 was 48,883.  Enrollment counts are compiled on or about the 
first of October.  An enrolled student is defined as a student who attends one or more schools or 
programs within the District.  Regardless of the number of schools or programs attended, each student is 
counted only once; the counts are unduplicated. 
 

Program Type
Number of 
Programs Enrollment

Enrollment 
Distribution

Regular Schools and Programs
Elementary Schools 59 21,841 45%
Middle Schools 17 9,848 20%
High Schools 10 12,982 26%

Total Regular Schools & Programs 86 44,671 91%
Magnet/Special Focus Programs 9 2,134 4%

Total Regular & Special Focus Programs 95 46,805 95%
Community-Based Programs 20 1,270 3%
Special Education Programs 20 462 1%
Public Charter Programs 3 346 1%
Total Programs and Enrollment 138 48,883 100%

October 2003 Portland Public Schools Student Enrollment

 
Source: PPS; Enrollment Summaries, October 2003 

  
The District is governed by a seven-member Board of Education elected by the voters of the District for 
staggered four-year terms.  The chief administrative officer of the District is the Superintendent, who is 
appointed by the Board.  The Board is accountable for all fiscal matters that significantly influence 
operations. 
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Under Oregon State law, school districts are municipal corporations empowered to provide elementary 
and secondary educational services for the children residing within its boundaries.  The District 
discharges this responsibility by building, operating, and maintaining school facilities, developing and 
maintaining approved educational programs and courses of study, including vocational programs and 
programs for special needs students, and providing for transportation and feeding of students in 
accordance with District, State, and Federal programs. This report includes all funds of the District.  The 
District has three charter schools, technically component units, which are immaterial to District operations 
and thus not included as a component units. The pass-through State School Fund amounts for these 
charter schools are included as expenditures within the instructional program of the General Fund. The 
District is not included in any other financial reporting entity. 
 
The District is required by the State of Oregon to adopt an annual budget for all funds subject to the 
requirements of Local Budget Law as outlined in Oregon Revised Statutes 294.305 through 294.520, 
inclusive.  The budget for each individual fund is a plan for the financial operations to be conducted during 
the coming fiscal year and is adopted annually, prior to July 1, by the Board of Education after certification 
by the Multnomah County Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission.  After adoption, the budget 
may be revised through procedures specified in State statute and Board policy.   
 
Service Efforts and Accomplishments 
 

• The District continues to focus on aligning its budget and its efforts with its comprehensive 
strategic plan and action plan designed to implement the strategic plan. The District’s mission is 
to support all students in achieving their very highest educational and personal potential, to 
inspire in them an enduring love for learning, and to prepare them to contribute as citizens of a 
diverse, multicultural and international community. A critical component of achieving this mission 
is to raise the educational achievement of all District students. As measured by the Oregon 
Statewide Assessments, Portland students are doing that. Over all the grades tested by the state 
in the 2003–04 school year, 70% of students met the reading/literature standards and 70% met 
the mathematics standards.  
 
Like the state as a whole, the highest percentage of District students meeting reading, math and 
science standards is at elementary school, followed by middle school and then high school. High 
school students out-perform younger students in writing, however. Compared to the state as a 
whole, District students outperform their peers in reading at grades 5 and 8, in math multiple 
choice at grades 5, 8 and 10, in writing at grades 5 and 8, and in math problem solving at grades 
5 and 8 (the only two grades for which results are available). State and district results are 
identical in grade 3 reading, grade 3 math and grade 5 science. The District under-performs the 
state as a whole in grade 3 reading (by 1%), grade 8 science (by 4%), and in grade 10 reading, 
writing and science (by 3%, 3% and 9%, respectively).  
 
At the time this message was written, final results of the Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) 
analyses had not been completed by the Oregon Department of Education. Preliminary results 
lead the District to believe that approximately the same number of schools will be identified as 
making AYP in 2003–04 as had been identified for 2002–03. In the latter school year 56 of 61 
elementary schools met AYP, 12 of 20 middle schools met AYP and no high schools met AYP. 
The final results for the 2003-04 school year are due to be released on November 23, 2004.  
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• In a show of overwhelming support for K-12 public education, the voters in Multnomah County 
approved a three-year temporary local income tax in May 2003.  During the 2003-04 school year, 
this first year of the income tax generated almost $36.5 million of new revenue for the District.  In 
accordance with the ballot measure, 70% of the income tax proceeds are divided equally on a per 
pupil basis among the eight school districts in Multnomah County.  The remaining 30% of the tax 
proceeds is targeted for County programs in senior services, public safety, and healthcare.  
County income tax proceeds represent approximately 9.6% of the General Fund revenues.  The 
District used the money to maintain a full school year, to retain over 600 teaching positions, to 
maintain class size, and to continue athletics, professional technical education, in-school 
alternative education programs, and outdoor school, among other special programs.  The ballot 
measure also created the School Efficiency and Quality Advisory Council (www.seacinfo.org) to 
provide oversight.  The County Auditor’s Office, along with the City of Portland Auditor’s Office, 
perform certain auditing procedures and issue reports to the community 
(www.multnomahschools.org).  Reports can be viewed at the web sites indicated.  The voters 
reaffirmed their support for this temporary income tax when they defeated a repeal measure in 
November 2004. 

• Three high schools, Marshall, Roosevelt and Jefferson, made plans during the 2003-04 school 
year to implement a conversion to the small learning community model in the 2004-2005 school 
year.  The purpose of these smaller learning communities is to know each student well in order to 
personalize his or her education.  This approach to high school reform is based on proven 
research regarding smaller learning communities and achievement.  The plan was successfully 
launched in September 2004. 

• The preliminary enrollment figures for the District was a 2003-04 decrease of 965.  Based on the 
number of births, modest net out-migration of students, and fairly constant proportion of school-
age children enrolling in Portland Public Schools, a decrease of 965 students indicates that there 
has probably not been a major change in the current demographic situation nor in the interest of 
most parents to enroll their children in our schools.  We anticipate that Portland Public Schools 
enrollments will decrease annually by about 400 to 800 students over the next few years.  We 
expect that – unless the situation changes greatly Portland Public Schools enrollments will level 
off at about 44,000 students by 2010.   

• On April 4, 2004, the Board of Education voted unanimously to hire Dr. Vicki L. Phillips to lead 
Portland Public Schools as its Superintendent effective August 1, 2004.  The Board’s decision 
capped a six-month recruitment effort that followed Superintendent Jim Scherzinger’s 
announcement that he would retire at the end of June 2004.  Phillips, who had been serving as 
Pennsylvania's Secretary of Education, has built a strong education reform record throughout her 
career, as a teacher, in state government, as leader of a non-profit education foundation, and as 
superintendent of a mid-sized urban school district.  

 
Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered 
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the District operates.  
 
Local economy.  Portland, known as the “City of 
Roses,” and the surrounding metropolitan area has a 
widely diversified economy.  Its centralized location and 
excellent transportation facilities have established the 
area as a major distribution point on the West Coast for 
wholesale trade and high tech exports.  Manufacturing 
accounts for a large sector (12%) of the economy.  
Neither heavy nor light manufacturing dominates the 
industry.  Durable goods such as electronics, metals, 
machinery, and lumber and wood products account for 
75% of manufacturing employment. 

Employment by Industry – June 2004   

Education, Health Services, & Hospitality 21%
Trade, Transportation, & Utilities 20%
Professional, Business & Other Services 16%
Government 14%
Manufacturing 13%
Information, Financial & Real Estate 10%
Construction & Mining 6%
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Along with the entire state, the job growth in 
the Portland metro area is predicted to be 
slower in the next 10 years than it was in the 
previous decade. However, the area’s 
projected growth rate for the period between 
2002 and

Annual Average Unemployment Rates
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 2012 is 14.6%, still greater than 
atewide projections of 13.7%.  

to 
2% for the State and 6.0% for the nation.   

rnment (+1.5%), and 
anufacturing (+1.4%). 

eral Fund dollars 
udgeted for capital needs.  Therefore, the need for another bond levy may be critical. 

t has historically 
adm  major objectives being: 

2) dity) to pay District obligations when due, while 

3) ted (yield), consistent with applicable federal and state 

4) on both the status of investments and the overall cash 

 to $2.1 million earned in fiscal year 2002-2003, 
flecting the historically low interest rates for the year. 

ial study completed as of June 30, 2004, claim 
serves for June 30, 2004 are approximately $4.8 million. 

st
 
In 2003, Portland’s average annual 
unemployment rate was 8.5%, compared 
8.
 
The local economic outlook is brightening with 
over a two percentage points drop from June 
2003’s high rate of 9.1% to June 2004’s 6.8%.  
Over the past year, construction has recorded 

one of the fastest growth rates (+2.0%) of all the broad industries, followed by gove
m
 
Long term financial planning.  The $196 million capital bonds approved by the voters in 1995 are 
expected to be fully spent in the summer of 2004.  The District convened a bond planning task force, 
which met monthly to set priorities and determine the size for the next capital bond offering.  The District 
is considering when to bring a bond levy to the voters.  Passing such an authorization would require a 
double majority (over 50% of registered voters voting, with over 50% of those who vote approving) unless 
the election is held in November of an even-numbered year.  Continued declines in State funding exert 
downward pressure on the District’s budget such that there are virtually no Gen
b
 
Cash management. Temporary excess cash throughout the year is invested in short-term instruments.  
As of June 30, 2004 investments are primarily in collateralized time deposits, commercial paper, and 
securities guaranteed by the U.S. Government and its agencies and approved the State Treasurer in 
accordance with Oregon revised Statutes 294.035 and 294.046.  The District also places temporary 
excess cash with the State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool.  The Distric

inistered a conservative cash management program with its

1) To preserve the safety of District investment principal. 

To maintain sufficient daily operating cash (liqui
maximizing the amount of monies invested. 

To earn the maximum return on cash inves
laws, and District policies and regulations. 

To inform the Board of Education 
management program of the District. 

The District’s investment policy requires third-party safekeeping on a delivery versus payment basis on all 
investments except overnight investments.  Investment income realized within the General Fund for the 
year ended June 30, 2004 was $1.7 million, compared
re
 
Risk management is vital to controlling property, casualty and workers’ compensation losses through the 
coordination of safety, loss prevention, insurance, and claims administration.  The District administers a 
single Self-Insurance Fund through a Risk Management Department responsible for negotiation and 
payment of a majority of all workers’ compensation claims, general liability claims and judgments, and 
property/fire loss claims.  Resources are derived from charges for services to other funds, investment 
earnings, and insurance recoveries.  Based upon an actuar
re
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Member Term Expires Address
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Lolenzo Poe June 30, 2005 5703 NE Church St., Portland, OR 97218
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David Wynde June 30, 2007 2332 NE 9th Ave., Portland, OR 97212
 
 
 

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF
 

James R. Scherzinger.................................................................... Superintendent* 

Heidi B. Franklin, CPA .............................Interim Chief Financial Officer/Controller 

Jollee Patterson ............................................................................General Counsel 

 

* Effective August 1, 2004, Vicki L. Phillips, Ph.D., became Superintendent. 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 
Management’s Discussion And Analysis 

 
As management of the School District No.1, Multnomah County, Oregon (Portland Public Schools or the 
District), we offer readers this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Portland Public 
Schools for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found on pages i-vi of this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
♦ The net assets of Portland Public Schools in the government-wide financial statements were 

$206,456,911.  Of this amount, $156,010,883 was invested in capital assets, net of related debt and the 
remainder, $50,446,028, is technically considered unreserved, but the District has $12,964,788 committed 
to debt-financed programs. 

♦ At June 30, 2004, the General Fund had an unreserved fund balance of $13.2 million, an increase of 
$26.7 million from June 30, 2003.  This increase is attributable to aggressive District efforts to hold down 
costs; significant increases in State School Fund payments, as the State front loaded the funding 
distribution into this first year of the state’s biennium; and significant additional revenue from the State in 
the current year from its reconciliation of the prior year. 

♦ In accordance with Oregon Budget Law and Senate Bill 1022, the 2002-03 non-GAAP budgetary financial 
statements for the General Fund included $17.1 million of accrued State School Fund revenue.  Such an 
accrual was not necessary for the 2003-04 fiscal year, given the increase of revenues over expenditures 
and was reversed. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Portland Public Schools’ basic 
financial statements.  The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.  This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
District’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Portland Public Schools is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, 
and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all 
or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  As is typical for a 
school district, Portland Public Schools has governmental activities, which include instruction, supporting 
services, facilities, food services, community service, and debt service.  Portland Public Schools currently does 
not have any business-type activities. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 13 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements are designed to demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities and objectives.  All of the funds of the Portland Public Schools can be divided 
into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
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Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of available 
resources, as well as on balances of available resources at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
Portland Public Schools designates five major governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Grant Fund, and three capital projects funds, all of which 
are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other nine governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in 
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
Portland Public Schools adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its funds.  A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for each fund individually in supplementary information to demonstrate 
compliance with their budgets. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-18 of this report. 
 
Proprietary funds are used to account for a government’s business-type activities.  The District maintains only 
one type of proprietary fund, which is an internal service fund. 
 
Internal service funds are accounting devices used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among various 
functions.  The District uses an internal service fund to account for its Self-Insurance activities.  Because 
Portland Public Schools has no business-type functions, this service benefits governmental functions and has 
been included within the governmental activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. 
 
Internal service funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements.  The 
internal service fund financial statements provide separate information for the Self-Insurance Fund, which is 
considered to be a major fund of Portland Public Schools. 
 
The basic internal service fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the 
basic financial statements can be found on pages 22-36 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) is located directly after the notes to the basic financial 
statements and represent the required comparison of the budget and actual results on the District’s budgetary 
basis for the General Fund and the only major special revenue fund, the Grant Fund.  This information is on 
pages 39–42. 
 
The Combining Statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are 
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  Combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules can be found on pages 44-49 of this report. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
Net assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s financial 
position.  In the case of Portland Public Schools, assets exceeded liabilities by $206,456,911 at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year. 
 

Change
2003 2004 2003-2004

Assets
Current and other assets 103,758,133$    142,480,484$    37.3%
Prepaid PERS unfunded actuarial liability 486,617,609      486,071,587      -0.1%
Net capital assets 228,616,491      224,098,220      -2.0%

Total Assets 818,992,233      852,650,291      4.1%

Liabilities
Non PERS related long-term debt outstanding 126,944,580      79,987,337        -37.0%
PERS unfunded actuarial liability debt outstanding 491,273,897      490,727,875      -0.1%
Other liabilities 68,085,388        75,478,168        10.9%

Total Liabilities 686,303,865      646,193,380      -5.8%

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 123,871,911      156,010,883      25.9%
Unrestricted 8,816,457          50,446,028        472.2%

Total Net Assets 132,688,368$   206,456,911$   55.6%

Governmental Activities

 
By far the largest portion of the District’s net assets (75%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding.  The District uses these capital assets for classrooms and supporting services for providing K-12 
education; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the District’s investment 
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, Portland Public Schools is able to report positive balances in both 
categories of net assets for governmental activities.  During the current fiscal year the District’s net assets 
increased by $73,768,543, which resulted from the reduction in long-term debt of $47.5 million and an increase 
in State School Fund revenue of $32.9 million because the State front loaded distributions into the first year of 
the state’s biennium and provided $2.3 million due to reconciliation of prior year amounts. In addition, the 
District benefited from the generosity of voters in establishing the Multnomah County Income Tax.  In this first 
year of the three-year temporary tax, the District collected $36.5 million.  Furthermore, the District continued its 
aggressive efforts to realize savings from cost cutting measures. 
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The revenues and expenses shown below outline changes in net assets for the fiscal years 2003 and 2004.   
 

Changes in Net Assets % of
Total Change

2003 2004 2004 2003-2004
Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for services 10,532,039$        9,650,171$          1.8% -8.4%
Operating grants and contributions 75,616,763          69,603,337          13.2% -8.0%

Total Program Revenues 86,148,802          79,253,508          15.0% -8.0%
General Revenues

Property taxes 194,401,235        198,020,926        37.6% 1.9%
State school fund 150,705,317        183,619,106        34.9% 21.8%
Common school fund 3,100,444            1,251,379            0.2% -59.6%
County and intermediate sources 24,440,903          50,805,630          9.6% 107.9%
Investment earnings 2,187,551            1,786,274            0.3% -18.3%
Other 5,343,708            6,383,011            1.2% 19.4%
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 239,238               5,492,841            1.0% 2196.0%

Total General Revenues 380,418,396        447,359,167        85.0% 17.6%
Total Revenues 466,567,198        526,612,675        100.0% 12.9%

Expenses
Instruction 246,091,005        264,429,734        58.4% 7.5%
Supporting services 160,169,734        160,120,687        35.4% 0.0%
Enterprise and community services 14,736,156          13,734,717          3.0% -6.8%
Facilities 15,638,257          9,177,488            2.0% -41.3%
Interest on long-term debt 10,607,253          5,381,506            1.2% -49.3%

Total Expenses 447,242,405        452,844,132        100.0% 1.3%

Increase in net assets 19,324,793          73,768,543          35.7% 281.7%

Net assets - beginning 113,363,575        132,688,368        64.3% 17.0%
Net assets - ending 132,688,368$     206,456,911$     100.0% 55.6%

Governmental Activities

 
Revenues.  Since the District’s mission is to provide a free and appropriate public education for K-12 students 
within its boundaries, the District may not charge for its core services.  As expected, therefore, general 
revenues provide 85.0% of the funding required for governmental programs.  Property taxes and State school 
fund combined account for 85.3% of general revenues and 72.5% of total revenues. 
 
Charges for services are only 1.8% of total revenues and are composed of the following items for which it is 
appropriate that the District charge tuition or fees: 
 
♦ Food services charge not only for lunch and breakfast, but also for catering  

and contract services.  $  3,962,141 

♦ Tuition is charged for all-day kindergarten, evening high school, out-of-district  
students, summer school, and driver’s education. 2,510,639 

♦ Facilities leverages District buildings by leasing and renting classrooms, gymnasiums,  
swimming pools, auditoriums, and entire vacant buildings.  2,126,708 

♦ Athletics charges pay-to-play fees and sells tickets to events and games. 601,097 

♦ Other sales, royalties, and events generate revenue; including, commission 
on exclusive beverage contract. 449,586 

 Total Charges for Services:  $ 9,650,171 
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Operating grants and contributions represent 13.2% of total revenues.  Included in this category are $9.6 
million for federal reimbursement under the school lunch program and $7.3 million raised or donated by student 
body activities.  Federal and state grants for designated programs totaled $50 million. 
 
Expenses.  Expenses related to governmental activities are presented in five broad functional categories.  
Costs of direct classroom instruction activities account for 58.4% of the total expenses of $452,844,132.  In 
addition, 54% of the costs in supporting services relate to students, instructional staff and school 
administration.  
 

Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Percentage Percentage

Change Change
2003 2004 2003-2004 2003 2004 2003-2004

Instruction 246,091,005$    264,429,734$    7.5% (191,466,360)$    (220,323,681)$    15.1%
Supporting services 160,169,734      160,120,687      0.0% (143,984,134)      (139,918,454)      -2.8%
Enterprise and
   community services 14,736,156        13,734,717        -6.8% 622,293              1,210,505           94.5%
Facilities acquisition
   & construction 15,638,257        9,177,488          -41.3% (15,638,257)        (9,177,488)          -41.3%
Interest on long-term 
debt 10,607,253        5,381,506          -49.3% (10,607,253)        (5,381,506)          -49.3%

Total 447,242,405$    452,844,132$   1.3% (361,073,711)$   (373,590,624)$    3.5%

Total Cost of Services Net Revenue (Expense)

 
 

 

Expenses by Service Type Fiscal Year 2004
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Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 
 
The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements.  
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net resources available 
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
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General Fund.  The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District.  At the end of the current fiscal 
year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $13,190,954, which was an increase of  $26,742,502.  
Key factors in this growth are as follows:   
 
♦ The Board of Education is strongly committed to financial accountability and acknowledges that  

establishing and maintaining adequate reserves is a critical component of prudent financial management.  
The Board passed a resolution that ending fund balance would be increased at the rate of 1% per year 
until the minimum target of 3% of General Fund expenditures ($12 million) was achieved.  

♦ State revenue and the Multnomah County Income Tax:  The Multnomah County Income Tax (“ITAX”) is a 
temporary three-year tax passed by the voters to allow time for the State legislature to address needs for 
adequate and stable funding for K-12 education.  Based on estimates of State funding levels, the ITAX was 
designed to bridge the gap in State funding and was budgeted at $51 million. When the State increased 
funding levels and front-loaded the State School Fund distributions into the first year of the biennium, the 
County reduced the ITAX turnovers for schools for the 2003-04 school year.  The actual ITAX collections 
totaled $36.5 million.   

♦ City of Portland revenue:  The City of Portland again provided tangible support to the District by providing 
$4 million per year for three years beginning in 2003-04 generated through increases in business license 
fees. 

♦ District revenue:  In accordance with Oregon Budget Law and Senate Bill 1022, the 2002-03 non-GAAP 
budgetary financial statements for the General Fund included $17.1 million of accrued State School Fund 
revenue.  Such an accrual was not necessary for the 2003-04 fiscal year, given the increase of revenues 
over expenditures.  The 2002-03 accrual was therefore reversed in 2003-04. 

The District is also committed to efficient, effective operations and has undertaken many initiatives to 
streamline business processes and reduce on-going costs.  Highlights of successful efforts include: 

♦ Certain special education programs that were previously contracted to other agencies are proving to cost 
less by providing the services ourselves.  Tuition to private schools was therefore $2.9 million under 
budget. 

♦ Transportation worked closely with special education to put more students onto special buses, thus 
reducing use of taxis by $320,000.  Declining enrollment and improved routing of buses resulted in 
transportation costs being almost $2 million under budget. 

♦ Implementation of the new e-SIS system for student information services allowed the old mainframe 
computer to be completely turned off, contributing to net savings in data processing costs of $255,000. 

 
Grant Fund.  Of the $51 million in federal and state grants received in 2003-04, $18.5 million represents 
funding for Title I and other Title funds targeted to provide additional services to students disadvantaged by 
poverty, to support migrant education, innovative programs, and safe and drug-free schools.  Another 
approximately $6 million was received for special education.  Head Start, National Science Foundation, 
Voluntary Public School Choice, and Carl Perkins Grants (alternative education) also provide significant 
funding to their respective programs.   
 
Capital Project Funds.  The Facilities Improvement Funds are targeted for priority building repairs and 
computers in classrooms. These funds, generated by the 1995 and 1996 general obligation bonds approved by 
the voters, will be fully spent by June 2005, when the bonds will also be fully paid off.  At June 30, 2004, $12.3 
million is the ending fund balance available for spending in 2004-05.  The System Project Fund was 
established to purchase and install enterprise-wide computer systems in human resources, payroll, finance, 
budget, purchasing, warehouse inventory, facilities management, nutrition services and student information.  
These projects have been successfully completed on time and on budget.  A residual $672,000 is the ending 
fund balance at June 30, 2004 and is available for spending in 2004-05.   
 
Proprietary Fund.  The Self-Insurance Fund experienced an unusual increase in expenditures of 52% over 
prior year.  This increased spending resulted from two major fires and the District’s self-retention is $1 million 
per incident.  Lent Elementary School had an arson fire in the main auditorium.  Binnsmead Middle School had 
the roof catch fire during the summer re-roofing project.   
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The budget was adjusted during the year to react to changing resources, primarily, declines in state funding. 
The changes can be briefly summarized as follows: 
 
♦ $ 5.5 million decrease in instruction reflects the decrease in enrollment and the corresponding decrease in 

teaching staff.  The staffing ratio is 30:1. 

♦ $ 2.5 million decrease in student support services is partially due to the decrease in enrollment and 
particularly due to the closure of two elementary schools. 

♦ $ 8.0 million increase in fund transfers is the first deposit into the PERS Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund 
in preparation for the outcome of pending litigation on PERS reforms enacted by the legislature and still 
under consideration by the Oregon Supreme Court. (See Note 16 )  

 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The District’s investment in capital assets includes land, building and improvements, vehicles 
and equipment, and construction in progress.  As of June 30, 2004, the District had invested over $224 million 
in capital assets, net of depreciation, as shown in the following table:   
 

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Percentage

Change
2003 2004 2003-2004

Land 9,049,378$           9,049,378$           0.0%
Buildings 189,883,031         185,925,208         -2.1%
Vehicles & Equipment 14,919,411           15,651,716           4.9%
Construction in Progress 14,764,671           13,471,918           -8.8%

Total 228,616,491$      224,098,220$      -2.0%

Total School District
Governmental Activities

 
 
During the year 2003-04, the District’s investment in capital assets decreased by $4.5 million, which was due to 
the depreciation of $14.0 million being more than the $9.5 million in additions of capital assets.  Major capital 
asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
♦ Building improvements continue in the areas of seismic upgrades, fire, life and safety, ADA compliance, 

and priority building repairs. 

♦ Completed projects added cost of $7.4 million to buildings and site improvements.  Construction in 
progress as of the close of fiscal year had reached $13.5 million. 

 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 on page 29 of this report. 
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total debt outstanding of $570,715,212.  
Of this amount, $34,675,000 comprises general obligation debt and $502,627,875 represents limited tax 
obligation debt, and $33,412,337 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the District.  The District’s 
total debt decreased by $47,503,265 during the current fiscal year. 
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Outstanding Long-Term Debt Percentage
Change

2003 2004 2003-2004

General obligation bonds 87,575,000$      34,675,000$      -60.4%
PERS limited tax general obligation bonds 491,273,897      490,727,875      -0.1%
Other long-term debt 39,369,580        45,312,337        15.1%

Total 618,218,477$    570,715,212$    -7.7%

Total School District
Governmental Activities

 
 
In May 2004 the District issued Full Faith and Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, in the principal aggregate 
amount of $11,900,000.  The proceeds were used to refund the Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 1998.  The 1998 Bonds were designated by the District as “gap bonds” when Measure 50 
(Article XI, Section 11 of the Oregon Constitution) was implemented.  That designation allowed the District to 
avoid reductions in the portion of its levy that paid the 1998 Bonds, in exchange for accepting a lower operating 
tax rate limit.  Initially this designation benefited the District by giving it more tax revenues to pay costs of public 
education. 
 
Measure 50 and its implementing legislation allow the District to refund the 1998 Bonds and not designate the 
Refunding Bonds as gap bonds.  When the District did this, its operating tax rate limit increased.  Senate Bill 
550 of the 2003 Legislative Assembly provided that this increase would not be treated as “local revenues” 
under the State School Funding Formula, and would not, therefore, be offset by reductions in the District’s 
State School Fund grant through fiscal year 2004-05.  The amount of the increase in tax revenues that results 
from the increase in the operating tax rate limit will exceed the debt service on the Refunding Bonds, so issuing 
the Refunding Bonds will increase tax revenues that are available to the District to pay costs of public 
education in fiscal year 2004-2005.  Thus the District obtains a favorable reorganization of its permanent debt 
structure. 
 
In May 2004 Standard & Poor’s lowered the District’s debt rating for full faith and credit obligations from an “A” 
to an “A-“ rating and lowered the rating for general obligation and limited tax general obligation bonds from and 
“A+” to an “A” rating.  At the same time, Standard & Poor’s assigned its “A-“ rating to the $11.975 million full 
faith and credit refunding bonds (federally taxably) series 2004. Standard & Poor’s cited the District’s weakened 
financial position due in part to state revenue declines and decreasing enrollments as rationale for the rating 
decision. Yet it declared the outlook stable for the District, based on the expectation that the District will 
adequately manage potential revenue and expenditure risks on the horizon.  Moody’s Investors Service also 
lowered its rating on the District’s full faith and credit obligations from “A1” to “A2” and gave an “A2” rating to 
the $11.975 million full faith and credit refunding bonds (federally taxably) series 2004, citing consecutive years 
of negative general fund balances.  At the same time, Moody’s affirmed the “Aa3” rating on the general 
obligation bonds, reflecting Moody’s expectation that the District will recover somewhat in the near term. 
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a school district may issue based on a formula for 
determining the percentage of the Real Market Value of all taxable properties within the District.  The District’s 
general obligation bond debt capacity is 7.95% of Real Market Value or $3,780,073,032, which is significantly 
in excess of the District’s outstanding general obligation debt. 
 
PERS is Oregon’s public pension system.  Under a pension plan, the actuarial liability is the present value of 
the plan’s current and expected benefits payments (plus administrative expenses).  If a fund’s actuarial liability 
exceeds its assets, then the fund has a shortfall that is known as an unfunded actuarial liability (“UAL”).  The 
portion of the PERS UAL attributable to Oregon education districts was estimated at over $1.68 billion based 
on the 2002 valuation.  PERS requires that school districts pay (or “amortize”) this UAL over a period of 
approximately 26 years with interest at 8% a year.  Since interest rates have been at historic lows, an 
opportunity to benefit from interest rate arbitrage was created. 
 
The District participated in the Oregon School Board Association (“OSBA”) sponsored pooled pension 
obligation bond program, in which the proceeds from bond issues were used to offset a portion of the UAL.  
The details of the District’s borrowing are in Note 10 to the Basic Financial Statements.  The benefits of the 
arbitrage are seen in a substantial reduction in the District’s PERS employer rate.  This reduction in rates 
should dampen the effects of future increases in the District’s UAL.  As long as PERS’ investment returns 
exceed the costs of servicing the bonds, the benefits of this program will exceed the costs.  The District’s UAL 
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was reduced, but was not eliminated, by these borrowing transactions.  Statutes, legislation, regulations, and 
rules regarding PERS can change at any time.  These changes may improve or reduce the benefits of 
participation in the bond program. 
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note 10 on page 30 of this report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets 
 
♦ The concerted efforts of many volunteers and the generous support of the voters of Multnomah County 

resulted in the failure of Measure 26-64 that would have repealed the Multnomah County Income Tax.  
This ITAX is expected to generate approximately $50 million in revenue per year for each of the next two 
years remaining of this three-year temporary income tax. 

♦ For the second year in a row, unemployment rates in the Portland-Vancouver metropolitan area have 
been higher than those in the rest of the State and among the highest in the nation, remaining over 7%. 

♦ Negotiations with the District’s various bargaining units were in process during the 2003-04 fiscal year.  
The classified union, Portland Federation of Teachers and Classified Employees, settled in April 2004 for 
a retroactive 4% wage increase, a 4% wage increase in 2004-05, and changes in health benefits, 
including a cap of $694 per member per month, increasing to $764 February 1, 2005.  The Portland 
Association of Teachers reached agreement with the District in September 2004.  The teachers will 
receive a 3% salary increase in 2004-05 and another 2.75% increase in 2005-06.  The teachers also 
agreed to certain reductions in health benefits and to premium cost sharing whereby the employee will 
contribute 6% of the premium cost in year one of the contract and 7% in year two. This settlement will 
increase expenditures for 2004-05 by approximately $5 million over the adopted budget. The nutrition 
services workers (SEIU Local 503) settled their contract in September 2004, agreeing to a 1% wage 
increase effective January 2005 and another ½% wage increase effective June 30, 2005.  The health care 
cap was increased from $600 per member per month to $756 per month.  The District Council of Unions 
continues in on-going negotiations. 

♦ The five-year local option property tax levy, which will generate as much as $32 million in 2004-05, 
expires in June 2005.  The Board decided not to put a renewal measure on the November 2004 ballot, for 
fear of confusing the voters, since Measure 26-64 to repeal the county income tax was already on the 
ballot.  The Board will decide early in 2005 whether it will ask the voters to renew the local option levy for 
the next five years.  Also expiring in June 2005 is the law that set aside desegregation funding of $7.6 
million.  If the Board decides to pursue renewal of the local option, it will also have to decide whether to 
ask for a continuation of the current rate, which would include desegregation amounts, or some lesser 
amount.  Currently local option and desegregation fund about 300 teaching positions and buy supplies, 
textbooks and computers in the classroom.  If the local option is not renewed, the resulting projected 
budget shortfall for 2005-2006 is about $32 million.    
 
In addition, the capital bonds will be virtually fully spent and will be paid off by the end of June 2005.  The 
Board will decide when to pursue asking the voters for additional capital bonds and for how much.  
Depending on how the bonds are structured, and if the current tax rate were maintained, the capital bonds 
could generate between $150 million and $300 million.    
 
Both elections would require a double majority (50% voter turnout and 50% voting “yes”) unless held at a 
November general election in an even-numbered year.   

 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Portland Public Schools’ finances for all 
those with an interest in the District’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in the 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Office, Portland 
Public Schools, 501 N Dixon, Portland, OR, 97227. 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2004

Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 53,597,800$    
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents 2,425,787        
Cash held in trust 94,020             
Investments 42,580,610      
Accounts and other receivables 24,532,837      
Property taxes and other taxes receivable 7,954,491        
Inventories 1,616,599        
Prepaid items 379,025           
Prepaid PERS actuarial liability 486,071,587    
Bond issue costs, net of accumulated amortization 4,549,315        
Noncurrent Assets:

Note receivable - Due within one year 100,000           
Note receivable - Due in more than one year 4,650,000        

Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Land 9,049,378        
Buildings and capital improvements 185,925,208    
Vehicles and equipment 15,651,716      
Construction in progress 13,471,918      

Total assets 852,650,291    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 13,418,799      
Accrued wages and benefits 54,325,708      
Claims payable 4,813,872        
Accrued bond interest payable 398,377           
Arbitrage rebate 651,260           
Deferred revenues 1,870,152        
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Bonds payable - Due within one year 43,039,237      
Bonds payable - Due in more than one year 527,675,975    

Total liabilities 646,193,380    

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 156,010,883    
Unrestricted 50,446,028      
Total net assets 206,456,911$  

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2004

PROGRAM REVENUES

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Assets

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities

Governmental Activities:
Instruction 264,429,734$  3,561,322$      40,544,731$   (220,323,681)$    
Support services 160,120,687    2,126,708        18,075,525     (139,918,454)      
Enterprise and Community Services 13,734,717      3,962,141        10,983,081     1,210,505           
Facilities acquisition & construction 9,177,488        -                   -                  (9,177,488)          
Interest and fees on long-term debt 5,381,506        -                   -                  (5,381,506)          

Total governmental activities 452,844,132$  9,650,171$     69,603,337$  (373,590,624)      

GENERAL REVENUES:
Property taxes, levies for operations 135,183,185       
Property taxes, levies for debt service 45,672,830         
Local option taxes 17,164,911         
State School Fund 183,619,106       
State Common School Fund 1,251,379           
County and intermediate sources 50,805,630         
Investment earnings 1,786,274           
Other 6,383,011           
Gain on disposal of capital assets 5,492,841           

Total general revenues 447,359,167       
Change in net assets 73,768,543         

Net assets - beginning of year 132,688,368       
Net assets - end of year 206,456,911$     

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2004

General Grant
Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 29,330,042$   618$              
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents 2,013,393      -                 
Cash held in trust 94,020           -                 
Investments 26,499,995    -                 
Accounts and other receivables 7,149,308      14,225,336    
Property taxes and other taxes receivable 6,067,132      -                 
Due from other funds 4,502,130      -                 
Inventories 984,135         -                 
Prepaid Items 379,025         -                 

Total assets 77,019,180$    14,225,954$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10,198,942$   1,340,726$    
Accrued wages and benefits 44,948,759    6,512,946      
Due to other funds 600,000         4,502,130      
Arbitrage rebate -                -                 
Deferred revenues 8,080,525      1,870,152      

Total liabilities 63,828,226      14,225,954    

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved, reported in:

General Fund 13,190,954    -                 
Special revenue funds -                -                 
Capital projects funds -                -                 
Debt service funds -                -                 

Total fund balances 13,190,954    -                 
Total liabilities and fund balances 77,019,180$    14,225,954$  

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Facilities
System Improvement/ Facilities Other Total
Project Technology Improvement II Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

429,475$        1,284,454$      228,748$       19,973,025$    51,246,362$             
-                  -                    -                 412,394          2,425,787                
-                  -                    -                 -                  94,020                     

980,000          7,863,000        3,304,000      1,581,615       40,228,610              
4,879              586,641            1,373             1,868,069       23,835,606              

-                  -                    -                 1,887,359       7,954,491                
-                  -                    -                 600,000          5,102,130                
-                  -                    -                 632,464          1,616,599                
-                  -                    -                 -                  379,025                   

1,414,354$     9,734,095$       3,534,121$     26,954,926$     132,882,630$            

85,375$          667,891$          270,056$       536,706$         13,099,696$             
5,490              35,846              1,864             1,634,022       53,138,927              

-                  -                    -                 -                  5,102,130                
651,260          -                    -                 -                  651,260                   

-                  -                    -                 1,645,488       11,596,165              
742,125          703,737            271,920          3,816,216         83,588,178                

-                  -                    -                 -                  13,190,954              
-                  -                    -                 20,882,265     20,882,265              

672,229          9,030,358        3,262,201      -                  12,964,788              
-                  -                    -                 2,256,445       2,256,445                

672,229          9,030,358        3,262,201      23,138,710     49,294,452              
1,414,354$     9,734,095$       3,534,121$     26,954,926$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 224,098,220              

Long-term taxes receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore, are deferred in the funds. 9,726,013                  

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 230,497                     

Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. (570,715,212)             

PERS unfunded liability payment is not reported as a prepayment in the
funds and therefore, is expensed in the the funds. 486,071,587              

Bond issue costs are not amortized over the life of the bonds in the
funds and therefore are expensed in the year of the bond issue. 4,549,315                  

Notes receivable are not collectable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. 4,750,000                  

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1,149,584)                 

Bond interest is not accrued as a liability in the government funds. (398,377)                    
Net assets of governmental activities 206,456,911$            
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2004

General Grant
Fund Fund

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 135,683,459$ -$             
State School Fund (See Note 15) 183,619,106  -               
Local option taxes 17,164,911    -               
County and intermediate sources 49,280,852    892,796        
State Common School Fund 1,251,379      -               
Federal and state support -                  49,599,419   
Charges for services 3,578,214      -               
Extracurricular activities -                  -               
Investment earnings 844,998         -               
Other 5,842,037      678,424        

Total revenues 397,264,956  51,170,639   

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction 217,657,078  31,675,015   
Support services 136,103,067  18,075,525   
Enterprise and Community Services -                  1,420,099     
Facilities acquisition  & construction -                  -               

Debt Service:
Principal 552,243         -               
Interest 431,441         -               
Bond issue costs -                  -               

Total expenditures 354,743,829    51,170,639   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 42,521,127    -               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                  -               
Transfers out (16,535,425)   -               
Bond proceeds -                  -               
Bond advance refunding principal -                  -               
Bond advance refunding interest -                  -               
Proceeds from the sale of property 756,800         -               

Total other financing sources (uses) (15,778,625)     -                

Net change in fund balances 26,742,502      -                
Fund balances (deficit) - beginning of year (13,551,548)     -                
Fund balances  - end of year 13,190,954$    -$              

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Facilities
System Improvement/ Facilities Other Total
Project Technology Improvement II Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

-$                 -$                -$             45,672,830$  181,356,289$   
-                   -                  -               -                183,619,106    
-                   -                  -               -                17,164,911      
-                   -                  -               631,982        50,805,630      
-                   -                  -               -                1,251,379        
-                   -                  -               9,591,757     59,191,176      
-                   -                  -               6,071,957     9,650,171        
-                   -                  -               7,259,049     7,259,049        

37,227             607,583         39,904         222,452        1,752,164        
-                   -                  -               3,364,370     9,884,831        

37,227             607,583         39,904         72,814,397   521,934,706    

-                   -                  -               11,881,374   261,213,467    
1,122,853        645,665         2,500           2,160,056     158,109,666    

-                   -                  -               12,862,211   14,282,310      
77,910             6,973,001       2,126,577     -                9,177,488        

-                   -                  -               46,980,000   47,532,243      
-                   -                  -               6,131,538     6,562,979        
-                   -                  -               110,568        110,568           

1,200,763        7,618,666       2,129,077     80,125,747     496,988,721      

(1,163,536)       (7,011,083)      (2,089,173)    (7,311,350)    24,945,985      

-                   -                  -               16,535,425   16,535,425      
-                   -                  -               -                (16,535,425)     
-                   -                  -               11,900,000   11,900,000      
-                   -                  -               (11,325,000)  (11,325,000)     
-                   -                  -               (517,867)       (517,867)          
-                   -                  -               -                756,800           
-                   -                  -                16,592,558     813,933             

(1,163,536)       (7,011,083)      (2,089,173)    9,281,208       25,759,918        
1,835,765        16,041,441     5,351,374     13,857,502     23,534,534        

672,229$         9,030,358$     3,262,201$   23,138,710$   49,294,452$      
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 17) 25,759,918$   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

(4,504,312)      

4,750,000       

(500,274)         

(394,216)         

(13,959)           

47,458,163     

(546,022)         

Change in compensated absences (95,765)          
Change in bond interest payable 1,855,010       

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 13) 73,768,543$   

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds:

Governmental funds report all capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of certain assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation in
the current period of $14,037,618 exceeded capital outlays of $9,540,268 and a
reclassification of $6,962.

Property tax revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the change in deferred
revenue related to property taxes.

An internal service fund is used to account for all costs incurred for claims arising from
workers' compensation, general liabilities, and property and fire loses. The primary
funding sources are charges to other funds. This amount is the net loss of that fund for
the year.

Governmental funds reported the prepayment of the PERS unfunded actuarial liability
as an other financing use in prior years. However, in the statement of activities the
expense is the amortization of the prepaid asset.

Revenues need to be reduced by the net book value of capital assets sold. This equates
to the cost of assets sold.

Governmental funds do not report the uncollected portion of revenue from the sale of an
asset in the current year if a note is issued. Revenue is recorded at the time the note
payment is received. However, in the statement of activities the revenue and note
receivable is recorded in the current year.  
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2004

Internal 
Service

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,351,438$    
Investments 2,352,000      
Accounts and other receivables 697,231         

Total assets 5,400,669      

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 319,103         
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits payable 37,197           
Claims payable 4,813,872      

Total liabilities 5,170,172      

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 230,497         

Total net assets 5,400,669$    

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Internal 
Service

OPERATING REVENUES
Current Operating:

Charges for services 4,749,985$      
Insurance recoveries 2,051,386        
Other 28,109             

Total revenues 6,829,480        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Current Operating:

Salaries and benefits 356,927           
Materials and services 190,707           
Claims expense 6,710,172        

Total expenses 7,257,806        

Operating Loss (428,326)         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Investment earnings 34,110             

Net loss (394,216)         
Net assets - beginning of year 624,713           

Net assets - end of year 230,497$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Internal
Service

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from quasi-external

transactions with other funds 4,749,985$       
Cash received from insurance recoveries 1,494,923         
Cash received from miscellaneous transactions 28,109              
Cash payments for salaries and benefits (346,469)           
Cash payments for goods and services (7,531,176)        

Net cash used by operating activities (1,604,628)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments 2,472,000         
Investment earnings 34,110              

Net cash provided by investing activities 2,506,110         

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 901,482            

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,449,956         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,351,438$       

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss (428,326)$         
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to

net cash used by operating activities:
Increase in accounts receivable (556,463)           
Decrease in accounts payable (398,169)           
Decrease in claims payable (232,128)           
Increase in accrued salaries, and wages and benefits payable 10,458              
Total adjustments (1,176,302)        

Net cash used by operating activities (1,604,628)$      

Non cash activities: None

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon, known as Portland Public Schools or the District, is 
governed by a seven-member elected board.  The District is the special-purpose primary government 
exercising financial accountability for all public K-12 education within its boundaries.  As required by 
generally accepted accounting principles, the accompanying financial statements present all significant 
activities and organizations of the District. The District reports no component units, entities for which the 
government is considered to be financially accountable, due to the insignificance of the potential 
component units.  The District is not a component unit of any other entity and specifically has no 
relationship or connection with Multnomah County. 

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the governing body and establishes governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. The District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its proprietary activities 
provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The more significant of the 
District’s accounting policies are described below. 

A. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District.  For the most part, the effect 
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers who purchase or use 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function.  Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the Self-Insurance Fund, an 
internal service fund, even though the fund is excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

B. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the 
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal year.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are 
recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes are considered to be susceptible to accrual, if received in cash by the District or a County 
collecting such taxes within 60 days after year-end.  All other revenue items are recognized in the 
accounting period when they become both measurable and available.  Measurable means the amount of 
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School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

 

the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current year or soon 
thereafter.  The available period for the District is 60 days after year-end. 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General – Accounts for the general operations of the District.  The General Fund accounts for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  The General 
Fund’s resources are available to the District for any purpose provided they are expended or 
transferred according to a resolution of the District and/or the general laws of Oregon.  

Grant – Accounts for revenues and expenditures of grants restricted for specific projects.  
Principal revenue sources are federal and state grants. 

System Project - Accounts for the acquisition and installation of new multi-tiered computer 
systems, including hardware, peripherals, software, integration of business and instructional 
applications, related infrastructure and training.  The System Project Fund also accounts for the 
acquisition and installation of furniture and equipment, repair and reconstruction of District 
facilities, construction and preparation of facilities for interactive distance learning, and related 
costs and improvements.   Primary resources for the fund are bond proceeds in prior years and 
interest earnings. 

 
Facilities Improvement/ Technology - Accounts for the acquisition and installation of desktop 
computers in classroom, installation of wiring and relocated infrastructure to support computers in 
classrooms, and for construction related to major renovations and building repairs to the District’s 
facilities, including American with Disabilities Act and safety requirements.  Primary resources for 
the fund are bond proceeds in prior years and interest earnings. 
  
Facilities Improvement II - Accounts for the construction of a new elementary school, and for 
construction related to major renovations and priority building repairs of the District’s facilities, 
including Americans with Disabilities Act and safety requirements.  Primary resources for the fund 
are bond proceeds in prior years and interest earnings. 
 

Additionally, the District reports the following proprietary internal service fund: 

Self-Insurance – Accounts for all costs incurred for claims arising from workers’ compensation, 
general liabilities, and property and fire losses.  The primary resources for the fund are charges to 
other funds and investment earnings.  The activity and balances of this fund are included in the 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  All revenues except for 
investment revenue is considered operating revenue. 

C. Appropriations and Budgetary Controls  

The District prepares a budget for all funds in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
with certain adjustments, and legal requirements set forth in Oregon Local Budget Law.   
 
Consistent with Oregon law, expenditures are appropriated by fund for each legally adopted annual 
operating budget at the following levels of control, as appropriate: 

� Instruction 
� Support Services 
� Enterprise and Community Services 
� Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
� Debt Service 
� Contingency 
� Fund Transfers 

Capital outlay expenditures are appropriated within the instruction and supporting services levels of 
control. Debt service expenditures in the General Fund are appropriated within the supporting services 
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level of control.  For reporting purposes debt service expenditures of General Fund are segregated from 
the supporting services budgetary control levels and are presented in the debt service expenditures 
category.  

After the original budget is adopted, the Board of Education may approve appropriation transfers between 
the levels of control without limitation.  Supplemental appropriations may be approved by the Board of 
Education if any occurrence, condition, or need exists which had not been anticipated at the time the 
budget was adopted.  An appropriations transfer, which alters estimated total expenditures by less than 
10% of any individual fund, may be adopted at the regular meeting of the Board of Education.  For 
conditions which require either supplemental appropriations or an increase in expenditures greater than 
10% of an individual fund, a supplemental budget must be adopted, which requires public hearings, 
publications in newspapers and approval by the Board of Education.  Supplemental budgets must be 
submitted, reviewed and certified, similar to the original budget, by the Multnomah County Tax 
Supervising and Conservation Commission subsequent to approval by the Board of Education.  
Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

D. Encumbrances 

During the year encumbrances are recorded in the accounting records when purchase orders are issued.  
The use of encumbrances indicates to District employees that appropriations are committed, however, all 
encumbrances expire at year-end. 

E.  Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, the statement of net assets and the balance sheets, moneys 
in the Oregon State Local Government Investment Pool, savings deposits, demand deposits and cash 
with county treasurer are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Investments with a remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of purchase are stated at fair 
value. Other investments are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. 

F.  Property Taxes 

Uncollected real and personal property taxes are reflected on the statement of net assets and the balance 
sheet as receivables.   

Under state law, county governments are responsible for extending authorized property tax levies, 
computing tax rates, billing and collecting all property taxes, and making periodic distributions of 
collections to entities levying taxes.  Property taxes become a lien against the property when levied on 
July 1 of each year and are payable in three installments due on November 15, February 15 and May 15.  
Property tax collections are distributed monthly except for November, when such distributions are made 
weekly. 

G.  Inventories and Prepaid Items 

School operating supplies, maintenance supplies, and food and other cafeteria supplies are stated at 
average invoice cost.  Commodities purchased from the United States Department of Agriculture in the 
Cafeteria Fund are included in the District’s inventories at USDA wholesale value.  The District accounts 
for the inventory based on the consumption method.  Under the consumption method inventory is 
recorded when purchased and expenditures/expenses are recorded when inventory items are used.  
Donated commodities consumed during the year are reported as revenues and expenditures. The 
amount of unused donated commodities at balance sheet date is considered immaterial for reporting 
purposes.  Prepaid assets are recognized as expenditures when their use benefits the District. 

H.  Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and site improvements, construction in progress, and 
vehicles and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
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more than $5,000, and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at 
historical cost, or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  Major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements are capitalized as projects are completed. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Years

Buildings 100
Site Improvements 5 to 25
Equipment 5 to 15
Vehicles 5

  

I.  Grant Accounting 

Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are recorded in the financial statements as 
accounts receivable and revenues.  Cash received from grantor agencies in excess of related grant 
expenditures is reflected as a deferred revenue liability on the statement of net assets and the balance 
sheet. 

J.  Self-insurance 

The District operates the Self-Insurance Fund to account for the costs of workers’ compensation claims, 
general liability claims, property and fire loss claims, and the payment of premiums.  Charges to other 
funds by the Self-Insurance Fund are recognized as revenues in the Self-Insurance Fund and as 
expenditures in the fund incurring the charges. 

The District recognizes the liabilities for estimated losses to be incurred from pending claims and for 
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR).  IBNR claims are estimates of claims that are incurred through 
the end of the fiscal year but have not yet been reported.  These liabilities are based on actuarial 
valuations. 

The District is self-insured for costs up to policy deductible limits as follows: 

   
Self-insured 
Retention 

 Excess 
Coverage per 
Occurrence 

 

General and Automobile Liabilities  $1,000,000 $     5,000,000
Property and Fire Liabilities 
Earthquake and Flood Liabilities 

 1,000,000
1,000,000

100,000,000
10,000,000

Workers’ Compensation Liabilities  1,000,000 Unlimited  
 
The District has not exceeded the claims limitation on its insurance policies for the last five years. 

K.  Compensated Absences 

Classified and hourly employees earn annual vacation leave at a rate of 10 days for one to five years of 
service and one additional day for each additional year of service up to a maximum of 22 days per year.  
Administrators earn 22 days of annual vacation leave.  Employees are allowed to carry over their 
maximum yearly earned balances from one fiscal year to another.  All outstanding vacation leave is 
payable upon resignation, retirement, or death. 

Vested compensated absences include accrued vacation and salary related payments.  The amounts 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are accrued in the fund, and the 
amount payable is recorded in the statement of net assets. 
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Sick leave hours accumulate at the rate of eight hours per month without a limit on the total hours that 
can be accumulated.  Accumulated sick leave does not vest and is forfeited at resignation, retirement or 
death.  Sick leave is recorded as an expenditure when leave is taken and no liability is recorded. 

L.  Receivables and Payables 

Receivables expected to be collected within sixty days following year-end are considered measurable and 
available and are recognized as revenues in the fund financial statements.  Other receivables, except 
grants, are offset by deferred revenues and, accordingly, have not been recorded as revenue.  
Receivables, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, are recorded as assets for the statement of net 
assets.     

Activity between funds that represent lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” in the fund financial statements, and is eliminated 
in the government-wide statements.   

M.  Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities.  Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over 
the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of applicable 
bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over 
the term of the related debt.   

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.   

N.  Retirement Plans 

Most of the District employees participate in Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). 
PERS requires plan contributions on a current basis.  Contributions are recorded as expenditures in 
individual funds.  

In addition, certificated employees with fifteen consecutive years of service with the District and who have 
attained age 55 or 30 years of service with the District are eligible for early retirement benefits.  All 
employees with a minimum of fifteen consecutive years of service who are age 55 or older upon 
retirement are eligible for health and welfare benefits.   

NOTE 2- BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING   

The District reports financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance/net assets/ 
retained earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The budgetary 
statements provided as part of supplementary information are presented on the budgetary basis to 
provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget.   

NOTE 3 - STATE CONSTITUTIONAL PROPERTY TAX LIMITS 

The State of Oregon has a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and non-school government 
operations. Under the provisions of the limitation, tax revenues are separated into those for the public 
school system and those for local government operations other than the public school system. Property 
taxes levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness are exempt from the limitation, provided such bonds 
are either authorized by a specific provision of the Oregon Constitution or approved by the voters of the 
District for capital construction or improvements. 

During May 1997, Oregon voters approved Measure 50 which limits taxes on each property by reducing 
the “assessed value” of each unit of property for the tax year 1998-99 to its 1995-96 value, less ten  
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percent.  Then, a “permanent tax rate”, representing the product of dividing the tax levy by the assessed 
value, was calculated.  The new tax rates are the permanent constitutional rate limit for each jurisdiction 
and are used to calculate future maximum tax rates.  As a result of the establishment of permanent tax 
rates, the pre-existing levy-based tax system has effectively been replaced by a rate-based tax system. 

The District’s permanent tax rate for the year ended June 30, 2004 was $4.7743 per $1,000 of assessed 
value. 

NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

A.  Deposits 

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits, deposits in the local government 
investment pool, time certificates of deposits, and savings account deposits as authorized by Oregon 
statutes.  At June 30, 2004, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $53,691,820 and the 
statement balance was $56,197,103.  Of the statement balance, $100,000 was covered by federal 
depository insurance, certificates of collateral were available up to $13,000,000, and $34,267,067 was on 
deposit in the local government investment pool and was exempt from collateralization.  Oregon Revised 
Statutes require governmental funds in banks to be either protected by federal depository insurance or 
the financial institution is required to maintain on deposit with collateral pool manager securities having a 
value of not less than 25% of the face value of the certificate issued by the pool manager.  When such 
securities are deposited, covered funds are considered fully collateralized under Oregon law. The 
collateral is held by a state-sponsored pool manager which is a commercial bank in the name of the pool 
manager, with the collateral certificate issued by the pool manager in the name of the District. 

B.  Investments 

Oregon Revised Statutes authorize school districts to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies 
and instrumentalities of the United States, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances guaranteed by a 
qualified financial institution, repurchase agreements, interest bearing bonds of any city, county, port or 
school district in Oregon (subject to specific standards), and the Oregon State Local Government 
Investment Pool, among others.  The Board of Education has adopted an investment policy for the 
District, which complies with state statutes. 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.31, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, investments with a 
remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of purchase are stated at fair value. Fair value is 
determined at the quoted market price, if available, otherwise the fair value is estimated based on the 
amount at which the investment could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, 
other than in a forced liquidation sale.  Investments in the State of Oregon Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP) are stated at share value, which approximates fair value. 

The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury.  The LGIP is an open-ended no-load diversified 
portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision or public corporation of the state who by law is made 
the custodian of, or has control of, any fund.  The LGIP is commingled with the State’s short-term funds.  
In seeking to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon 
Short-Term Fund Board.  The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the 
management and investment of the LGIP. 

At June 30, 2004, the LGIP did not report all investments at fair value in accordance with the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 31.  The LGIP is required by Oregon Revised Statues (ORS) to compute the fair 
value of all investments maturing more than 270 days from the date the computation is made.  If the fair 
value totals more than one percent of the balance of the LGIP in terms of unrealized gain or loss, the 
amount is required to be distributed to the pool participants.  Fifty percent of the LGIP portfolio must 
mature within 93 days.  Up to 25% of the LGIP portfolio may mature in over one year and no investment 
may mature in over three years.  At June 30, 2004, the District’s share of the amount of unrealized gain 
reported by the LGIP, in accordance with ORS, was considered immaterial. 
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The District’s investments at June 30, 2004 are categorized below to give an indication of the level of 
custodial credit risk assumed by the District. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or 
registered for which the securities are held by the District or its agent in the District’s name.  Category 2 
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the trust department  
of the bank that acquired the security for the District in the District’s name.  Category 3 includes uninsured  
and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the bank selling the security to the 
District. 

The District requires all securities, except for overnight investments used in conjunction with the District’s 
demand deposit account, to be purchased in the District’s name and held in third party safekeeping.  
During the year, the District invested in overnight U.S government agency securities for which the 
underlying securities were held by the dealer.  

Category Carrying
1 Value

U.S government agency securities 42,580,610$   42,580,610$    
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents 2,425,787       
Cash held in trust in Local Government Investment Pool 94,020            
Local Government Investment Pool 34,173,047      
Cash in segregated accounts 2,728,032       
Demand accounts 16,691,843      
Petty cash 4,878              

Total cash, cash equivalents and  investments 98,698,217$    

Balance sheet classification:
Cash and cash equivalents:

Governmental funds 51,246,362$    
Proprietary fund 2,351,438       

Total cash and cash equivalents 53,597,800      
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents:

Governmental funds 2,425,787       
Cash held in trust:

Governmental funds 94,020            
Investments:

Governmental funds 40,228,610      
Proprietary fund 2,352,000       

Total Investments 42,580,610      
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 98,698,217$    

 
NOTE 5 – RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of year-end are summarized as follows: 
 

Fund Type
Special Debt Capital Internal

Receivables: General Revenue Service Projects Service Total
Taxes 6,067,132$    -$               1,887,359$  -$          -$          7,954,491$   

Interest 79,739           -                 -               5,048        978           85,765          
Accounts 7,015,406      1,084,782      -               587,845    696,253    9,384,286     
Federal, state and 
     local grants -                 15,008,623  -             -          -            15,008,623 
Advances to employees 54,163           -                 -               -            -            54,163          
Accounts and 
     other receivables 7,149,308      16,093,405  -             592,893  697,231    24,532,837 
Total Receivables 13,216,440$  16,093,405$  1,887,359$  592,893$  697,231$  32,487,328$ 
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NOTE 6 – NOTE RECEIVABLE 

Effective December 15, 2004 the District sold the broadcast license and certain insignificant capital 
assets of the public broadcasting FM station operated by the District to a not-for-profit foundation that will 
continue to operate the station.  The terms of the sale include a down payment of $750,000 and principal 
payments as detailed below.  Interest accrues on these receivables at 5% for four years and 2% over the 
prime rate for the next six years.  The District considers these receivables to be collectable, and, 
accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided. 

Principal payments are scheduled to be received in the fiscal years ending June 30:  

2005 100,000$       
2006 100,000         
2007 100,000         
2008 100,000         
2009 375,000         
2010 - 2014 7,023,405      
Total 7,798,405$   

 
NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2004, follows:

Reclassifications
Balance and Balance

Description June 30, 2003 Additions Deletions June 30, 2004

Land (non-depreciable) 9,049,378$       -$              -$                 9,049,378$      
Buildings and site improvements 295,611,876     2,579,935     4,869,089        303,060,900    
Vehicles and equipment 24,263,531       1,706,003     1,494,885        27,464,419      
Construction in progress 14,764,671       5,254,330     (6,547,083)       13,471,918      
Total General Fixed Assets 343,689,456     9,540,268     (183,109)          353,046,615    

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and site improvements (105,728,845)    (11,406,847)  -                   (117,135,692)   
Vehicles and equipment (9,344,120)        (2,630,771)    162,188           (11,812,703)     
Total accumulated depreciation (115,072,965)    (14,037,618)  162,188           (128,948,395)   

Total governmental assets 228,616,491$   (4,497,350)$  (20,921)$          224,098,220$  

 

Depreciation expense for governmental activities is charged to functions as follows:

Instruction 10,935,837$  
Supporting services 3,035,591    
Food services 66,190         

14,037,618$  
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NOTE 8 – INTERFUND BALANCES 
 
The interfund balances are in place to eliminate a temporary negative cash position in the Grant Fund 
and to invest a portion of the fund balance of the Student Body Activities Fund monies in higher yielding 
investments held by the General Fund. 
 
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2004, is as follows: 

Due From Due To
General Fund 4,502,130$   600,000$      
Grant Fund -               4,502,130     
Non-major governmental funds 600,000        -               
Total all funds 5,102,130$   5,102,130$   

  
NOTE 9 – SHORT TERM DEBT 
 
During the year, the District borrowed and repaid $18,000,000 from a line of credit at 1.8% to buffer the 
variances in cash flow due to timing in property tax collections. 

NOTE 10 - BONDED AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT 

Changes in long-term debt of the District during fiscal year 2004 were as follows: 

Principal Principal
Balance Balance

July 1, 2003 Additions Repayments June 30, 2004

General Obligation Bonds,
Series 1996 65,375,000$    -$               (30,700,000)$  34,675,000$   

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 1998 22,200,000      -                 (22,200,000)    -                 

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 210,103,857    -                 (546,022)        209,557,835   

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 281,170,040    -                 -                 281,170,040   

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 -                  11,900,000    -                 11,900,000     

Certificates of Participation (COP), 
Series 1999 28,015,000      -                 (4,205,000)     23,810,000     

Refunding Special Obligations,
1993 Series A 5,160,000       -                 (1,200,000)     3,960,000       

Small Scale Energy Loan
Programs 6,194,580       -                 (552,243)        5,642,337       

Total General Long-term
Obligations 618,218,477$  11,900,000$   (59,403,265)$  570,715,212$ 

 
In 1995, voters approved for the issuance of $196,700,000 of general obligation bonds.  The District 
issued $100,000,000 general obligation bonds in December 1995.  The bonds were payable annually 
through June 2003.  Interest was payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 4.25% to 4.50%.  The 
District issued the remaining $96,700,000 bonds in September 1996.  The bonds are payable annually 
beginning June 1, 1999 through June 1, 2005.  Interest is payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 
4.25% to 5.50%.  The bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities. 
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In October 2002 Portland Public Schools participated as one of forty-one Oregon school districts and 
education service districts in issuing limited tax pension bonds, the proceeds of which were used to 
finance a portion of the estimated unfunded actuarial liability of each participating school district with the 
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”).  The Oregon School Boards Association 
(“OSBA”) sponsored this pooled limited tax pension bond program.  OSBA does not have a financial 
obligation in connection with the bonds issued under the program.  Except for the payment of its pension 
bond payments and additional charges when due, each participating school district has no obligation or 
liability to any other participating school district’s pension bonds or liabilities to PERS.  In April 2003 
OSBA sponsored another pooled limited tax pension bond program with thirty school districts and 
education service districts.  The District records the amounts deposited with PERS as a prepayment on its 
actuarial obligation, and accounts for the payment of principal, interest and the amortization of the 
prepayment as pension expense over the life of the bonds.  The District anticipates that the total costs of 
financing the District’s actuarial obligation in this way will result in a significant savings to the District when 
compared to paying for such costs in additional contribution rates to PERS. 
 
The District issued $210,103,857 Limited Tax Pension Obligations, Series 2002 (Federally Taxable), of 
which $53,523,857 are Series 2002A (deferred interest obligations) and $156,580,000 are Series 2002B 
(current interest obligations).  The 2002 series Limited Tax Pensions Obligations were issued on October 
31, 2002, and are payable annually through June 2028. Interest on the deferred interest bonds is 
accreted  semiannually at yields  ranging from 2.06% to 6.10%.  Interest on the current coupon bonds is 
payable semiannually at rates ranging from 5.48% to 5.55%. The Series 2002A Obligations are not 
subject to optional prepayment prior to maturity.  The Series 2002B Obligations maturing June 30, 2021 
shall be subject to prepayment from Pension prepayments on or after June 30, 2007, and Obligations due 
June 30, 2028 are subject to mandatory prepayment prior to its stated maturity, in whole or part, on any 
June 30 on or after June 30, 2024.  
 
The District issued $281,170,040 Limited Tax Pension Obligations, Series 2003 (Federally Taxable), of 
which $124,800,040 are Series 2003A (deferred interest obligations) and $156,370,000 are Series 2003B 
(current interest obligations).  The Series 2003 Limited Tax Pensions Obligations were issued on April 30, 
2003, and are payable annually through June 2028. Interest on the deferred interest bonds is accreted 
semiannually at yields ranging from 1.50% to 6.27%.  Interest on the current coupon bonds is payable 
semiannually at rates ranging from 5.63% to 5.68%.  The  bonds are federally taxable and are not subject 
to optional prepayment prior to their stated maturities. 

In fiscal year 2004 the 1998 series refunding bonds were advance refunded, with proceeds of the Limited 
Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004.  The 2004 series refunding bonds are payable 
annually through June 15, 2013.  Interest is payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 2.190% to 
5.518%.  The bonds are federally taxable and are not subject to redemption prior to their stated 
maturities. 

The 1999 series Certificates of Participation (COP) are payable annually through June 2009.  Interest is 
payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 3.29% to 5.25%.  The certificates of participation are not 
subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities. 

The 1993 Series A refunding special obligations are payable annually through March 2007.  Interest is 
payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.10%.  Obligations maturing in years through 2003 
are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.  Obligations maturing on or after March l, 2004 are subject 
to redemption in whole or in part at the option of the District on or after March 1, 2003.  The obligations 
are also subject to redemption by lot within a maturity at the option of the District on or after March 1, 
2003 on any interest date at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

The District borrowed from the Oregon Department of Energy Small Scale Energy Loan Program (SELP) 
in several increments beginning in 1993 at various interest rates.  The obligations are payable monthly by 
the General Fund.  The payment amounts are based on anticipated savings related to retrofitting and 
other energy conservation measures implemented with the proceeds of the loans.  Such loans are not 
collateralized. 
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In prior fiscal years, the District defeased general obligation and certain advance refunding bonds by 
placing the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on 
the old bonds.  Accordingly, the trusts’ assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in 
the District’s financial statements.  At June 30, 2004, $13,302,228 of bonds outstanding is considered 
defeased. 

In 2000, the District sold Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, Series 2000, with a face amount of $6,052,477, 
and net proceeds of $5,922,379 (after payment of  underwriting and other issuance costs).  Simultaneous 
to this transaction, the District purchased U.S. Treasury “Strip” obligations which will mature in thirteen 
years in the amount of $6,052,477 with a cost of $2,759,464, and placed these investments in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments.  As a result, the 
Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, Series 2000, are considered to be defeased and the liability for those 
bonds is not included in the financial statements. 

The following is a summary of the future annual debt service requirements for long-term obligations. 

Certificates Refunding

Fiscal Year
General 

Obligation Limited Tax
of 

Participation
Special 

Obligations
SELP 
Loans Totals

Principal:
2005 34,675,000$ 2,142,418$         4,375,000$   1,255,000$ 591,819$    43,039,237$      
2006 -               7,627,674           4,555,000     1,320,000   634,050      14,136,724        
2007 -               8,022,111           4,750,000     1,385,000   679,314      14,836,425        
2008 -               9,502,171           4,955,000     -             727,703      15,184,874        
2009 -               9,711,957           5,175,000     -             779,824      15,666,781        
2010-2014 -               58,522,095         -                -             2,229,627   60,751,722        
2015-2019 -               59,276,850         -                -             -             59,276,850        
2020-2024 -               131,537,599       -                -             -             131,537,599      
2025-2029 -               216,285,000       -                -             -             216,285,000      p
Total 34,675,000   502,627,875       23,810,000   3,960,000   5,642,337   570,715,212      

Interest:
2005 1,907,125     18,170,487         1,071,483     198,000      368,565      21,715,660        
2006 -               18,654,643         889,920        135,250      326,334      20,006,147        
2007 -               19,054,769         696,333        69,250        281,070      20,101,422        
2008 -               19,770,328         489,708        -             232,681      20,492,717        
2009 -               20,428,155         271,688        180,560      20,880,403        
2010-2014 -               120,222,496       -                -             246,986      120,469,482      
2015-2019 -               164,569,762       -                -             -             164,569,762      
2020-2024 -               156,541,194       -                -             -             156,541,194      
2025-2029 -               28,842,927         -                -             -             28,842,927        
Interest Total 1,907,125     566,254,761       3,419,132     402,500      1,636,196   573,619,714      
Total Debt 
Service 36,582,125$ 1,068,882,636$  27,229,132$ 4,362,500$ 7,278,533$ 1,144,334,926$ 

NOTE 11 – UNUSED LINE OF CREDIT 

The District maintains a $20 million line of credit with the Oregon Department of Energy Small Scale 
Energy Loan Program to finance energy retrofits in District buildings.  Funds, which are drawn on the line 
of credit at the time that related retrofit costs are incurred, are recorded as proceeds of borrowing in a 
special revenue fund and are repayable from future energy cost savings.  The unused line as of June 30, 
2004 was approximately $11.6 million. 
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NOTE 12 – INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
The District made transfers from the General Fund of $6,891,209 to Debt Service Funds to fund bond 
payment; $9,500,000 to the PERS Rate Stabilization Fund to use for stabilization of fluctuations in PERS 
rates, and; $124,312 to the Student Body Fund and $19,904 to the Cafeteria Fund to disburse vending 
machines commissions. 
 
The composition of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2004, is as follows: 

Transfer In Transfer Out

General Fund -$                  16,535,425$      
Non-major governmental funds 16,535,425        -                    
Total all funds 16,535,425$      16,535,425$      

NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

A.  Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

Plan Description.  The District contributes to two pension plans administered by the Oregon Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS).   The Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF) 
applies to the District’s contribution for qualifying employees who were hired before August 29, 2003, and 
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  The Oregon Public Service Retirement 
Plan (OPSRP) is a hybrid successor plan to the OPERF and consists of two programs:  The Pension 
Program, the defined benefit portion of the plan, applies to qualifying District employees hired after 
August 29, 2003, and to inactive employees who return to employment following a six-month or greater 
break in service.  The Individual Account Program (IAP), the defined contribution portion of the plan, 
applies to all employees’ contributions.  Both PERS plans provide retirement and disability benefits, post 
employment healthcare benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries.  PERS is administered under Oregon Revised Statute Chapter 238, which establishes 
the Public Employees Retirement Board as the governing body of PERS.   PERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  The 
report may be obtained by writing to PERS, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR, 97281-3700 or by calling 503-
598-7377. 

Funding Policy.  Members of PERS are required to contribute 6.00% of their salary covered under the 
plan, which is invested in the OPSRP Individual Account Program.  The District is required by ORS 
238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate for the qualifying employees under the OPERF 
plan, and a general service rate for the qualifying employees under the OPSRP plan.  The OPERF and 
the OPSRP rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2004 were .64% and 8.04% respectively.  The 
contribution requirements for plan members are established by ORS Chapter 238 and may be amended 
by an act of the Oregon Legislature.  The District’s contributions to PERS for the years ending December 
31, 2001, 2002, and 2003 were $32,449,905, $29,155,710 and $20,433,361 respectively, which equaled 
the required contribution for the year.  During 2002-03, the District issued limited tax pension bonds, the 
proceeds of which were used to finance a portion of its estimated unfunded actuarial liability.  (See Note 
10) 

B.  Early Retirement Benefits  

Plan Description.   The District provides a single-employer defined benefit early retirement program for 
its certificated employees, which was established under separate collective bargaining agreements with 
certificated employees.  Certificated employees who are at least 55 years of age with 15 consecutive 
years of service with the District or at any age with 30 years of service and who retire before age 62 are 
eligible for the early retirement benefits.  Eligible employees are entitled to a monthly benefit of $425 to 
$475 commencing on the first month after the retirement.  Benefits are payable up to the earlier of 
attaining age 62 or receiving 60 monthly payments. All financial information relating to the early retirement 
benefits is reported in the General Fund.  The District does not issue a stand-alone financial report. 
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Funding Policy.  The District pays for the benefits without any cost to employees.  The contributions are 
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Therefore, the District is not required to fund the program in advance.  
During fiscal year 2004 the General Fund incurred expenditures of $4,096,633 for early retirement 
benefits.  

C.  Tax Deferred Annuities 

The District provides tax-deferred annuity contracts established under Section 403(b) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

Participation in the program is voluntary. Contributions are made from salary deductions from participating 
employees within the limits specified in the Code. 

NOTE 14 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description.  The District provides a post retirement health and welfare benefits program for 
employees who have retired from the District with a minimum of fifteen consecutive years of service or 
with completion of 30 years of service.  Covered employees under the plan are eligible to receive District- 
paid benefits for up to 60 months or until reaching the age 65, whichever comes first.  The District also 
pays for one-half of the dependent benefit costs during the benefit period.  The program was established 
under separate collective bargaining agreements with certificated and classified employees and by 
precedent for all other District employees. 

Funding Policy. The District pays for the benefits without any cost to employees.  The contributions are 
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Therefore, the District is not required to fund the program in advance.  
During fiscal year 2004 the General Fund recognized expenditures of $3,257,086 for the post-
employment healthcare benefits.  

NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Self-Insurance Fund charges other funds for the costs incurred for workers’ compensation claims, 
general liability claims, and property and fire loss claims. Charges to other funds by the Self-Insurance 
Fund are recognized as revenues in the Self-Insurance Fund and as expenditures/expenses in the fund 
incurring the charges. 

The Self-Insurance Fund recognized the following amounts of revenues from other funds for the year 
ended June 30, 2004. 

General Fund 4,042,564$  
Cafeteria Fund 89,574         
Grant Fund 511,632       
Special Revenue Funds 73,367         
BESC Cafeteria Fund 5,913           
System Project Fund 5,833           
Facilities Improvement/Technology Fund 21,102         
Total 4,749,985$  

 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2000 through June 30, 2004 
were as follows:  

Year Balance Additions Reductions Balance

2000 5,271,835$  3,805,405$  3,384,240$      5,693,000$      
2001 5,693,000    3,231,164    3,231,164        5,693,000        
2002 5,693,000    3,617,617    4,264,617        5,046,000        
2003 5,046,000    4,020,205    4,020,205        5,046,000        
2004 5,046,000    6,710,172    6,942,300        4,813,872        
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NOTE 16 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

• The District has commitments for several capital construction projects to enhance and repair the 
District’s educational facilities. Such commitments will be paid from existing capital projects funds.  
The outstanding commitments for these projects at June 30, 2004 total $5,512,203.  In addition, 
the District has a contract for custodial services extending through July 14, 2005 that will require 
a minimum payment of $9,712,586 after June 30, 2004.   

 
• Additionally, the District has a contract to provide duplication services to various District facilities 

which will require minimum payments of $1,279,087, $1,279,087, $1,279,087 and $1,279,087 in 
the years ending June 30, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. 

 
• The 2003 legislative session passed several bills to effect significant PERS reform.  HB 2003 

eliminates the 6% member contribution, eliminates the guaranteed assumed earnings rates to 
Tier One accounts, and suspends cost-of-living increases for members retiring between 4/1/2000 
and 4/1/2004.  HB 2004 requires PERS to adopt mortality tables every two years.  HB 2020 
establishes the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan for persons hired on or after August 29, 
2003, who have no prior PERS membership.  HB 3020 makes numerous technical corrections to 
PERS statutes to effect the 2003 legislative changes.  

The legality of these changes is currently under review by the Oregon Supreme Court, as 
provided by HB 2409.  If the Court overturns some or all of these new laws, the District could be 
exposed to substantial financial impact.  To mitigate, although not alleviate, this exposure, the 
Board has allocated an additional $8 million from the General Fund to the PERS Rate 
Stabilization Reserve Fund for the year ending June 30, 2005. 

NOTE 17 - REVENUE VOLATILITY 

State Revenue Adjustments 
 
In a special session in June 2002, the Oregon Legislature, in response to an unprecedented shortfall of 
state revenues, passed Senate Bill 1022, which provided modifications to the funding of state schools.  
This bill was modified and clarified by House Bill 2650 in the 2003 regular session of the Legislature.  The 
changes effected by these bills that most significantly impact the District are: 
 
• Decreasing the amount of state school funding. 
• Allowing districts to accrue up to a maximum of $309 per weighted average daily membership 

(ADMw) from the upcoming fiscal year appropriation to the current fiscal year.  This amount was 
capped at $18,471,450 for the District. 

• Providing a formula for future revenues allowed to be accrued to the previous year's revenues. 
 
The authority for this accrual continues unless it is amended by the Legislature. 
 
The District, in its budgetary accounts, reduced its recorded revenue from the State School Fund by 
$17.1 million in the year ended June 30, 2004 because it reversed a receivable in that amount recorded 
in the previous year.  This transaction has no applicability to the financial statements prepared on the  
basis of generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Note 18 – COMPONENT UNITS AND OTHER ACTIVITIES 

The District sponsors three charter schools under the provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes.  The 
students attending these charter schools are primarily District students.  The District is required by ORS 
338.155 and the charters with the schools to provide a percentage of the State’s allocation to these 
schools for each student enrolled in them.  This allocation is 80% for elementary and middle schools and 
95% for high schools of the general purpose grant per ADMw, as calculated by ODE, to the charter 
schools.  Under the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), such 
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 schools are component units of the District.  These charter schools are not reported as component units 
of the District, because they are individually and collectively immaterial to the District’s financial 
statements.  The pass-through of the State School Fund revenue provided to these charter schools is 
included in the expenditures and expenses of the District.  Financial information on the charter schools 
can be obtained by contacting the Office of Educational Options at Portland Public Schools. 

The School District No. 1 Health and Welfare Trust (the Trust”) provides health and welfare benefits for 
District employees who are members of the Portland Association of Teachers (PAT), the Portland 
Federation of Teachers and Classified Employees (PFTCE), and the District Council of Unions (DCU).  
The Trust was established by collective bargaining agreements.  The governing Board of Trustees is 
composed of trustees appointed by management of the District and of each bargaining unit, respectively, 
such that management-designated Trustees and union-designated Trustees have an equal number of 
votes.  The Trust does not meet the criteria of GASB Statements No. 14 or 39 for inclusion in the financial 
statements as a component unit. 

The Portland Schools Foundation is an independent, non-profit organization dedicated to providing 
leadership and funding for excellence, innovation and equity in education for children attending Portland 
Public Schools; engaging students, teachers, parents and the community in support of quality public 
education; and advocating for resources, policies and legislation to improve public schools in Portland.  
The Portland Schools Foundation does not meet the criteria of GASB Statements No. 14 or 39 for 
inclusion in the financial statements as a component unit. 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 136,093,501$ 130,909,747$  135,683,459$ 4,773,712$    
State School Fund 162,983,148   162,983,148    166,519,106   3,535,958      
Local option taxes 17,067,552     22,251,306      17,164,911     (5,086,395)     
County and intermediate sources 63,746,510     63,746,510      49,280,852     (14,465,658)   
State Common School Fund 1,170,000       1,170,000        1,251,379       81,379           
Charges for services 2,808,500       2,808,500        3,578,214       769,714         
Investment earnings 800,000          800,000           844,998          44,998           
Other 5,905,071       5,905,071        5,842,037       (63,034)          
Total revenues 390,574,282   390,574,282    380,164,956   (10,409,326)   

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 162,616,300   159,698,329    152,970,161   6,728,168      
Materials and services 6,002,428       6,476,021        5,458,344       1,017,677      
Total regular programs 168,618,728   166,174,350    158,428,505   7,745,845      

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 50,152,438     47,160,985      46,859,664     301,321         
Materials and services 13,389,631     13,329,462      12,368,909     960,553         
Total special programs 63,542,069     60,490,447      59,228,573     1,261,874      

Total instruction 232,160,797   226,664,797    217,657,078   9,007,719      
Support services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 31,339,562     30,175,733      29,215,061     960,672         
Materials and services 2,654,896       2,721,347        1,177,282       1,544,065      
Total students 33,994,458     32,897,080      30,392,343     2,504,737      

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 9,814,622       9,392,902        9,161,817       231,085         
Materials and services 2,110,353       2,536,594        1,429,328       1,107,266      
Total instructional staff 11,924,975     11,929,496      10,591,145     1,338,351      

General administration:
Salaries and benefits 1,695,927       1,855,351        1,612,942       242,409         
Materials and services 1,219,728       1,380,190        2,713,046       (1,332,856)     
Total general administration 2,915,655       3,235,541        4,325,988       (1,090,447)     

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 27,214,870     26,300,081      25,240,649     1,059,432      
Materials and services 569,899          225,085           121,193          103,892         
Total school administration 27,784,769     26,525,166      25,361,842     1,163,324      
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support services (continued):
Business:

Salaries and benefits 17,842,425     17,229,974      16,616,373     613,601         
Materials and services 36,005,692     36,178,348      34,343,589     1,834,759      
Total business 53,848,117     53,408,322      50,959,962     2,448,360      

Central:
Salaries and benefits 10,399,313     9,726,866        8,556,933       1,169,933      
Materials and services 3,398,750       4,039,566        4,971,463       (931,897)        
Total central 13,798,063     13,766,432      13,528,396     238,036         

Facilities acquisition  & construction:
Materials and services -                  -                  943,391          (943,391)        
Total facilities acquisition  & construction -                  -                  943,391          (943,391)        

Total support services 144,266,037   141,762,037    136,103,067   5,658,970      
Other expenditures:

Debt Service
Principal 960,384          552,243           552,243          -                 
Interest 275,000          683,141           431,441          251,700         

Total debt service 1,235,384       1,235,384        983,684          251,700         
Total current expenditures 377,662,218   369,662,218    354,743,829   14,918,389    

Operating contingency 7,000,000       7,000,000        -                  7,000,000      
Total expenditures 384,662,218   376,662,218    354,743,829   21,918,389    

Excess of revenues over expenditures 5,912,064       13,912,064      25,421,127     11,509,063    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (16,535,425)    76,639           
Proceeds from the sale of property -                  -                  756,800          756,800         

Total other financing sources and (uses) (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (15,778,625)    833,439         
Net change in fund balance (2,700,000)      (2,700,000)      9,642,502       12,342,502    

Fund balance - beginning of year 2,700,000       2,700,000        3,548,452       848,452         
Fund balance  - end of year -$                -$                13,190,954$   13,190,954$  

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control

39



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
County and Intermediate sources 5,004,744$   772,407$      892,796$      120,389$        
Federal and state support 45,088,181   54,350,975   49,599,419   (4,751,556)     
Other 740,833        710,380        678,424        (31,956)          

Total revenues 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   (4,663,123)     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 5,591,524     5,381,681     4,650,142     731,539          
Materials and services 1,305,996     1,990,105     1,912,114     77,991            
Total regular programs 6,897,520     7,371,786     6,562,256     809,530          

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 22,612,064   22,336,624   20,159,646   2,176,978       
Materials and services 3,136,812     5,410,478     4,894,156     516,322          
Total special programs 25,748,876   27,747,102   25,053,802   2,693,300       

Summer school programs:
Salaries and benefits -                7,421            36,627          (29,206)          
Materials and services -                20,091          22,330          (2,239)            
Total summer school programs -                27,512          58,957          (31,445)          

Total instruction 32,646,396   35,146,400   31,675,015   3,471,385       
Support Services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 4,069,283     3,803,527     3,311,420     492,107          
Materials and services 2,069,248     1,751,518     2,052,646     (301,128)        
Total students 6,138,531     5,555,045     5,364,066     190,979          

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 5,874,609     8,527,234     6,252,245     2,274,989       
Materials and services 2,992,095     1,520,686     3,156,573     (1,635,887)     
Total instructional staff 8,866,704     10,047,920   9,408,818     639,102          

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 176,165        921,692        645,868        275,824          
Materials and services 140,003        84,913          459,163        (374,250)        
Total school administration 316,168        1,006,605     1,105,031     (98,426)          

Business:
Salaries and benefits 23,222          79,784          70,809          8,975              
Materials and services 57,869          118,538        110,659        7,879              
Total business 81,091          198,322        181,468        16,854            

40



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support Services (continued):
Central:

Salaries and benefits 366,273        1,582,495     756,204        826,291          
Materials and services 1,179,371     557,751        1,259,938     (702,187)        
Total central 1,545,644     2,140,246     2,016,142     124,104          

Total support services 16,948,138   18,948,138   18,075,525   872,613          
Enterprise and Community Services:

Food Services:
Materials and services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            
Total food services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            

Community Services:
Salaries and benefits 932,280        1,344,924     885,785        459,139          
Materials and services 87,499          42,820          240,079        (197,259)        
Total community services 1,019,779     1,387,744     1,125,864     261,880          

Total enterprise and community services: 1,239,224     1,739,224     1,420,099     319,125          

Total current expenditures 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   4,663,123       

Excess of revenues over expenditures -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance - beginning of year -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance  - end of year -$              -$              -$              -$               

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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COMBINING STATEMENTS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Student Body Activities
Accounts for the receipts and disbursements of funds by schools for each school's activities. Principal
revenue sources are donations, fund raisers, individual support from PTA's and booster clubs, sales in
student stores, and club dues.

Cafeteria
Accounts for revenues and expenditures of the District's food service programs. Principal revenue
sources are cash sales and federal subsidies under the National School Lunch and Breakfast
Programs.

PERS Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund
Accounts for the reserves needed to help minimize large fluctuations in the PERS rate assesed on
salaries and wages to repay the PERS unfunded actuarial liability borrowing relative to the District's
participation in the Oregon School Boards Association Pension Bond Program. Sole revenue source is
operating transfers from the General Fund.

Special Revenue
Accounts for revenues and expenditures of special revenue restricted for specific projects. Principal
revenue sources are state grants, foundations, charges to participants, and donations.

BESC Cafeteria
Accounts for the operations of the employee cafeteria in the Blanchard Education Service Center. The
primary source of revenues is the sale of meals.

Debt Service Funds

System Project Debt Service
Accounts for the debt service payments for the 1999 Certificates of Participation. The certificates were
issued to finance the implementation process and purchase of equipment upgrades relating to the
computer systems used for financial and student information as well as for instructional applications in
the classroom.  The principal funding source is operating transfers from the General Fund.

Blanchard Education Service Center Special Obligation Debt Service
Accounts for the debt service payments for the 1993 Series A refunding special obligation bonds. The
bonds were issued to refund the lease obligations for the Blanchard Education Service Center. The
principal funding source is operating transfers from the General Fund.

Bond Sinking
Accounts for the debt service payments of the 1998 and 2004 limited tax general obligation refunding
bonds.  The principal funding source is property taxes.

General Obligation Bond Debt Service
Accounts for the debt service payments of the 1995 and 1996 series general obligation bonds. The
bonds were issued to finance construction of a new elementary school, acquisition and installation of
computer software and hardware in classrooms, major renovations and priority building repairs of the
District's facilities, including Americans with Disabilities Act and safety requirements. The principal
funding source is property taxes.

Special revenue funds are used to account for certain revenues that are restricted to expenditures for designated
purposes.

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of long-term
debt principal, interest, and related costs.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet by Fund Types
June 30, 2004

Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor

Special Revenue Debt Service
Funds Funds Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 19,939,125$      33,900$            19,973,025$   
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agents -                    412,394            412,394          
Investments -                    1,581,615         1,581,615       
Accounts and other receivables 1,868,069          -                    1,868,069       
Property and other taxes receivable -                    1,887,359         1,887,359       
Due from other funds 600,000             -                    600,000          
Inventories 632,464             -                    632,464          

Total assets 23,039,658$      3,915,268$       26,954,926$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 523,371$           13,335$            536,706$        
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits payable 1,634,022          -                    1,634,022       
Deferred revenues -                    1,645,488         1,645,488       

Total liabilities 2,157,393          1,658,823         3,816,216       

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved 20,882,265        2,256,445         23,138,710     

Total liabilities and fund balances 23,039,658$      3,915,268$       26,954,926$   

43



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2004

PERS
Rate

Student Body Stabilization Special BESC
Activities Cafeteria Reserve Revenue Cafeteria

Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,728,032$  799,266$    11,300,000$ 5,085,068$ 26,759$ 19,939,125$ 
Accounts and other receivables 89,726         984,512      -                783,288      10,543   1,868,069     
Due from other funds 600,000       -              -                -              -         600,000        
Inventories -              612,963      -                -              19,501   632,464        

Total assets 3,417,758$  2,396,741$ 11,300,000$ 5,868,356$ 56,803$ 23,039,658$ 

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other 

current liabilities 161,825$     240,554$    -$              107,927$    13,065$ 523,371$      
Accrued salaries, wages and

benefits payable -              654,012      -                941,094      38,916   1,634,022     
Total liabilities 161,825       894,566      -                1,049,021   51,981   2,157,393     

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved 3,255,933    1,502,175   11,300,000   4,819,335   4,822     20,882,265   

Total liabilities
   and fund balances 3,417,758$  2,396,741$ 11,300,000$ 5,868,356$ 56,803$ 23,039,658$
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2004

BESC General
System Special Obligation
Project Obligation Bond Bond

Debt Service Debt Service Sinking Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents -$             -$             33,900$        -$             33,900$        
Cash and cash equivalents

with fiscal agents -               -               107,925        304,469       412,394        
Investments -               -               88,128          1,493,487    1,581,615     
Property and other taxes receivable -               -               72,341          1,815,018    1,887,359     

Total assets -$             -$             302,294$      3,612,974$  3,915,268$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other 

current liabilities -$             -$             13,335$        -$             13,335$        
Deferred revenues -               -               -               1,645,488    1,645,488     

Total liabilities -               -               13,335          1,645,488    1,658,823     

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved -               -               288,959        1,967,486    2,256,445     

Total liabilities
   and fund balances -$            -$            302,294$     3,612,974$  3,915,268$  
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances by Fund Types
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor

Special Revenue Debt Service
Funds Funds Total

REVENUES
Property and other taxes -$                  45,672,830$ 45,672,830$   
Federal and state support 9,591,757          -                9,591,757       
County and Intermediate sources 631,982             631,982          
Charges for services 6,071,957          -                6,071,957       
Extracurricular activities 7,259,049          7,259,049       
Investment earnings -                    222,452        222,452          
Other 3,364,370          -                3,364,370       

Total revenues 26,919,115        45,895,282   72,814,397     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction
Regular programs 10,299,398        -                10,299,398     
Special programs 1,307,392          -                1,307,392       
Summer school programs 274,584             -                274,584          
Total instruction 11,881,374        -                11,881,374     

Support services:
Students 378,031             -                378,031          
Instructional staff 848,343             -                848,343          
General administration 14,050               -                14,050            
School administration 459,418             -                459,418          
Business 434,625             -                434,625          
Central 25,589               -                25,589            
Total suport services 2,160,056          -                2,160,056       

Enterprise and community services:
Food services 12,848,383        -                12,848,383     
Community services 13,828               -                13,828            
Total enterprise and community services 12,862,211        -                12,862,211     

Debt Service:
Principal -                    46,980,000   46,980,000     
Interest and fiscal charges -                    6,131,538     6,131,538       
Bond issuance cost -                    110,568        110,568          
Total debt service -                    53,222,106   53,222,106     

Total current expenditures 26,903,641        53,222,106   80,125,747     
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 15,474               (7,326,824)    (7,311,350)      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 9,644,216          6,891,209     16,535,425     
Bond proceeds -                    11,900,000   11,900,000     
Bond advance refunding principal -                    (11,325,000)  (11,325,000)    
Bond advance refunding interest -                    (517,867)       (517,867)         

Total other financing sources (uses) 9,644,216          6,948,342     16,592,558     
Net change in fund balances 9,659,690          (378,482)       9,281,208       

Fund balances - beginning of year 11,222,575      2,634,927   13,857,502     
Fund balances  - end of year 20,882,265$     2,256,445$  23,138,710$   
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2004

PERS
Rate

Student Body Stabilization Special BESC
Activities Cafeteria Reserve Revenue Cafeteria

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
REVENUES
Federal and state support -$            9,562,982$ -$              28,775$      -$          9,591,757$   
County and Intermediate sources -              -              -                631,982      -            631,982        
Charges for services -              3,421,964   -                2,109,816   540,177    6,071,957     
Extracurricular activities 7,259,049   -              -                -              -            7,259,049     
Other -              29,194        -                3,335,176   -            3,364,370     

Total revenues 7,259,049   13,014,140 -                6,105,749   540,177    26,919,115   

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:

Instruction
Regular programs 7,380,361   -              -                2,919,037   -            10,299,398   
Special programs -              -              -                1,307,392   -            1,307,392     
Summer school programs -              -              -                274,584      -            274,584        
Total instruction 7,380,361   -              -                4,501,013   -            11,881,374   

Support services:
Students -              -              -                378,031      -            378,031        
Instructional staff -              -              -                848,343      -            848,343        
General administration -              -              -                14,050        -            14,050          
School administration -              -              -                459,418      -            459,418        
Business -              -              -                434,625      -            434,625        
Central -              -              -                25,589        -            25,589          
Total suport services -              -              -                2,160,056   -            2,160,056     

Enterprise and community services:
Food services -              12,303,329 -                -              545,054    12,848,383   
Community services -              -              -                13,828        -            13,828          
Total enterprise and 

community services -              12,303,329 -                13,828        545,054    12,862,211   
Total current expenditures 7,380,361   12,303,329 -                6,674,897   545,054    26,903,641   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (121,312)     710,811      -                (569,148)     (4,877)       15,474          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 124,312      19,904        9,500,000     -              -            9,644,216     

Total other financing sources 124,312      19,904        9,500,000     -              -            9,644,216     

Net change in fund balances 3,000          730,715      9,500,000     (569,148)     (4,877)       9,659,690     

Fund balances - beginning of year 3,252,933   771,460      1,800,000     5,388,483   9,699        11,222,575   
Fund balances - end of year 3,255,933$ 1,502,175$ 11,300,000$ 4,819,335$ 4,822$      20,882,265$ 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2004

BESC General
System Special Obligation
Project Obligation Bond Bond

Debt Service Debt Service Sinking Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

REVENUES
Property and other taxes -$          -$           11,832,046$ 33,840,784$ 45,672,830$ 
Investment earnings -            -            53,382         169,070        222,452        

Total revenues -             -              11,885,428    34,009,854    45,895,282    

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 4,205,000  1,200,000 10,875,000  30,700,000  46,980,000   
Interest and fiscal charges 1,239,682  253,200    1,196,531    3,442,125    6,131,538     
Bond issuance costs -            -            110,568       -                110,568        

Total expenditures 5,444,682  1,453,200   12,182,099    34,142,125    53,222,106    
Excess of expenditures over revenues (5,444,682) (1,453,200)  (296,671)        (132,271)        (7,326,824)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 5,438,009  1,453,200   -                 -                 6,891,209      
Bond proceeds -             -              11,900,000    -                 11,900,000    
Bond advance refunding principal -             -              (11,325,000)   -                 (11,325,000)   
Bond advance refunding interest -             -              (517,867)        -                 (517,867)        

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,438,009  1,453,200   57,133           -                 6,948,342      
Net change in fund balances (6,673)        -              (239,538)        (132,271)        (378,482)        

Fund balances - beginning of year 6,673         -              528,497         2,099,757      2,634,927      
Fund balances - end of year -$           -$            288,959$       1,967,486$    2,256,445$    
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

49



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 136,093,501$  130,909,747$  135,683,459$  4,773,712$    
State School Fund 162,983,148    162,983,148    166,519,106    3,535,958      
Local option taxes 17,067,552      22,251,306      17,164,911      (5,086,395)     
County and intermediate sources 63,746,510      63,746,510      49,280,852      (14,465,658)   
State Common School Fund 1,170,000        1,170,000        1,251,379        81,379           
Charges for services 2,808,500        2,808,500        3,578,214        769,714         
Investment earnings 800,000           800,000           844,998           44,998           
Other 5,905,071        5,905,071        5,842,037        (63,034)          
Total revenues 390,574,282    390,574,282    380,164,956    (10,409,326)   

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 162,616,300    159,698,329    152,970,161    6,728,168      
Materials and services 6,002,428        6,476,021        5,458,344        1,017,677      
Total regular programs 168,618,728    166,174,350    158,428,505    7,745,845      

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 50,152,438      47,160,985      46,859,664      301,321         
Materials and services 13,389,631      13,329,462      12,368,909      960,553         
Total special programs 63,542,069      60,490,447      59,228,573      1,261,874      

Total instruction 232,160,797    226,664,797    217,657,078    9,007,719      
Support services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 31,339,562      30,175,733      29,215,061      960,672         
Materials and services 2,654,896        2,721,347        1,177,282        1,544,065      
Total students 33,994,458      32,897,080      30,392,343      2,504,737      

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 9,814,622        9,392,902        9,161,817        231,085         
Materials and services 2,110,353        2,536,594        1,429,328        1,107,266      
Total instructional staff 11,924,975      11,929,496      10,591,145      1,338,351      

General administration:
Salaries and benefits 1,695,927        1,855,351        1,612,942        242,409         
Materials and services 1,219,728        1,380,190        2,713,046        (1,332,856)     
Total general administration 2,915,655        3,235,541        4,325,988        (1,090,447)     

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 27,214,870      26,300,081      25,240,649      1,059,432      
Materials and services 569,899           225,085           121,193           103,892         
Total school administration 27,784,769      26,525,166      25,361,842      1,163,324      
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support services (continued):
Business:

Salaries and benefits 17,842,425      17,229,974      16,616,373      613,601         
Materials and services 36,005,692      36,178,348      34,343,589      1,834,759      
Total business 53,848,117      53,408,322      50,959,962      2,448,360      

Central:
Salaries and benefits 10,399,313      9,726,866        8,556,933        1,169,933      
Materials and services 3,398,750        4,039,566        4,971,463        (931,897)        
Total central 13,798,063      13,766,432      13,528,396      238,036         

Facilities acquisition  & construction:
Materials and services -                  -                  943,391           (943,391)        
Total facilities acquisition  & construction -                  -                  943,391           (943,391)        

Total support services 144,266,037    141,762,037    136,103,067    5,658,970      
Other expenditures:

Debt Service
Principal 960,384           552,243           552,243           -                 
Interest 275,000           683,141           431,441           251,700         

Total debt service 1,235,384        1,235,384        983,684           251,700         
Total current expenditures 377,662,218    369,662,218    354,743,829    14,918,389    

Operating contingency 7,000,000        7,000,000        -                  7,000,000      
Total expenditures 384,662,218    376,662,218    354,743,829    21,918,389    

Excess of revenues over expenditures 5,912,064        13,912,064      25,421,127      11,509,063    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (16,535,425)    76,639           
Proceeds from the sale of property -                  -                  756,800           756,800         

Total other financing sources and (uses) (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (15,778,625)    833,439         
Net change in fund balance (2,700,000)      (2,700,000)      9,642,502        12,342,502    

Fund balance  - beginning of year 2,700,000        2,700,000        3,548,452        848,452         
Fund balance  - end of year -$                -$                13,190,954$    13,190,954$  

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Student Body Activity Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Extracurricular activities 7,500,000$     7,500,000$     7,259,049$     (240,951)$       

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs

Materials and services 8,186,681       8,186,681       7,380,361       806,320          

Excess of expenditures over revenues (686,681)         (686,681)         (121,312)         565,369          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 186,681          186,681          124,312          (62,369)           

Net change in fund balance (500,000)         (500,000)         3,000              503,000          
Fund balance - beginning of year 3,500,000       3,500,000       3,252,933       (247,067)         
Fund balance  - end of year 3,000,000$     3,000,000$     3,255,933$     255,933$        

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Cafeteria Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 4,353,302$     4,353,302$     3,421,964$     (931,338)$       
Federal and state support 10,067,920     10,067,920     9,562,982       (504,938)         
Other -                  -                  29,194            29,194            

Total revenues 14,421,222     14,421,222     13,014,140     (1,407,082)      

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Enterprise and Community Services:
Food services:

Salaries and benefits 7,183,946       7,236,780       6,495,539       741,241          
Materials and services 6,992,874       6,940,040       5,807,790       1,132,250       

Total food services 14,176,820     14,176,820     12,303,329     1,873,491       

Excess of revenues over expenditures 244,402          244,402          710,811          466,409          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 27,500            27,500            19,904            (7,596)             

Net change in fund balance 271,902          271,902          730,715          458,813          
Fund balance - beginning of year 200,000          200,000          771,460          571,460          
Fund balance  - end of year 471,902$        471,902$        1,502,175$     1,030,273$     

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
County and Intermediate sources 5,004,744$   772,407$      892,796$      120,389$        
Federal and state support 45,088,181   54,350,975   49,599,419   (4,751,556)     
Other 740,833        710,380        678,424        (31,956)          

Total revenues 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   (4,663,123)     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 5,591,524     5,381,681     4,650,142     731,539          
Materials and services 1,305,996     1,990,105     1,912,114     77,991            
Total regular programs 6,897,520     7,371,786     6,562,256     809,530          

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 22,612,064   22,336,624   20,159,646   2,176,978       
Materials and services 3,136,812     5,410,478     4,894,156     516,322          
Total special programs 25,748,876   27,747,102   25,053,802   2,693,300       

Summer school programs:
Salaries and benefits -                7,421            36,627          (29,206)          
Materials and services -                20,091          22,330          (2,239)            
Total summer school programs -                27,512          58,957          (31,445)          

Total instruction 32,646,396   35,146,400   31,675,015   3,471,385       
Support Services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 4,069,283     3,803,527     3,311,420     492,107          
Materials and services 2,069,248     1,751,518     2,052,646     (301,128)        
Total students 6,138,531     5,555,045     5,364,066     190,979          

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 5,874,609     8,527,234     6,252,245     2,274,989       
Materials and services 2,992,095     1,520,686     3,156,573     (1,635,887)     
Total instructional staff 8,866,704     10,047,920   9,408,818     639,102          

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 176,165        921,692        645,868        275,824          
Materials and services 140,003        84,913          459,163        (374,250)        
Total school administration 316,168        1,006,605     1,105,031     (98,426)          

Business:
Salaries and benefits 23,222          79,784          70,809          8,975              
Materials and services 57,869          118,538        110,659        7,879              
Total business 81,091          198,322        181,468        16,854            
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support Services (continued):
Central:

Salaries and benefits 366,273        1,582,495     756,204        826,291          
Materials and services 1,179,371     557,751        1,259,938     (702,187)        
Total central 1,545,644     2,140,246     2,016,142     124,104          

Total support services 16,948,138   18,948,138   18,075,525   872,613          
Enterprise and Community Services:

Food Services:
Materials and services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            
Total food services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            

Community Services:
Salaries and benefits 932,280        1,344,924     885,785        459,139          
Materials and services 87,499          42,820          240,079        (197,259)        
Total community services 1,019,779     1,387,744     1,125,864     261,880          

Total enterprise and community services: 1,239,224     1,739,224     1,420,099     319,125          

Total current expenditures 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   4,663,123       

Excess of revenues over expenditures -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance - beginning of year -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance  - end of year -$              -$              -$              -$               

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
PERS Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund

Schedule of Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 1,500,000$   9,500,000$     9,500,000$    -$              

Net change in fund balance 1,500,000     9,500,000       9,500,000      -                
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,800,000     1,800,000       1,800,000      -                
Fund balance - end of year 3,300,000$   11,300,000$   11,300,000$  -$              

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
County and Intermediate sources 1,434,956$    1,440,056$    631,982$       (808,074)$      
Federal and state support 282,350         282,350         28,775           (253,575)        
Charges for services 1,828,406      1,828,406      2,109,816      281,410         
Other 2,734,188      2,729,088      3,335,176      606,088         

Total revenues 6,279,900      6,279,900      6,105,749      (174,151)        

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 3,171,748      3,063,307      2,527,305      536,002         
Materials and services 710,913         819,354         391,732         427,622         
Total regular programs 3,882,661      3,882,661      2,919,037      963,624         

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 1,396,407      2,090,927      1,203,742      887,185         
Materials and services 1,151,596      457,076         103,650         353,426         
Total special programs 2,548,003      2,548,003      1,307,392      1,240,611      

Summer school programs:
Salaries and benefits 271,830         288,745         248,807         39,938           
Materials and services 11,251           (5,664)            25,777           (31,441)          
Total summer school programs 283,081         283,081         274,584         8,497             

Total instruction 6,713,745      6,713,745      4,501,013      2,212,732      
Support Services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 475,613         357,236         248,146         109,090         
Materials and services 38,193           156,570         129,885         26,685           
Total students 513,806         513,806         378,031         135,775         

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 961,243         801,440         536,197         265,243         
Materials and services 419,691         579,494         312,146         267,348         
Total instructional staff 1,380,934      1,380,934      848,343         532,591         

General administration:
Salaries and benefits 65,397           7,000             8,535             (1,535)            
Materials and services -                 58,397           5,515             52,882           
Total general administration 65,397           65,397           14,050           51,347           

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 410,436         229,901         368,566         (138,665)        
Materials and services 229,057         409,592         90,852           318,740         
Total school administration 639,493         639,493         459,418         180,075         

57



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
 Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support Services (continued):
Business:

Materials and services 409,961         409,961         434,625         (24,664)          
Central:

Materials and services 6,473             6,473             25,589           (19,116)          
Total support services 3,016,064    3,016,064    2,160,056    856,008         

Enterprise and Community Services:
Community Services:

Salaries and benefits -                 11,818           13,678           (1,860)            
Materials and services 50,091           38,273           150                38,123           
Total community services 50,091         50,091         13,828         36,263          

Total current expenditures 9,779,900      9,779,900      6,674,897      3,105,003      
Excess of expenditures over revenues (3,500,000)     (3,500,000)     (569,148)        2,930,852      

Fund balance - beginning of year 3,500,000      3,500,000      5,388,483      1,888,483      
Fund balance - end of year -$               -$               4,819,335$    4,819,335$    

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
BESC Cafeteria Fund

Budgeted As: Blanchard Education Service Center Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 558,085$         558,085$         540,177$         (17,908)$         

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Enterprise and Community Services:
Food services:

Salaries and benefits 288,163           346,495           367,280           (20,785)           

Materials and services 257,077           198,745           177,774           20,971            

Total food services 545,240           545,240           545,054           186                 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 12,845             12,845             (4,877)             (17,722)           

Fund balance - beginning of year 10,000             10,000             9,699               (301)                
Fund balance - end of year 22,845$           22,845$           4,822$             (18,023)$         

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
System Project Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 4,205,000$   4,205,000$   4,205,000$   -$              
Interest and fiscal charges 1,240,183     1,240,183     1,239,682     (501)              

Total expenditures 5,445,183     5,445,183     5,444,682     (501)              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 5,444,683     5,444,683     5,438,009     (6,674)           

Net change in fund balances (500)              (500)              (6,673)           (6,173)           
Fund balance - beginning of year 7,580            7,580            6,673            (907)              
Fund balance - end of year 7,080$          7,080$          -$              (7,080)$         

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
BESC Special Obligation Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 1,200,000$    1,200,000$    1,200,000$    -$               
Interest and fiscal charges 253,200         253,200         253,200         -                 

Total expenditures 1,453,200      1,453,200      1,453,200      -                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 1,453,200      1,453,200      1,453,200      -                 

Net change in fund balances -                 -                 -                 -                 
Fund balance - beginning of year -                 -                 -                 -                 
Fund balance - end of year -$               -$               -$               -$               

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Bond Sinking Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 11,992,225$  11,992,225$  11,832,046$  (160,179)$      
Investment earnings 71,800           71,800           53,382           (18,418)          

Total revenues 12,064,025    12,064,025    11,885,428    (178,597)        

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 10,875,000    10,875,000    10,875,000    -                 
Interest and fiscal charges 1,271,563      1,271,063      1,196,531      74,532           
Bond issuance costs -                 -                 110,568         (110,568)        

Total expenditures 12,146,563    12,146,063    12,182,099    (36,036)          *
Excess of expenditures over revenues (82,538)          (82,038)          (296,671)        (214,633)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds -                 -                 11,900,000    11,900,000    
Bond advance refunding principal -                 -                 (11,325,000)   (11,325,000)   *
Bond advance refunding interest -                 -                 (517,867)        (517,867)        *

Total other financing sources (USES) -                 -                 57,133           57,133           
Net change in fund balance (82,538)          (82,038)          (239,538)        (157,500)        

Fund balance  - beginning of year 150,000         150,000         528,497         378,497         
Fund balance - end of year 67,462$         67,962$         288,959$       220,997$       

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control

*Debt Service expenditures, while in excess of appropriation, are not out of compliance with Oregon Budget Law.
According to ORS 294.326 expenditures of the proceeds of advance refunding bonds, such as for bond issuance
costs, are allowed exceptions under local budget law.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 33,811,750$  33,811,750$  33,840,784$  29,034$         
Investment earnings 199,000         199,000         169,070         (29,930)          

Total revenues 34,010,750    34,010,750    34,009,854    (896)               

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 30,700,000    30,700,000    30,700,000    -                 
Interest 3,443,625      3,442,125      3,442,125      -                 

Total expenditures 34,143,625    34,142,125    34,142,125    -                 
Excess of expenditures over revenues (132,875)        (131,375)        (132,271)        (896)               

Fund balance  - beginning of year 230,000         230,000         2,099,757      1,869,757      
Fund balance - end of year 97,125$         98,625$         1,967,486$    1,868,861$    

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
System Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Investment earnings 20,834$        20,834$        37,227$        16,393$        

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Central:

Salaries and benefits 331,187        331,187        328,931        2,256            
Materials and services 816,181        940,917        793,922        146,995        

Total Support Services 1,147,368     1,272,104     1,122,853     149,251        
Facilities Acquisition  & Construction:

Materials and services 100,000        100,000        77,910          22,090          
Total current expenditures 1,247,368     1,372,104     1,200,763     171,341        
Excess of expenditures over revenues (1,226,534)    (1,351,270)    (1,163,536)    187,734        
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,226,534     1,835,765     1,835,765     -                
Fund balance - end of year -$              484,495$      672,229$      187,734$      

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Facilities Improvement/Technology Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Investment earnings 174,497$      174,497$      607,583$      433,086$     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Instructional staff:

Materials and services 770,700        770,700        490,713        279,987       
Business:

Materials and services 1,000            1,000            11,020          (10,020)        
Central:

Materials and services 871,771        871,771        143,932        727,839       
Total support services 1,643,471     1,643,471     645,665        997,806       

Facilities Acquisition  & Construction:
Salaries and benefits 429,468        392,329        399,621        (7,292)          
Materials and services 7,836,211     7,873,350     6,573,380     1,299,970    

Total Facilities Acquisition  & Construction: 8,265,679     8,265,679     6,973,001     1,292,678    
Total expenditures 9,909,150     9,909,150     7,618,666     2,290,484    

Excess of expenditures over revenues (9,734,653)    (9,734,653)    (7,011,083)    2,723,570    
Fund balance - beginning of year 15,595,290   15,595,290   16,041,441   446,151       
Fund balance - end of year 5,860,637$   5,860,637$   9,030,358$   3,169,721$  

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Facilities Improvement II Fund

Budgeted As: Facilities Improvement II/Technology Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Investment earnings 72,931$        72,931$        39,904$        (33,027)$       

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Business:

Materials and services 2,500            2,500            2,500            -                
Facilities Acquisition  & Construction:

Salaries and benefits -                -                6,685            (6,685)           
Materials and services 5,435,869     5,435,869     2,119,892     3,315,977     

Total Facilities Acquisition  & Construction: 5,435,869     5,435,869     2,126,577     3,309,292     
Total expenditures 5,438,369     5,438,369     2,129,077     3,309,292     

Excess of expenditures over revenues (5,365,438)    (5,365,438)    (2,089,173)    3,276,265     
Fund balance - beginning of year 5,365,438     5,365,438     5,351,374     (14,064)         
Fund balance - end of year -$              -$              3,262,201$   3,262,201$   

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Self-Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 4,664,408$   5,001,602$   4,749,985$   (251,617)$     
Investments 55,000          55,000          34,110          (20,890)         
Insurance recoveries -                2,271,586     2,051,386     (220,200)       
Other 25,000          25,000          28,109          3,109            

Total revenues 4,744,408     7,353,188     6,863,590     (489,598)       

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Salaries and benefits 477,109        477,109        348,267        128,842        
Materials and services 392,500        392,500        193,000        199,500        
Claims expense 4,306,000     6,860,585     6,710,172     150,413        

Total expenditures 5,175,609     7,730,194     7,251,439     478,755        
Excess of expenditures over revenues (431,201)       (377,006)       (387,849)       (10,843)         
Fund balance - beginning of year 964,200        627,006        627,006        -                
Fund balance - end of year 532,999$      250,000$      239,157        (10,843)$       
Less salaries and benefits accrued under GAAP (8,660)           
Retained earnings at end of year, GAAP basis 230,497$      

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule By Source
June 30, 2004

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land 9,049,378$       
Buildings and site improvements 295,611,876     
Vehciles and equipment 24,263,531       
Construction in progress 14,764,671       

Total governmental funds capital assets 343,689,456$   

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:
General fund 146,375,144$   
Special Revenue funds 903,412            
Capital Projects funds 196,410,900     

Total governmental funds capital assets 343,689,456$   
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule By Function and Activity
June 30, 2004

Buildings Vehicles
and Site and Construction

Function and Activity Land Improvements Equipment in Progress Total

General government:
Instruction 7,041,878$  270,062,445$  537,571$       14,764,671$  292,406,565$  
Supporting services 2,007,500    25,549,431      23,401,000    -                 50,957,931      
Food services -              -                   324,960         -                 324,960           

Total governmental 
funds capital assets 9,049,378$  295,611,876$  24,263,531$  14,764,671$  343,689,456$  
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Capital Funds Capital

Assets Assets
Function and Activity July 1, 2003 Additions Deductions June 30, 2004

General government
Instruction 275,777,512$  31,648,872$ 15,019,819$ 292,406,565$  
Supporting services 50,270,544      939,665        252,278        50,957,931      
Food services 210,398           114,562        -                324,960           

Total governmental funds capital assets 326,258,454$  32,703,099$ 15,272,097$ 343,689,456$  
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 
Management’s Discussion And Analysis 

 
As management of the School District No.1, Multnomah County, Oregon (Portland Public Schools or the 
District), we offer readers this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Portland Public 
Schools for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found on pages i-vi of this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
♦ The net assets of Portland Public Schools in the government-wide financial statements were 

$206,456,911.  Of this amount, $156,010,883 was invested in capital assets, net of related debt and the 
remainder, $50,446,028, is technically considered unreserved, but the District has $12,964,788 committed 
to debt-financed programs. 

♦ At June 30, 2004, the General Fund had an unreserved fund balance of $13.2 million, an increase of 
$26.7 million from June 30, 2003.  This increase is attributable to aggressive District efforts to hold down 
costs; significant increases in State School Fund payments, as the State front loaded the funding 
distribution into this first year of the state’s biennium; and significant additional revenue from the State in 
the current year from its reconciliation of the prior year. 

♦ In accordance with Oregon Budget Law and Senate Bill 1022, the 2002-03 non-GAAP budgetary financial 
statements for the General Fund included $17.1 million of accrued State School Fund revenue.  Such an 
accrual was not necessary for the 2003-04 fiscal year, given the increase of revenues over expenditures 
and was reversed. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Portland Public Schools’ basic 
financial statements.  The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.  This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
District’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Portland Public Schools is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, 
and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all 
or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  As is typical for a 
school district, Portland Public Schools has governmental activities, which include instruction, supporting 
services, facilities, food services, community service, and debt service.  Portland Public Schools currently does 
not have any business-type activities. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 13 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements are designed to demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities and objectives.  All of the funds of the Portland Public Schools can be divided 
into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

 2



 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of available 
resources, as well as on balances of available resources at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
Portland Public Schools designates five major governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Grant Fund, and three capital projects funds, all of which 
are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other nine governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in 
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
Portland Public Schools adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its funds.  A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for each fund individually in supplementary information to demonstrate 
compliance with their budgets. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-18 of this report. 
 
Proprietary funds are used to account for a government’s business-type activities.  The District maintains only 
one type of proprietary fund, which is an internal service fund. 
 
Internal service funds are accounting devices used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among various 
functions.  The District uses an internal service fund to account for its Self-Insurance activities.  Because 
Portland Public Schools has no business-type functions, this service benefits governmental functions and has 
been included within the governmental activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. 
 
Internal service funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements.  The 
internal service fund financial statements provide separate information for the Self-Insurance Fund, which is 
considered to be a major fund of Portland Public Schools. 
 
The basic internal service fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the 
basic financial statements can be found on pages 22-36 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) is located directly after the notes to the basic financial 
statements and represent the required comparison of the budget and actual results on the District’s budgetary 
basis for the General Fund and the only major special revenue fund, the Grant Fund.  This information is on 
pages 39–42. 
 
The Combining Statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are 
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  Combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules can be found on pages 44-49 of this report. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
Net assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s financial 
position.  In the case of Portland Public Schools, assets exceeded liabilities by $206,456,911 at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year. 
 

Change
2003 2004 2003-2004

Assets
Current and other assets 103,758,133$    142,480,484$    37.3%
Prepaid PERS unfunded actuarial liability 486,617,609      486,071,587      -0.1%
Net capital assets 228,616,491      224,098,220      -2.0%

Total Assets 818,992,233      852,650,291      4.1%

Liabilities
Non PERS related long-term debt outstanding 126,944,580      79,987,337        -37.0%
PERS unfunded actuarial liability debt outstanding 491,273,897      490,727,875      -0.1%
Other liabilities 68,085,388        75,478,168        10.9%

Total Liabilities 686,303,865      646,193,380      -5.8%

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 123,871,911      156,010,883      25.9%
Unrestricted 8,816,457          50,446,028        472.2%

Total Net Assets 132,688,368$   206,456,911$   55.6%

Governmental Activities

 
By far the largest portion of the District’s net assets (75%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding.  The District uses these capital assets for classrooms and supporting services for providing K-12 
education; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the District’s investment 
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, Portland Public Schools is able to report positive balances in both 
categories of net assets for governmental activities.  During the current fiscal year the District’s net assets 
increased by $73,768,543, which resulted from the reduction in long-term debt of $47.5 million and an increase 
in State School Fund revenue of $32.9 million because the State front loaded distributions into the first year of 
the state’s biennium and provided $2.3 million due to reconciliation of prior year amounts. In addition, the 
District benefited from the generosity of voters in establishing the Multnomah County Income Tax.  In this first 
year of the three-year temporary tax, the District collected $36.5 million.  Furthermore, the District continued its 
aggressive efforts to realize savings from cost cutting measures. 
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The revenues and expenses shown below outline changes in net assets for the fiscal years 2003 and 2004.   
 

Changes in Net Assets % of
Total Change

2003 2004 2004 2003-2004
Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for services 10,532,039$        9,650,171$          1.8% -8.4%
Operating grants and contributions 75,616,763          69,603,337          13.2% -8.0%

Total Program Revenues 86,148,802          79,253,508          15.0% -8.0%
General Revenues

Property taxes 194,401,235        198,020,926        37.6% 1.9%
State school fund 150,705,317        183,619,106        34.9% 21.8%
Common school fund 3,100,444            1,251,379            0.2% -59.6%
County and intermediate sources 24,440,903          50,805,630          9.6% 107.9%
Investment earnings 2,187,551            1,786,274            0.3% -18.3%
Other 5,343,708            6,383,011            1.2% 19.4%
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 239,238               5,492,841            1.0% 2196.0%

Total General Revenues 380,418,396        447,359,167        85.0% 17.6%
Total Revenues 466,567,198        526,612,675        100.0% 12.9%

Expenses
Instruction 246,091,005        264,429,734        58.4% 7.5%
Supporting services 160,169,734        160,120,687        35.4% 0.0%
Enterprise and community services 14,736,156          13,734,717          3.0% -6.8%
Facilities 15,638,257          9,177,488            2.0% -41.3%
Interest on long-term debt 10,607,253          5,381,506            1.2% -49.3%

Total Expenses 447,242,405        452,844,132        100.0% 1.3%

Increase in net assets 19,324,793          73,768,543          35.7% 281.7%

Net assets - beginning 113,363,575        132,688,368        64.3% 17.0%
Net assets - ending 132,688,368$     206,456,911$     100.0% 55.6%

Governmental Activities

 
Revenues.  Since the District’s mission is to provide a free and appropriate public education for K-12 students 
within its boundaries, the District may not charge for its core services.  As expected, therefore, general 
revenues provide 85.0% of the funding required for governmental programs.  Property taxes and State school 
fund combined account for 85.3% of general revenues and 72.5% of total revenues. 
 
Charges for services are only 1.8% of total revenues and are composed of the following items for which it is 
appropriate that the District charge tuition or fees: 
 
♦ Food services charge not only for lunch and breakfast, but also for catering  

and contract services.  $  3,962,141 

♦ Tuition is charged for all-day kindergarten, evening high school, out-of-district  
students, summer school, and driver’s education. 2,510,639 

♦ Facilities leverages District buildings by leasing and renting classrooms, gymnasiums,  
swimming pools, auditoriums, and entire vacant buildings.  2,126,708 

♦ Athletics charges pay-to-play fees and sells tickets to events and games. 601,097 

♦ Other sales, royalties, and events generate revenue; including, commission 
on exclusive beverage contract. 449,586 

 Total Charges for Services:  $ 9,650,171 
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Operating grants and contributions represent 13.2% of total revenues.  Included in this category are $9.6 
million for federal reimbursement under the school lunch program and $7.3 million raised or donated by student 
body activities.  Federal and state grants for designated programs totaled $50 million. 
 
Expenses.  Expenses related to governmental activities are presented in five broad functional categories.  
Costs of direct classroom instruction activities account for 58.4% of the total expenses of $452,844,132.  In 
addition, 54% of the costs in supporting services relate to students, instructional staff and school 
administration.  
 

Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Percentage Percentage

Change Change
2003 2004 2003-2004 2003 2004 2003-2004

Instruction 246,091,005$    264,429,734$    7.5% (191,466,360)$    (220,323,681)$    15.1%
Supporting services 160,169,734      160,120,687      0.0% (143,984,134)      (139,918,454)      -2.8%
Enterprise and
   community services 14,736,156        13,734,717        -6.8% 622,293              1,210,505           94.5%
Facilities acquisition
   & construction 15,638,257        9,177,488          -41.3% (15,638,257)        (9,177,488)          -41.3%
Interest on long-term 
debt 10,607,253        5,381,506          -49.3% (10,607,253)        (5,381,506)          -49.3%

Total 447,242,405$    452,844,132$   1.3% (361,073,711)$   (373,590,624)$    3.5%

Total Cost of Services Net Revenue (Expense)

 
 

 

Expenses by Service Type Fiscal Year 2004

1.2%

2.0%

3.0%

35.4%

58.4%

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0% 60.0% 70.0%

Interest on long-term debt

Facilities acquisition & construction

Enterprise and community services

Supporting services

Instruction

 
 

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 
 
The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements.  
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net resources available 
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
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General Fund.  The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District.  At the end of the current fiscal 
year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $13,190,954, which was an increase of  $26,742,502.  
Key factors in this growth are as follows:   
 
♦ The Board of Education is strongly committed to financial accountability and acknowledges that  

establishing and maintaining adequate reserves is a critical component of prudent financial management.  
The Board passed a resolution that ending fund balance would be increased at the rate of 1% per year 
until the minimum target of 3% of General Fund expenditures ($12 million) was achieved.  

♦ State revenue and the Multnomah County Income Tax:  The Multnomah County Income Tax (“ITAX”) is a 
temporary three-year tax passed by the voters to allow time for the State legislature to address needs for 
adequate and stable funding for K-12 education.  Based on estimates of State funding levels, the ITAX was 
designed to bridge the gap in State funding and was budgeted at $51 million. When the State increased 
funding levels and front-loaded the State School Fund distributions into the first year of the biennium, the 
County reduced the ITAX turnovers for schools for the 2003-04 school year.  The actual ITAX collections 
totaled $36.5 million.   

♦ City of Portland revenue:  The City of Portland again provided tangible support to the District by providing 
$4 million per year for three years beginning in 2003-04 generated through increases in business license 
fees. 

♦ District revenue:  In accordance with Oregon Budget Law and Senate Bill 1022, the 2002-03 non-GAAP 
budgetary financial statements for the General Fund included $17.1 million of accrued State School Fund 
revenue.  Such an accrual was not necessary for the 2003-04 fiscal year, given the increase of revenues 
over expenditures.  The 2002-03 accrual was therefore reversed in 2003-04. 

The District is also committed to efficient, effective operations and has undertaken many initiatives to 
streamline business processes and reduce on-going costs.  Highlights of successful efforts include: 

♦ Certain special education programs that were previously contracted to other agencies are proving to cost 
less by providing the services ourselves.  Tuition to private schools was therefore $2.9 million under 
budget. 

♦ Transportation worked closely with special education to put more students onto special buses, thus 
reducing use of taxis by $320,000.  Declining enrollment and improved routing of buses resulted in 
transportation costs being almost $2 million under budget. 

♦ Implementation of the new e-SIS system for student information services allowed the old mainframe 
computer to be completely turned off, contributing to net savings in data processing costs of $255,000. 

 
Grant Fund.  Of the $51 million in federal and state grants received in 2003-04, $18.5 million represents 
funding for Title I and other Title funds targeted to provide additional services to students disadvantaged by 
poverty, to support migrant education, innovative programs, and safe and drug-free schools.  Another 
approximately $6 million was received for special education.  Head Start, National Science Foundation, 
Voluntary Public School Choice, and Carl Perkins Grants (alternative education) also provide significant 
funding to their respective programs.   
 
Capital Project Funds.  The Facilities Improvement Funds are targeted for priority building repairs and 
computers in classrooms. These funds, generated by the 1995 and 1996 general obligation bonds approved by 
the voters, will be fully spent by June 2005, when the bonds will also be fully paid off.  At June 30, 2004, $12.3 
million is the ending fund balance available for spending in 2004-05.  The System Project Fund was 
established to purchase and install enterprise-wide computer systems in human resources, payroll, finance, 
budget, purchasing, warehouse inventory, facilities management, nutrition services and student information.  
These projects have been successfully completed on time and on budget.  A residual $672,000 is the ending 
fund balance at June 30, 2004 and is available for spending in 2004-05.   
 
Proprietary Fund.  The Self-Insurance Fund experienced an unusual increase in expenditures of 52% over 
prior year.  This increased spending resulted from two major fires and the District’s self-retention is $1 million 
per incident.  Lent Elementary School had an arson fire in the main auditorium.  Binnsmead Middle School had 
the roof catch fire during the summer re-roofing project.   
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The budget was adjusted during the year to react to changing resources, primarily, declines in state funding. 
The changes can be briefly summarized as follows: 
 
♦ $ 5.5 million decrease in instruction reflects the decrease in enrollment and the corresponding decrease in 

teaching staff.  The staffing ratio is 30:1. 

♦ $ 2.5 million decrease in student support services is partially due to the decrease in enrollment and 
particularly due to the closure of two elementary schools. 

♦ $ 8.0 million increase in fund transfers is the first deposit into the PERS Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund 
in preparation for the outcome of pending litigation on PERS reforms enacted by the legislature and still 
under consideration by the Oregon Supreme Court. (See Note 16 )  

 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The District’s investment in capital assets includes land, building and improvements, vehicles 
and equipment, and construction in progress.  As of June 30, 2004, the District had invested over $224 million 
in capital assets, net of depreciation, as shown in the following table:   
 

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Percentage

Change
2003 2004 2003-2004

Land 9,049,378$           9,049,378$           0.0%
Buildings 189,883,031         185,925,208         -2.1%
Vehicles & Equipment 14,919,411           15,651,716           4.9%
Construction in Progress 14,764,671           13,471,918           -8.8%

Total 228,616,491$      224,098,220$      -2.0%

Total School District
Governmental Activities

 
 
During the year 2003-04, the District’s investment in capital assets decreased by $4.5 million, which was due to 
the depreciation of $14.0 million being more than the $9.5 million in additions of capital assets.  Major capital 
asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
♦ Building improvements continue in the areas of seismic upgrades, fire, life and safety, ADA compliance, 

and priority building repairs. 

♦ Completed projects added cost of $7.4 million to buildings and site improvements.  Construction in 
progress as of the close of fiscal year had reached $13.5 million. 

 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 on page 29 of this report. 
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total debt outstanding of $570,715,212.  
Of this amount, $34,675,000 comprises general obligation debt and $502,627,875 represents limited tax 
obligation debt, and $33,412,337 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the District.  The District’s 
total debt decreased by $47,503,265 during the current fiscal year. 
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Outstanding Long-Term Debt Percentage
Change

2003 2004 2003-2004

General obligation bonds 87,575,000$      34,675,000$      -60.4%
PERS limited tax general obligation bonds 491,273,897      490,727,875      -0.1%
Other long-term debt 39,369,580        45,312,337        15.1%

Total 618,218,477$    570,715,212$    -7.7%

Total School District
Governmental Activities

 
 
In May 2004 the District issued Full Faith and Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, in the principal aggregate 
amount of $11,900,000.  The proceeds were used to refund the Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 1998.  The 1998 Bonds were designated by the District as “gap bonds” when Measure 50 
(Article XI, Section 11 of the Oregon Constitution) was implemented.  That designation allowed the District to 
avoid reductions in the portion of its levy that paid the 1998 Bonds, in exchange for accepting a lower operating 
tax rate limit.  Initially this designation benefited the District by giving it more tax revenues to pay costs of public 
education. 
 
Measure 50 and its implementing legislation allow the District to refund the 1998 Bonds and not designate the 
Refunding Bonds as gap bonds.  When the District did this, its operating tax rate limit increased.  Senate Bill 
550 of the 2003 Legislative Assembly provided that this increase would not be treated as “local revenues” 
under the State School Funding Formula, and would not, therefore, be offset by reductions in the District’s 
State School Fund grant through fiscal year 2004-05.  The amount of the increase in tax revenues that results 
from the increase in the operating tax rate limit will exceed the debt service on the Refunding Bonds, so issuing 
the Refunding Bonds will increase tax revenues that are available to the District to pay costs of public 
education in fiscal year 2004-2005.  Thus the District obtains a favorable reorganization of its permanent debt 
structure. 
 
In May 2004 Standard & Poor’s lowered the District’s debt rating for full faith and credit obligations from an “A” 
to an “A-“ rating and lowered the rating for general obligation and limited tax general obligation bonds from and 
“A+” to an “A” rating.  At the same time, Standard & Poor’s assigned its “A-“ rating to the $11.975 million full 
faith and credit refunding bonds (federally taxably) series 2004. Standard & Poor’s cited the District’s weakened 
financial position due in part to state revenue declines and decreasing enrollments as rationale for the rating 
decision. Yet it declared the outlook stable for the District, based on the expectation that the District will 
adequately manage potential revenue and expenditure risks on the horizon.  Moody’s Investors Service also 
lowered its rating on the District’s full faith and credit obligations from “A1” to “A2” and gave an “A2” rating to 
the $11.975 million full faith and credit refunding bonds (federally taxably) series 2004, citing consecutive years 
of negative general fund balances.  At the same time, Moody’s affirmed the “Aa3” rating on the general 
obligation bonds, reflecting Moody’s expectation that the District will recover somewhat in the near term. 
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a school district may issue based on a formula for 
determining the percentage of the Real Market Value of all taxable properties within the District.  The District’s 
general obligation bond debt capacity is 7.95% of Real Market Value or $3,780,073,032, which is significantly 
in excess of the District’s outstanding general obligation debt. 
 
PERS is Oregon’s public pension system.  Under a pension plan, the actuarial liability is the present value of 
the plan’s current and expected benefits payments (plus administrative expenses).  If a fund’s actuarial liability 
exceeds its assets, then the fund has a shortfall that is known as an unfunded actuarial liability (“UAL”).  The 
portion of the PERS UAL attributable to Oregon education districts was estimated at over $1.68 billion based 
on the 2002 valuation.  PERS requires that school districts pay (or “amortize”) this UAL over a period of 
approximately 26 years with interest at 8% a year.  Since interest rates have been at historic lows, an 
opportunity to benefit from interest rate arbitrage was created. 
 
The District participated in the Oregon School Board Association (“OSBA”) sponsored pooled pension 
obligation bond program, in which the proceeds from bond issues were used to offset a portion of the UAL.  
The details of the District’s borrowing are in Note 10 to the Basic Financial Statements.  The benefits of the 
arbitrage are seen in a substantial reduction in the District’s PERS employer rate.  This reduction in rates 
should dampen the effects of future increases in the District’s UAL.  As long as PERS’ investment returns 
exceed the costs of servicing the bonds, the benefits of this program will exceed the costs.  The District’s UAL 
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was reduced, but was not eliminated, by these borrowing transactions.  Statutes, legislation, regulations, and 
rules regarding PERS can change at any time.  These changes may improve or reduce the benefits of 
participation in the bond program. 
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note 10 on page 30 of this report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets 
 
♦ The concerted efforts of many volunteers and the generous support of the voters of Multnomah County 

resulted in the failure of Measure 26-64 that would have repealed the Multnomah County Income Tax.  
This ITAX is expected to generate approximately $50 million in revenue per year for each of the next two 
years remaining of this three-year temporary income tax. 

♦ For the second year in a row, unemployment rates in the Portland-Vancouver metropolitan area have 
been higher than those in the rest of the State and among the highest in the nation, remaining over 7%. 

♦ Negotiations with the District’s various bargaining units were in process during the 2003-04 fiscal year.  
The classified union, Portland Federation of Teachers and Classified Employees, settled in April 2004 for 
a retroactive 4% wage increase, a 4% wage increase in 2004-05, and changes in health benefits, 
including a cap of $694 per member per month, increasing to $764 February 1, 2005.  The Portland 
Association of Teachers reached agreement with the District in September 2004.  The teachers will 
receive a 3% salary increase in 2004-05 and another 2.75% increase in 2005-06.  The teachers also 
agreed to certain reductions in health benefits and to premium cost sharing whereby the employee will 
contribute 6% of the premium cost in year one of the contract and 7% in year two. This settlement will 
increase expenditures for 2004-05 by approximately $5 million over the adopted budget. The nutrition 
services workers (SEIU Local 503) settled their contract in September 2004, agreeing to a 1% wage 
increase effective January 2005 and another ½% wage increase effective June 30, 2005.  The health care 
cap was increased from $600 per member per month to $756 per month.  The District Council of Unions 
continues in on-going negotiations. 

♦ The five-year local option property tax levy, which will generate as much as $32 million in 2004-05, 
expires in June 2005.  The Board decided not to put a renewal measure on the November 2004 ballot, for 
fear of confusing the voters, since Measure 26-64 to repeal the county income tax was already on the 
ballot.  The Board will decide early in 2005 whether it will ask the voters to renew the local option levy for 
the next five years.  Also expiring in June 2005 is the law that set aside desegregation funding of $7.6 
million.  If the Board decides to pursue renewal of the local option, it will also have to decide whether to 
ask for a continuation of the current rate, which would include desegregation amounts, or some lesser 
amount.  Currently local option and desegregation fund about 300 teaching positions and buy supplies, 
textbooks and computers in the classroom.  If the local option is not renewed, the resulting projected 
budget shortfall for 2005-2006 is about $32 million.    
 
In addition, the capital bonds will be virtually fully spent and will be paid off by the end of June 2005.  The 
Board will decide when to pursue asking the voters for additional capital bonds and for how much.  
Depending on how the bonds are structured, and if the current tax rate were maintained, the capital bonds 
could generate between $150 million and $300 million.    
 
Both elections would require a double majority (50% voter turnout and 50% voting “yes”) unless held at a 
November general election in an even-numbered year.   

 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Portland Public Schools’ finances for all 
those with an interest in the District’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in the 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Office, Portland 
Public Schools, 501 N Dixon, Portland, OR, 97227. 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2004

Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 53,597,800$    
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents 2,425,787        
Cash held in trust 94,020             
Investments 42,580,610      
Accounts and other receivables 24,532,837      
Property taxes and other taxes receivable 7,954,491        
Inventories 1,616,599        
Prepaid items 379,025           
Prepaid PERS actuarial liability 486,071,587    
Bond issue costs, net of accumulated amortization 4,549,315        
Noncurrent Assets:

Note receivable - Due within one year 100,000           
Note receivable - Due in more than one year 4,650,000        

Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Land 9,049,378        
Buildings and capital improvements 185,925,208    
Vehicles and equipment 15,651,716      
Construction in progress 13,471,918      

Total assets 852,650,291    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 13,418,799      
Accrued wages and benefits 54,325,708      
Claims payable 4,813,872        
Accrued bond interest payable 398,377           
Arbitrage rebate 651,260           
Deferred revenues 1,870,152        
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Bonds payable - Due within one year 43,039,237      
Bonds payable - Due in more than one year 527,675,975    

Total liabilities 646,193,380    

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 156,010,883    
Unrestricted 50,446,028      
Total net assets 206,456,911$  

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2004

PROGRAM REVENUES

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Assets

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities

Governmental Activities:
Instruction 264,429,734$  3,561,322$      40,544,731$   (220,323,681)$    
Support services 160,120,687    2,126,708        18,075,525     (139,918,454)      
Enterprise and Community Services 13,734,717      3,962,141        10,983,081     1,210,505           
Facilities acquisition & construction 9,177,488        -                   -                  (9,177,488)          
Interest and fees on long-term debt 5,381,506        -                   -                  (5,381,506)          

Total governmental activities 452,844,132$  9,650,171$     69,603,337$  (373,590,624)      

GENERAL REVENUES:
Property taxes, levies for operations 135,183,185       
Property taxes, levies for debt service 45,672,830         
Local option taxes 17,164,911         
State School Fund 183,619,106       
State Common School Fund 1,251,379           
County and intermediate sources 50,805,630         
Investment earnings 1,786,274           
Other 6,383,011           
Gain on disposal of capital assets 5,492,841           

Total general revenues 447,359,167       
Change in net assets 73,768,543         

Net assets - beginning of year 132,688,368       
Net assets - end of year 206,456,911$     

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2004

General Grant
Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 29,330,042$   618$              
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents 2,013,393      -                 
Cash held in trust 94,020           -                 
Investments 26,499,995    -                 
Accounts and other receivables 7,149,308      14,225,336    
Property taxes and other taxes receivable 6,067,132      -                 
Due from other funds 4,502,130      -                 
Inventories 984,135         -                 
Prepaid Items 379,025         -                 

Total assets 77,019,180$    14,225,954$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10,198,942$   1,340,726$    
Accrued wages and benefits 44,948,759    6,512,946      
Due to other funds 600,000         4,502,130      
Arbitrage rebate -                -                 
Deferred revenues 8,080,525      1,870,152      

Total liabilities 63,828,226      14,225,954    

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved, reported in:

General Fund 13,190,954    -                 
Special revenue funds -                -                 
Capital projects funds -                -                 
Debt service funds -                -                 

Total fund balances 13,190,954    -                 
Total liabilities and fund balances 77,019,180$    14,225,954$  

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Facilities
System Improvement/ Facilities Other Total
Project Technology Improvement II Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

429,475$        1,284,454$      228,748$       19,973,025$    51,246,362$             
-                  -                    -                 412,394          2,425,787                
-                  -                    -                 -                  94,020                     

980,000          7,863,000        3,304,000      1,581,615       40,228,610              
4,879              586,641            1,373             1,868,069       23,835,606              

-                  -                    -                 1,887,359       7,954,491                
-                  -                    -                 600,000          5,102,130                
-                  -                    -                 632,464          1,616,599                
-                  -                    -                 -                  379,025                   

1,414,354$     9,734,095$       3,534,121$     26,954,926$     132,882,630$            

85,375$          667,891$          270,056$       536,706$         13,099,696$             
5,490              35,846              1,864             1,634,022       53,138,927              

-                  -                    -                 -                  5,102,130                
651,260          -                    -                 -                  651,260                   

-                  -                    -                 1,645,488       11,596,165              
742,125          703,737            271,920          3,816,216         83,588,178                

-                  -                    -                 -                  13,190,954              
-                  -                    -                 20,882,265     20,882,265              

672,229          9,030,358        3,262,201      -                  12,964,788              
-                  -                    -                 2,256,445       2,256,445                

672,229          9,030,358        3,262,201      23,138,710     49,294,452              
1,414,354$     9,734,095$       3,534,121$     26,954,926$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 224,098,220              

Long-term taxes receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore, are deferred in the funds. 9,726,013                  

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 230,497                     

Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. (570,715,212)             

PERS unfunded liability payment is not reported as a prepayment in the
funds and therefore, is expensed in the the funds. 486,071,587              

Bond issue costs are not amortized over the life of the bonds in the
funds and therefore are expensed in the year of the bond issue. 4,549,315                  

Notes receivable are not collectable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. 4,750,000                  

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1,149,584)                 

Bond interest is not accrued as a liability in the government funds. (398,377)                    
Net assets of governmental activities 206,456,911$            
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2004

General Grant
Fund Fund

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 135,683,459$ -$             
State School Fund (See Note 15) 183,619,106  -               
Local option taxes 17,164,911    -               
County and intermediate sources 49,280,852    892,796        
State Common School Fund 1,251,379      -               
Federal and state support -                  49,599,419   
Charges for services 3,578,214      -               
Extracurricular activities -                  -               
Investment earnings 844,998         -               
Other 5,842,037      678,424        

Total revenues 397,264,956  51,170,639   

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction 217,657,078  31,675,015   
Support services 136,103,067  18,075,525   
Enterprise and Community Services -                  1,420,099     
Facilities acquisition  & construction -                  -               

Debt Service:
Principal 552,243         -               
Interest 431,441         -               
Bond issue costs -                  -               

Total expenditures 354,743,829    51,170,639   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 42,521,127    -               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                  -               
Transfers out (16,535,425)   -               
Bond proceeds -                  -               
Bond advance refunding principal -                  -               
Bond advance refunding interest -                  -               
Proceeds from the sale of property 756,800         -               

Total other financing sources (uses) (15,778,625)     -                

Net change in fund balances 26,742,502      -                
Fund balances (deficit) - beginning of year (13,551,548)     -                
Fund balances  - end of year 13,190,954$    -$              

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Facilities
System Improvement/ Facilities Other Total
Project Technology Improvement II Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

-$                 -$                -$             45,672,830$  181,356,289$   
-                   -                  -               -                183,619,106    
-                   -                  -               -                17,164,911      
-                   -                  -               631,982        50,805,630      
-                   -                  -               -                1,251,379        
-                   -                  -               9,591,757     59,191,176      
-                   -                  -               6,071,957     9,650,171        
-                   -                  -               7,259,049     7,259,049        

37,227             607,583         39,904         222,452        1,752,164        
-                   -                  -               3,364,370     9,884,831        

37,227             607,583         39,904         72,814,397   521,934,706    

-                   -                  -               11,881,374   261,213,467    
1,122,853        645,665         2,500           2,160,056     158,109,666    

-                   -                  -               12,862,211   14,282,310      
77,910             6,973,001       2,126,577     -                9,177,488        

-                   -                  -               46,980,000   47,532,243      
-                   -                  -               6,131,538     6,562,979        
-                   -                  -               110,568        110,568           

1,200,763        7,618,666       2,129,077     80,125,747     496,988,721      

(1,163,536)       (7,011,083)      (2,089,173)    (7,311,350)    24,945,985      

-                   -                  -               16,535,425   16,535,425      
-                   -                  -               -                (16,535,425)     
-                   -                  -               11,900,000   11,900,000      
-                   -                  -               (11,325,000)  (11,325,000)     
-                   -                  -               (517,867)       (517,867)          
-                   -                  -               -                756,800           
-                   -                  -                16,592,558     813,933             

(1,163,536)       (7,011,083)      (2,089,173)    9,281,208       25,759,918        
1,835,765        16,041,441     5,351,374     13,857,502     23,534,534        

672,229$         9,030,358$     3,262,201$   23,138,710$   49,294,452$      
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 17) 25,759,918$   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

(4,504,312)      

4,750,000       

(500,274)         

(394,216)         

(13,959)           

47,458,163     

(546,022)         

Change in compensated absences (95,765)          
Change in bond interest payable 1,855,010       

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 13) 73,768,543$   

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds:

Governmental funds report all capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of certain assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation in
the current period of $14,037,618 exceeded capital outlays of $9,540,268 and a
reclassification of $6,962.

Property tax revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the change in deferred
revenue related to property taxes.

An internal service fund is used to account for all costs incurred for claims arising from
workers' compensation, general liabilities, and property and fire loses. The primary
funding sources are charges to other funds. This amount is the net loss of that fund for
the year.

Governmental funds reported the prepayment of the PERS unfunded actuarial liability
as an other financing use in prior years. However, in the statement of activities the
expense is the amortization of the prepaid asset.

Revenues need to be reduced by the net book value of capital assets sold. This equates
to the cost of assets sold.

Governmental funds do not report the uncollected portion of revenue from the sale of an
asset in the current year if a note is issued. Revenue is recorded at the time the note
payment is received. However, in the statement of activities the revenue and note
receivable is recorded in the current year.  
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2004

Internal 
Service

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,351,438$    
Investments 2,352,000      
Accounts and other receivables 697,231         

Total assets 5,400,669      

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 319,103         
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits payable 37,197           
Claims payable 4,813,872      

Total liabilities 5,170,172      

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 230,497         

Total net assets 5,400,669$    

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Internal 
Service

OPERATING REVENUES
Current Operating:

Charges for services 4,749,985$      
Insurance recoveries 2,051,386        
Other 28,109             

Total revenues 6,829,480        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Current Operating:

Salaries and benefits 356,927           
Materials and services 190,707           
Claims expense 6,710,172        

Total expenses 7,257,806        

Operating Loss (428,326)         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Investment earnings 34,110             

Net loss (394,216)         
Net assets - beginning of year 624,713           

Net assets - end of year 230,497$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

20



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Internal
Service

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from quasi-external

transactions with other funds 4,749,985$       
Cash received from insurance recoveries 1,494,923         
Cash received from miscellaneous transactions 28,109              
Cash payments for salaries and benefits (346,469)           
Cash payments for goods and services (7,531,176)        

Net cash used by operating activities (1,604,628)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments 2,472,000         
Investment earnings 34,110              

Net cash provided by investing activities 2,506,110         

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 901,482            

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,449,956         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,351,438$       

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss (428,326)$         
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to

net cash used by operating activities:
Increase in accounts receivable (556,463)           
Decrease in accounts payable (398,169)           
Decrease in claims payable (232,128)           
Increase in accrued salaries, and wages and benefits payable 10,458              
Total adjustments (1,176,302)        

Net cash used by operating activities (1,604,628)$      

Non cash activities: None

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon, known as Portland Public Schools or the District, is 
governed by a seven-member elected board.  The District is the special-purpose primary government 
exercising financial accountability for all public K-12 education within its boundaries.  As required by 
generally accepted accounting principles, the accompanying financial statements present all significant 
activities and organizations of the District. The District reports no component units, entities for which the 
government is considered to be financially accountable, due to the insignificance of the potential 
component units.  The District is not a component unit of any other entity and specifically has no 
relationship or connection with Multnomah County. 

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the governing body and establishes governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. The District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its proprietary activities 
provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The more significant of the 
District’s accounting policies are described below. 

A. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District.  For the most part, the effect 
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers who purchase or use 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function.  Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the Self-Insurance Fund, an 
internal service fund, even though the fund is excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

B. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the 
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal year.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are 
recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes are considered to be susceptible to accrual, if received in cash by the District or a County 
collecting such taxes within 60 days after year-end.  All other revenue items are recognized in the 
accounting period when they become both measurable and available.  Measurable means the amount of 
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School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

 

the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current year or soon 
thereafter.  The available period for the District is 60 days after year-end. 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General – Accounts for the general operations of the District.  The General Fund accounts for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  The General 
Fund’s resources are available to the District for any purpose provided they are expended or 
transferred according to a resolution of the District and/or the general laws of Oregon.  

Grant – Accounts for revenues and expenditures of grants restricted for specific projects.  
Principal revenue sources are federal and state grants. 

System Project - Accounts for the acquisition and installation of new multi-tiered computer 
systems, including hardware, peripherals, software, integration of business and instructional 
applications, related infrastructure and training.  The System Project Fund also accounts for the 
acquisition and installation of furniture and equipment, repair and reconstruction of District 
facilities, construction and preparation of facilities for interactive distance learning, and related 
costs and improvements.   Primary resources for the fund are bond proceeds in prior years and 
interest earnings. 

 
Facilities Improvement/ Technology - Accounts for the acquisition and installation of desktop 
computers in classroom, installation of wiring and relocated infrastructure to support computers in 
classrooms, and for construction related to major renovations and building repairs to the District’s 
facilities, including American with Disabilities Act and safety requirements.  Primary resources for 
the fund are bond proceeds in prior years and interest earnings. 
  
Facilities Improvement II - Accounts for the construction of a new elementary school, and for 
construction related to major renovations and priority building repairs of the District’s facilities, 
including Americans with Disabilities Act and safety requirements.  Primary resources for the fund 
are bond proceeds in prior years and interest earnings. 
 

Additionally, the District reports the following proprietary internal service fund: 

Self-Insurance – Accounts for all costs incurred for claims arising from workers’ compensation, 
general liabilities, and property and fire losses.  The primary resources for the fund are charges to 
other funds and investment earnings.  The activity and balances of this fund are included in the 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  All revenues except for 
investment revenue is considered operating revenue. 

C. Appropriations and Budgetary Controls  

The District prepares a budget for all funds in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
with certain adjustments, and legal requirements set forth in Oregon Local Budget Law.   
 
Consistent with Oregon law, expenditures are appropriated by fund for each legally adopted annual 
operating budget at the following levels of control, as appropriate: 

� Instruction 
� Support Services 
� Enterprise and Community Services 
� Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
� Debt Service 
� Contingency 
� Fund Transfers 

Capital outlay expenditures are appropriated within the instruction and supporting services levels of 
control. Debt service expenditures in the General Fund are appropriated within the supporting services 
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School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

 

level of control.  For reporting purposes debt service expenditures of General Fund are segregated from 
the supporting services budgetary control levels and are presented in the debt service expenditures 
category.  

After the original budget is adopted, the Board of Education may approve appropriation transfers between 
the levels of control without limitation.  Supplemental appropriations may be approved by the Board of 
Education if any occurrence, condition, or need exists which had not been anticipated at the time the 
budget was adopted.  An appropriations transfer, which alters estimated total expenditures by less than 
10% of any individual fund, may be adopted at the regular meeting of the Board of Education.  For 
conditions which require either supplemental appropriations or an increase in expenditures greater than 
10% of an individual fund, a supplemental budget must be adopted, which requires public hearings, 
publications in newspapers and approval by the Board of Education.  Supplemental budgets must be 
submitted, reviewed and certified, similar to the original budget, by the Multnomah County Tax 
Supervising and Conservation Commission subsequent to approval by the Board of Education.  
Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

D. Encumbrances 

During the year encumbrances are recorded in the accounting records when purchase orders are issued.  
The use of encumbrances indicates to District employees that appropriations are committed, however, all 
encumbrances expire at year-end. 

E.  Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, the statement of net assets and the balance sheets, moneys 
in the Oregon State Local Government Investment Pool, savings deposits, demand deposits and cash 
with county treasurer are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Investments with a remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of purchase are stated at fair 
value. Other investments are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. 

F.  Property Taxes 

Uncollected real and personal property taxes are reflected on the statement of net assets and the balance 
sheet as receivables.   

Under state law, county governments are responsible for extending authorized property tax levies, 
computing tax rates, billing and collecting all property taxes, and making periodic distributions of 
collections to entities levying taxes.  Property taxes become a lien against the property when levied on 
July 1 of each year and are payable in three installments due on November 15, February 15 and May 15.  
Property tax collections are distributed monthly except for November, when such distributions are made 
weekly. 

G.  Inventories and Prepaid Items 

School operating supplies, maintenance supplies, and food and other cafeteria supplies are stated at 
average invoice cost.  Commodities purchased from the United States Department of Agriculture in the 
Cafeteria Fund are included in the District’s inventories at USDA wholesale value.  The District accounts 
for the inventory based on the consumption method.  Under the consumption method inventory is 
recorded when purchased and expenditures/expenses are recorded when inventory items are used.  
Donated commodities consumed during the year are reported as revenues and expenditures. The 
amount of unused donated commodities at balance sheet date is considered immaterial for reporting 
purposes.  Prepaid assets are recognized as expenditures when their use benefits the District. 

H.  Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and site improvements, construction in progress, and 
vehicles and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
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School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Oregon 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

 

more than $5,000, and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at 
historical cost, or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  Major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements are capitalized as projects are completed. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Years

Buildings 100
Site Improvements 5 to 25
Equipment 5 to 15
Vehicles 5

  

I.  Grant Accounting 

Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are recorded in the financial statements as 
accounts receivable and revenues.  Cash received from grantor agencies in excess of related grant 
expenditures is reflected as a deferred revenue liability on the statement of net assets and the balance 
sheet. 

J.  Self-insurance 

The District operates the Self-Insurance Fund to account for the costs of workers’ compensation claims, 
general liability claims, property and fire loss claims, and the payment of premiums.  Charges to other 
funds by the Self-Insurance Fund are recognized as revenues in the Self-Insurance Fund and as 
expenditures in the fund incurring the charges. 

The District recognizes the liabilities for estimated losses to be incurred from pending claims and for 
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR).  IBNR claims are estimates of claims that are incurred through 
the end of the fiscal year but have not yet been reported.  These liabilities are based on actuarial 
valuations. 

The District is self-insured for costs up to policy deductible limits as follows: 

   
Self-insured 
Retention 

 Excess 
Coverage per 
Occurrence 

 

General and Automobile Liabilities  $1,000,000 $     5,000,000
Property and Fire Liabilities 
Earthquake and Flood Liabilities 

 1,000,000
1,000,000

100,000,000
10,000,000

Workers’ Compensation Liabilities  1,000,000 Unlimited  
 
The District has not exceeded the claims limitation on its insurance policies for the last five years. 

K.  Compensated Absences 

Classified and hourly employees earn annual vacation leave at a rate of 10 days for one to five years of 
service and one additional day for each additional year of service up to a maximum of 22 days per year.  
Administrators earn 22 days of annual vacation leave.  Employees are allowed to carry over their 
maximum yearly earned balances from one fiscal year to another.  All outstanding vacation leave is 
payable upon resignation, retirement, or death. 

Vested compensated absences include accrued vacation and salary related payments.  The amounts 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are accrued in the fund, and the 
amount payable is recorded in the statement of net assets. 
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Sick leave hours accumulate at the rate of eight hours per month without a limit on the total hours that 
can be accumulated.  Accumulated sick leave does not vest and is forfeited at resignation, retirement or 
death.  Sick leave is recorded as an expenditure when leave is taken and no liability is recorded. 

L.  Receivables and Payables 

Receivables expected to be collected within sixty days following year-end are considered measurable and 
available and are recognized as revenues in the fund financial statements.  Other receivables, except 
grants, are offset by deferred revenues and, accordingly, have not been recorded as revenue.  
Receivables, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, are recorded as assets for the statement of net 
assets.     

Activity between funds that represent lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” in the fund financial statements, and is eliminated 
in the government-wide statements.   

M.  Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities.  Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over 
the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of applicable 
bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over 
the term of the related debt.   

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.   

N.  Retirement Plans 

Most of the District employees participate in Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). 
PERS requires plan contributions on a current basis.  Contributions are recorded as expenditures in 
individual funds.  

In addition, certificated employees with fifteen consecutive years of service with the District and who have 
attained age 55 or 30 years of service with the District are eligible for early retirement benefits.  All 
employees with a minimum of fifteen consecutive years of service who are age 55 or older upon 
retirement are eligible for health and welfare benefits.   

NOTE 2- BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING   

The District reports financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance/net assets/ 
retained earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The budgetary 
statements provided as part of supplementary information are presented on the budgetary basis to 
provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget.   

NOTE 3 - STATE CONSTITUTIONAL PROPERTY TAX LIMITS 

The State of Oregon has a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and non-school government 
operations. Under the provisions of the limitation, tax revenues are separated into those for the public 
school system and those for local government operations other than the public school system. Property 
taxes levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness are exempt from the limitation, provided such bonds 
are either authorized by a specific provision of the Oregon Constitution or approved by the voters of the 
District for capital construction or improvements. 

During May 1997, Oregon voters approved Measure 50 which limits taxes on each property by reducing 
the “assessed value” of each unit of property for the tax year 1998-99 to its 1995-96 value, less ten  
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percent.  Then, a “permanent tax rate”, representing the product of dividing the tax levy by the assessed 
value, was calculated.  The new tax rates are the permanent constitutional rate limit for each jurisdiction 
and are used to calculate future maximum tax rates.  As a result of the establishment of permanent tax 
rates, the pre-existing levy-based tax system has effectively been replaced by a rate-based tax system. 

The District’s permanent tax rate for the year ended June 30, 2004 was $4.7743 per $1,000 of assessed 
value. 

NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

A.  Deposits 

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits, deposits in the local government 
investment pool, time certificates of deposits, and savings account deposits as authorized by Oregon 
statutes.  At June 30, 2004, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $53,691,820 and the 
statement balance was $56,197,103.  Of the statement balance, $100,000 was covered by federal 
depository insurance, certificates of collateral were available up to $13,000,000, and $34,267,067 was on 
deposit in the local government investment pool and was exempt from collateralization.  Oregon Revised 
Statutes require governmental funds in banks to be either protected by federal depository insurance or 
the financial institution is required to maintain on deposit with collateral pool manager securities having a 
value of not less than 25% of the face value of the certificate issued by the pool manager.  When such 
securities are deposited, covered funds are considered fully collateralized under Oregon law. The 
collateral is held by a state-sponsored pool manager which is a commercial bank in the name of the pool 
manager, with the collateral certificate issued by the pool manager in the name of the District. 

B.  Investments 

Oregon Revised Statutes authorize school districts to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies 
and instrumentalities of the United States, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances guaranteed by a 
qualified financial institution, repurchase agreements, interest bearing bonds of any city, county, port or 
school district in Oregon (subject to specific standards), and the Oregon State Local Government 
Investment Pool, among others.  The Board of Education has adopted an investment policy for the 
District, which complies with state statutes. 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.31, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, investments with a 
remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of purchase are stated at fair value. Fair value is 
determined at the quoted market price, if available, otherwise the fair value is estimated based on the 
amount at which the investment could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, 
other than in a forced liquidation sale.  Investments in the State of Oregon Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP) are stated at share value, which approximates fair value. 

The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury.  The LGIP is an open-ended no-load diversified 
portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision or public corporation of the state who by law is made 
the custodian of, or has control of, any fund.  The LGIP is commingled with the State’s short-term funds.  
In seeking to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon 
Short-Term Fund Board.  The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the 
management and investment of the LGIP. 

At June 30, 2004, the LGIP did not report all investments at fair value in accordance with the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 31.  The LGIP is required by Oregon Revised Statues (ORS) to compute the fair 
value of all investments maturing more than 270 days from the date the computation is made.  If the fair 
value totals more than one percent of the balance of the LGIP in terms of unrealized gain or loss, the 
amount is required to be distributed to the pool participants.  Fifty percent of the LGIP portfolio must 
mature within 93 days.  Up to 25% of the LGIP portfolio may mature in over one year and no investment 
may mature in over three years.  At June 30, 2004, the District’s share of the amount of unrealized gain 
reported by the LGIP, in accordance with ORS, was considered immaterial. 
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The District’s investments at June 30, 2004 are categorized below to give an indication of the level of 
custodial credit risk assumed by the District. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or 
registered for which the securities are held by the District or its agent in the District’s name.  Category 2 
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the trust department  
of the bank that acquired the security for the District in the District’s name.  Category 3 includes uninsured  
and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the bank selling the security to the 
District. 

The District requires all securities, except for overnight investments used in conjunction with the District’s 
demand deposit account, to be purchased in the District’s name and held in third party safekeeping.  
During the year, the District invested in overnight U.S government agency securities for which the 
underlying securities were held by the dealer.  

Category Carrying
1 Value

U.S government agency securities 42,580,610$   42,580,610$    
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents 2,425,787       
Cash held in trust in Local Government Investment Pool 94,020            
Local Government Investment Pool 34,173,047      
Cash in segregated accounts 2,728,032       
Demand accounts 16,691,843      
Petty cash 4,878              

Total cash, cash equivalents and  investments 98,698,217$    

Balance sheet classification:
Cash and cash equivalents:

Governmental funds 51,246,362$    
Proprietary fund 2,351,438       

Total cash and cash equivalents 53,597,800      
Cash and cash equivalents held by fiscal agents:

Governmental funds 2,425,787       
Cash held in trust:

Governmental funds 94,020            
Investments:

Governmental funds 40,228,610      
Proprietary fund 2,352,000       

Total Investments 42,580,610      
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 98,698,217$    

 
NOTE 5 – RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of year-end are summarized as follows: 
 

Fund Type
Special Debt Capital Internal

Receivables: General Revenue Service Projects Service Total
Taxes 6,067,132$    -$               1,887,359$  -$          -$          7,954,491$   

Interest 79,739           -                 -               5,048        978           85,765          
Accounts 7,015,406      1,084,782      -               587,845    696,253    9,384,286     
Federal, state and 
     local grants -                 15,008,623  -             -          -            15,008,623 
Advances to employees 54,163           -                 -               -            -            54,163          
Accounts and 
     other receivables 7,149,308      16,093,405  -             592,893  697,231    24,532,837 
Total Receivables 13,216,440$  16,093,405$  1,887,359$  592,893$  697,231$  32,487,328$ 
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NOTE 6 – NOTE RECEIVABLE 

Effective December 15, 2004 the District sold the broadcast license and certain insignificant capital 
assets of the public broadcasting FM station operated by the District to a not-for-profit foundation that will 
continue to operate the station.  The terms of the sale include a down payment of $750,000 and principal 
payments as detailed below.  Interest accrues on these receivables at 5% for four years and 2% over the 
prime rate for the next six years.  The District considers these receivables to be collectable, and, 
accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided. 

Principal payments are scheduled to be received in the fiscal years ending June 30:  

2005 100,000$       
2006 100,000         
2007 100,000         
2008 100,000         
2009 375,000         
2010 - 2014 7,023,405      
Total 7,798,405$   

 
NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2004, follows:

Reclassifications
Balance and Balance

Description June 30, 2003 Additions Deletions June 30, 2004

Land (non-depreciable) 9,049,378$       -$              -$                 9,049,378$      
Buildings and site improvements 295,611,876     2,579,935     4,869,089        303,060,900    
Vehicles and equipment 24,263,531       1,706,003     1,494,885        27,464,419      
Construction in progress 14,764,671       5,254,330     (6,547,083)       13,471,918      
Total General Fixed Assets 343,689,456     9,540,268     (183,109)          353,046,615    

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and site improvements (105,728,845)    (11,406,847)  -                   (117,135,692)   
Vehicles and equipment (9,344,120)        (2,630,771)    162,188           (11,812,703)     
Total accumulated depreciation (115,072,965)    (14,037,618)  162,188           (128,948,395)   

Total governmental assets 228,616,491$   (4,497,350)$  (20,921)$          224,098,220$  

 

Depreciation expense for governmental activities is charged to functions as follows:

Instruction 10,935,837$  
Supporting services 3,035,591    
Food services 66,190         

14,037,618$  
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NOTE 8 – INTERFUND BALANCES 
 
The interfund balances are in place to eliminate a temporary negative cash position in the Grant Fund 
and to invest a portion of the fund balance of the Student Body Activities Fund monies in higher yielding 
investments held by the General Fund. 
 
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2004, is as follows: 

Due From Due To
General Fund 4,502,130$   600,000$      
Grant Fund -               4,502,130     
Non-major governmental funds 600,000        -               
Total all funds 5,102,130$   5,102,130$   

  
NOTE 9 – SHORT TERM DEBT 
 
During the year, the District borrowed and repaid $18,000,000 from a line of credit at 1.8% to buffer the 
variances in cash flow due to timing in property tax collections. 

NOTE 10 - BONDED AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT 

Changes in long-term debt of the District during fiscal year 2004 were as follows: 

Principal Principal
Balance Balance

July 1, 2003 Additions Repayments June 30, 2004

General Obligation Bonds,
Series 1996 65,375,000$    -$               (30,700,000)$  34,675,000$   

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 1998 22,200,000      -                 (22,200,000)    -                 

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 210,103,857    -                 (546,022)        209,557,835   

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 281,170,040    -                 -                 281,170,040   

Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 -                  11,900,000    -                 11,900,000     

Certificates of Participation (COP), 
Series 1999 28,015,000      -                 (4,205,000)     23,810,000     

Refunding Special Obligations,
1993 Series A 5,160,000       -                 (1,200,000)     3,960,000       

Small Scale Energy Loan
Programs 6,194,580       -                 (552,243)        5,642,337       

Total General Long-term
Obligations 618,218,477$  11,900,000$   (59,403,265)$  570,715,212$ 

 
In 1995, voters approved for the issuance of $196,700,000 of general obligation bonds.  The District 
issued $100,000,000 general obligation bonds in December 1995.  The bonds were payable annually 
through June 2003.  Interest was payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 4.25% to 4.50%.  The 
District issued the remaining $96,700,000 bonds in September 1996.  The bonds are payable annually 
beginning June 1, 1999 through June 1, 2005.  Interest is payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 
4.25% to 5.50%.  The bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities. 
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In October 2002 Portland Public Schools participated as one of forty-one Oregon school districts and 
education service districts in issuing limited tax pension bonds, the proceeds of which were used to 
finance a portion of the estimated unfunded actuarial liability of each participating school district with the 
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”).  The Oregon School Boards Association 
(“OSBA”) sponsored this pooled limited tax pension bond program.  OSBA does not have a financial 
obligation in connection with the bonds issued under the program.  Except for the payment of its pension 
bond payments and additional charges when due, each participating school district has no obligation or 
liability to any other participating school district’s pension bonds or liabilities to PERS.  In April 2003 
OSBA sponsored another pooled limited tax pension bond program with thirty school districts and 
education service districts.  The District records the amounts deposited with PERS as a prepayment on its 
actuarial obligation, and accounts for the payment of principal, interest and the amortization of the 
prepayment as pension expense over the life of the bonds.  The District anticipates that the total costs of 
financing the District’s actuarial obligation in this way will result in a significant savings to the District when 
compared to paying for such costs in additional contribution rates to PERS. 
 
The District issued $210,103,857 Limited Tax Pension Obligations, Series 2002 (Federally Taxable), of 
which $53,523,857 are Series 2002A (deferred interest obligations) and $156,580,000 are Series 2002B 
(current interest obligations).  The 2002 series Limited Tax Pensions Obligations were issued on October 
31, 2002, and are payable annually through June 2028. Interest on the deferred interest bonds is 
accreted  semiannually at yields  ranging from 2.06% to 6.10%.  Interest on the current coupon bonds is 
payable semiannually at rates ranging from 5.48% to 5.55%. The Series 2002A Obligations are not 
subject to optional prepayment prior to maturity.  The Series 2002B Obligations maturing June 30, 2021 
shall be subject to prepayment from Pension prepayments on or after June 30, 2007, and Obligations due 
June 30, 2028 are subject to mandatory prepayment prior to its stated maturity, in whole or part, on any 
June 30 on or after June 30, 2024.  
 
The District issued $281,170,040 Limited Tax Pension Obligations, Series 2003 (Federally Taxable), of 
which $124,800,040 are Series 2003A (deferred interest obligations) and $156,370,000 are Series 2003B 
(current interest obligations).  The Series 2003 Limited Tax Pensions Obligations were issued on April 30, 
2003, and are payable annually through June 2028. Interest on the deferred interest bonds is accreted 
semiannually at yields ranging from 1.50% to 6.27%.  Interest on the current coupon bonds is payable 
semiannually at rates ranging from 5.63% to 5.68%.  The  bonds are federally taxable and are not subject 
to optional prepayment prior to their stated maturities. 

In fiscal year 2004 the 1998 series refunding bonds were advance refunded, with proceeds of the Limited 
Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004.  The 2004 series refunding bonds are payable 
annually through June 15, 2013.  Interest is payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 2.190% to 
5.518%.  The bonds are federally taxable and are not subject to redemption prior to their stated 
maturities. 

The 1999 series Certificates of Participation (COP) are payable annually through June 2009.  Interest is 
payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 3.29% to 5.25%.  The certificates of participation are not 
subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities. 

The 1993 Series A refunding special obligations are payable annually through March 2007.  Interest is 
payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.10%.  Obligations maturing in years through 2003 
are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.  Obligations maturing on or after March l, 2004 are subject 
to redemption in whole or in part at the option of the District on or after March 1, 2003.  The obligations 
are also subject to redemption by lot within a maturity at the option of the District on or after March 1, 
2003 on any interest date at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

The District borrowed from the Oregon Department of Energy Small Scale Energy Loan Program (SELP) 
in several increments beginning in 1993 at various interest rates.  The obligations are payable monthly by 
the General Fund.  The payment amounts are based on anticipated savings related to retrofitting and 
other energy conservation measures implemented with the proceeds of the loans.  Such loans are not 
collateralized. 
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In prior fiscal years, the District defeased general obligation and certain advance refunding bonds by 
placing the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on 
the old bonds.  Accordingly, the trusts’ assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in 
the District’s financial statements.  At June 30, 2004, $13,302,228 of bonds outstanding is considered 
defeased. 

In 2000, the District sold Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, Series 2000, with a face amount of $6,052,477, 
and net proceeds of $5,922,379 (after payment of  underwriting and other issuance costs).  Simultaneous 
to this transaction, the District purchased U.S. Treasury “Strip” obligations which will mature in thirteen 
years in the amount of $6,052,477 with a cost of $2,759,464, and placed these investments in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments.  As a result, the 
Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, Series 2000, are considered to be defeased and the liability for those 
bonds is not included in the financial statements. 

The following is a summary of the future annual debt service requirements for long-term obligations. 

Certificates Refunding

Fiscal Year
General 

Obligation Limited Tax
of 

Participation
Special 

Obligations
SELP 
Loans Totals

Principal:
2005 34,675,000$ 2,142,418$         4,375,000$   1,255,000$ 591,819$    43,039,237$      
2006 -               7,627,674           4,555,000     1,320,000   634,050      14,136,724        
2007 -               8,022,111           4,750,000     1,385,000   679,314      14,836,425        
2008 -               9,502,171           4,955,000     -             727,703      15,184,874        
2009 -               9,711,957           5,175,000     -             779,824      15,666,781        
2010-2014 -               58,522,095         -                -             2,229,627   60,751,722        
2015-2019 -               59,276,850         -                -             -             59,276,850        
2020-2024 -               131,537,599       -                -             -             131,537,599      
2025-2029 -               216,285,000       -                -             -             216,285,000      p
Total 34,675,000   502,627,875       23,810,000   3,960,000   5,642,337   570,715,212      

Interest:
2005 1,907,125     18,170,487         1,071,483     198,000      368,565      21,715,660        
2006 -               18,654,643         889,920        135,250      326,334      20,006,147        
2007 -               19,054,769         696,333        69,250        281,070      20,101,422        
2008 -               19,770,328         489,708        -             232,681      20,492,717        
2009 -               20,428,155         271,688        180,560      20,880,403        
2010-2014 -               120,222,496       -                -             246,986      120,469,482      
2015-2019 -               164,569,762       -                -             -             164,569,762      
2020-2024 -               156,541,194       -                -             -             156,541,194      
2025-2029 -               28,842,927         -                -             -             28,842,927        
Interest Total 1,907,125     566,254,761       3,419,132     402,500      1,636,196   573,619,714      
Total Debt 
Service 36,582,125$ 1,068,882,636$  27,229,132$ 4,362,500$ 7,278,533$ 1,144,334,926$ 

NOTE 11 – UNUSED LINE OF CREDIT 

The District maintains a $20 million line of credit with the Oregon Department of Energy Small Scale 
Energy Loan Program to finance energy retrofits in District buildings.  Funds, which are drawn on the line 
of credit at the time that related retrofit costs are incurred, are recorded as proceeds of borrowing in a 
special revenue fund and are repayable from future energy cost savings.  The unused line as of June 30, 
2004 was approximately $11.6 million. 
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NOTE 12 – INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
The District made transfers from the General Fund of $6,891,209 to Debt Service Funds to fund bond 
payment; $9,500,000 to the PERS Rate Stabilization Fund to use for stabilization of fluctuations in PERS 
rates, and; $124,312 to the Student Body Fund and $19,904 to the Cafeteria Fund to disburse vending 
machines commissions. 
 
The composition of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2004, is as follows: 

Transfer In Transfer Out

General Fund -$                  16,535,425$      
Non-major governmental funds 16,535,425        -                    
Total all funds 16,535,425$      16,535,425$      

NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

A.  Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

Plan Description.  The District contributes to two pension plans administered by the Oregon Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS).   The Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF) 
applies to the District’s contribution for qualifying employees who were hired before August 29, 2003, and 
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  The Oregon Public Service Retirement 
Plan (OPSRP) is a hybrid successor plan to the OPERF and consists of two programs:  The Pension 
Program, the defined benefit portion of the plan, applies to qualifying District employees hired after 
August 29, 2003, and to inactive employees who return to employment following a six-month or greater 
break in service.  The Individual Account Program (IAP), the defined contribution portion of the plan, 
applies to all employees’ contributions.  Both PERS plans provide retirement and disability benefits, post 
employment healthcare benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries.  PERS is administered under Oregon Revised Statute Chapter 238, which establishes 
the Public Employees Retirement Board as the governing body of PERS.   PERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  The 
report may be obtained by writing to PERS, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR, 97281-3700 or by calling 503-
598-7377. 

Funding Policy.  Members of PERS are required to contribute 6.00% of their salary covered under the 
plan, which is invested in the OPSRP Individual Account Program.  The District is required by ORS 
238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate for the qualifying employees under the OPERF 
plan, and a general service rate for the qualifying employees under the OPSRP plan.  The OPERF and 
the OPSRP rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2004 were .64% and 8.04% respectively.  The 
contribution requirements for plan members are established by ORS Chapter 238 and may be amended 
by an act of the Oregon Legislature.  The District’s contributions to PERS for the years ending December 
31, 2001, 2002, and 2003 were $32,449,905, $29,155,710 and $20,433,361 respectively, which equaled 
the required contribution for the year.  During 2002-03, the District issued limited tax pension bonds, the 
proceeds of which were used to finance a portion of its estimated unfunded actuarial liability.  (See Note 
10) 

B.  Early Retirement Benefits  

Plan Description.   The District provides a single-employer defined benefit early retirement program for 
its certificated employees, which was established under separate collective bargaining agreements with 
certificated employees.  Certificated employees who are at least 55 years of age with 15 consecutive 
years of service with the District or at any age with 30 years of service and who retire before age 62 are 
eligible for the early retirement benefits.  Eligible employees are entitled to a monthly benefit of $425 to 
$475 commencing on the first month after the retirement.  Benefits are payable up to the earlier of 
attaining age 62 or receiving 60 monthly payments. All financial information relating to the early retirement 
benefits is reported in the General Fund.  The District does not issue a stand-alone financial report. 
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Funding Policy.  The District pays for the benefits without any cost to employees.  The contributions are 
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Therefore, the District is not required to fund the program in advance.  
During fiscal year 2004 the General Fund incurred expenditures of $4,096,633 for early retirement 
benefits.  

C.  Tax Deferred Annuities 

The District provides tax-deferred annuity contracts established under Section 403(b) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

Participation in the program is voluntary. Contributions are made from salary deductions from participating 
employees within the limits specified in the Code. 

NOTE 14 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description.  The District provides a post retirement health and welfare benefits program for 
employees who have retired from the District with a minimum of fifteen consecutive years of service or 
with completion of 30 years of service.  Covered employees under the plan are eligible to receive District- 
paid benefits for up to 60 months or until reaching the age 65, whichever comes first.  The District also 
pays for one-half of the dependent benefit costs during the benefit period.  The program was established 
under separate collective bargaining agreements with certificated and classified employees and by 
precedent for all other District employees. 

Funding Policy. The District pays for the benefits without any cost to employees.  The contributions are 
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Therefore, the District is not required to fund the program in advance.  
During fiscal year 2004 the General Fund recognized expenditures of $3,257,086 for the post-
employment healthcare benefits.  

NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Self-Insurance Fund charges other funds for the costs incurred for workers’ compensation claims, 
general liability claims, and property and fire loss claims. Charges to other funds by the Self-Insurance 
Fund are recognized as revenues in the Self-Insurance Fund and as expenditures/expenses in the fund 
incurring the charges. 

The Self-Insurance Fund recognized the following amounts of revenues from other funds for the year 
ended June 30, 2004. 

General Fund 4,042,564$  
Cafeteria Fund 89,574         
Grant Fund 511,632       
Special Revenue Funds 73,367         
BESC Cafeteria Fund 5,913           
System Project Fund 5,833           
Facilities Improvement/Technology Fund 21,102         
Total 4,749,985$  

 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2000 through June 30, 2004 
were as follows:  

Year Balance Additions Reductions Balance

2000 5,271,835$  3,805,405$  3,384,240$      5,693,000$      
2001 5,693,000    3,231,164    3,231,164        5,693,000        
2002 5,693,000    3,617,617    4,264,617        5,046,000        
2003 5,046,000    4,020,205    4,020,205        5,046,000        
2004 5,046,000    6,710,172    6,942,300        4,813,872        
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NOTE 16 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

• The District has commitments for several capital construction projects to enhance and repair the 
District’s educational facilities. Such commitments will be paid from existing capital projects funds.  
The outstanding commitments for these projects at June 30, 2004 total $5,512,203.  In addition, 
the District has a contract for custodial services extending through July 14, 2005 that will require 
a minimum payment of $9,712,586 after June 30, 2004.   

 
• Additionally, the District has a contract to provide duplication services to various District facilities 

which will require minimum payments of $1,279,087, $1,279,087, $1,279,087 and $1,279,087 in 
the years ending June 30, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. 

 
• The 2003 legislative session passed several bills to effect significant PERS reform.  HB 2003 

eliminates the 6% member contribution, eliminates the guaranteed assumed earnings rates to 
Tier One accounts, and suspends cost-of-living increases for members retiring between 4/1/2000 
and 4/1/2004.  HB 2004 requires PERS to adopt mortality tables every two years.  HB 2020 
establishes the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan for persons hired on or after August 29, 
2003, who have no prior PERS membership.  HB 3020 makes numerous technical corrections to 
PERS statutes to effect the 2003 legislative changes.  

The legality of these changes is currently under review by the Oregon Supreme Court, as 
provided by HB 2409.  If the Court overturns some or all of these new laws, the District could be 
exposed to substantial financial impact.  To mitigate, although not alleviate, this exposure, the 
Board has allocated an additional $8 million from the General Fund to the PERS Rate 
Stabilization Reserve Fund for the year ending June 30, 2005. 

NOTE 17 - REVENUE VOLATILITY 

State Revenue Adjustments 
 
In a special session in June 2002, the Oregon Legislature, in response to an unprecedented shortfall of 
state revenues, passed Senate Bill 1022, which provided modifications to the funding of state schools.  
This bill was modified and clarified by House Bill 2650 in the 2003 regular session of the Legislature.  The 
changes effected by these bills that most significantly impact the District are: 
 
• Decreasing the amount of state school funding. 
• Allowing districts to accrue up to a maximum of $309 per weighted average daily membership 

(ADMw) from the upcoming fiscal year appropriation to the current fiscal year.  This amount was 
capped at $18,471,450 for the District. 

• Providing a formula for future revenues allowed to be accrued to the previous year's revenues. 
 
The authority for this accrual continues unless it is amended by the Legislature. 
 
The District, in its budgetary accounts, reduced its recorded revenue from the State School Fund by 
$17.1 million in the year ended June 30, 2004 because it reversed a receivable in that amount recorded 
in the previous year.  This transaction has no applicability to the financial statements prepared on the  
basis of generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Note 18 – COMPONENT UNITS AND OTHER ACTIVITIES 

The District sponsors three charter schools under the provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes.  The 
students attending these charter schools are primarily District students.  The District is required by ORS 
338.155 and the charters with the schools to provide a percentage of the State’s allocation to these 
schools for each student enrolled in them.  This allocation is 80% for elementary and middle schools and 
95% for high schools of the general purpose grant per ADMw, as calculated by ODE, to the charter 
schools.  Under the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), such 
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 schools are component units of the District.  These charter schools are not reported as component units 
of the District, because they are individually and collectively immaterial to the District’s financial 
statements.  The pass-through of the State School Fund revenue provided to these charter schools is 
included in the expenditures and expenses of the District.  Financial information on the charter schools 
can be obtained by contacting the Office of Educational Options at Portland Public Schools. 

The School District No. 1 Health and Welfare Trust (the Trust”) provides health and welfare benefits for 
District employees who are members of the Portland Association of Teachers (PAT), the Portland 
Federation of Teachers and Classified Employees (PFTCE), and the District Council of Unions (DCU).  
The Trust was established by collective bargaining agreements.  The governing Board of Trustees is 
composed of trustees appointed by management of the District and of each bargaining unit, respectively, 
such that management-designated Trustees and union-designated Trustees have an equal number of 
votes.  The Trust does not meet the criteria of GASB Statements No. 14 or 39 for inclusion in the financial 
statements as a component unit. 

The Portland Schools Foundation is an independent, non-profit organization dedicated to providing 
leadership and funding for excellence, innovation and equity in education for children attending Portland 
Public Schools; engaging students, teachers, parents and the community in support of quality public 
education; and advocating for resources, policies and legislation to improve public schools in Portland.  
The Portland Schools Foundation does not meet the criteria of GASB Statements No. 14 or 39 for 
inclusion in the financial statements as a component unit. 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 136,093,501$ 130,909,747$  135,683,459$ 4,773,712$    
State School Fund 162,983,148   162,983,148    166,519,106   3,535,958      
Local option taxes 17,067,552     22,251,306      17,164,911     (5,086,395)     
County and intermediate sources 63,746,510     63,746,510      49,280,852     (14,465,658)   
State Common School Fund 1,170,000       1,170,000        1,251,379       81,379           
Charges for services 2,808,500       2,808,500        3,578,214       769,714         
Investment earnings 800,000          800,000           844,998          44,998           
Other 5,905,071       5,905,071        5,842,037       (63,034)          
Total revenues 390,574,282   390,574,282    380,164,956   (10,409,326)   

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 162,616,300   159,698,329    152,970,161   6,728,168      
Materials and services 6,002,428       6,476,021        5,458,344       1,017,677      
Total regular programs 168,618,728   166,174,350    158,428,505   7,745,845      

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 50,152,438     47,160,985      46,859,664     301,321         
Materials and services 13,389,631     13,329,462      12,368,909     960,553         
Total special programs 63,542,069     60,490,447      59,228,573     1,261,874      

Total instruction 232,160,797   226,664,797    217,657,078   9,007,719      
Support services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 31,339,562     30,175,733      29,215,061     960,672         
Materials and services 2,654,896       2,721,347        1,177,282       1,544,065      
Total students 33,994,458     32,897,080      30,392,343     2,504,737      

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 9,814,622       9,392,902        9,161,817       231,085         
Materials and services 2,110,353       2,536,594        1,429,328       1,107,266      
Total instructional staff 11,924,975     11,929,496      10,591,145     1,338,351      

General administration:
Salaries and benefits 1,695,927       1,855,351        1,612,942       242,409         
Materials and services 1,219,728       1,380,190        2,713,046       (1,332,856)     
Total general administration 2,915,655       3,235,541        4,325,988       (1,090,447)     

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 27,214,870     26,300,081      25,240,649     1,059,432      
Materials and services 569,899          225,085           121,193          103,892         
Total school administration 27,784,769     26,525,166      25,361,842     1,163,324      
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support services (continued):
Business:

Salaries and benefits 17,842,425     17,229,974      16,616,373     613,601         
Materials and services 36,005,692     36,178,348      34,343,589     1,834,759      
Total business 53,848,117     53,408,322      50,959,962     2,448,360      

Central:
Salaries and benefits 10,399,313     9,726,866        8,556,933       1,169,933      
Materials and services 3,398,750       4,039,566        4,971,463       (931,897)        
Total central 13,798,063     13,766,432      13,528,396     238,036         

Facilities acquisition  & construction:
Materials and services -                  -                  943,391          (943,391)        
Total facilities acquisition  & construction -                  -                  943,391          (943,391)        

Total support services 144,266,037   141,762,037    136,103,067   5,658,970      
Other expenditures:

Debt Service
Principal 960,384          552,243           552,243          -                 
Interest 275,000          683,141           431,441          251,700         

Total debt service 1,235,384       1,235,384        983,684          251,700         
Total current expenditures 377,662,218   369,662,218    354,743,829   14,918,389    

Operating contingency 7,000,000       7,000,000        -                  7,000,000      
Total expenditures 384,662,218   376,662,218    354,743,829   21,918,389    

Excess of revenues over expenditures 5,912,064       13,912,064      25,421,127     11,509,063    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (16,535,425)    76,639           
Proceeds from the sale of property -                  -                  756,800          756,800         

Total other financing sources and (uses) (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (15,778,625)    833,439         
Net change in fund balance (2,700,000)      (2,700,000)      9,642,502       12,342,502    

Fund balance - beginning of year 2,700,000       2,700,000        3,548,452       848,452         
Fund balance  - end of year -$                -$                13,190,954$   13,190,954$  

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
County and Intermediate sources 5,004,744$   772,407$      892,796$      120,389$        
Federal and state support 45,088,181   54,350,975   49,599,419   (4,751,556)     
Other 740,833        710,380        678,424        (31,956)          

Total revenues 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   (4,663,123)     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 5,591,524     5,381,681     4,650,142     731,539          
Materials and services 1,305,996     1,990,105     1,912,114     77,991            
Total regular programs 6,897,520     7,371,786     6,562,256     809,530          

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 22,612,064   22,336,624   20,159,646   2,176,978       
Materials and services 3,136,812     5,410,478     4,894,156     516,322          
Total special programs 25,748,876   27,747,102   25,053,802   2,693,300       

Summer school programs:
Salaries and benefits -                7,421            36,627          (29,206)          
Materials and services -                20,091          22,330          (2,239)            
Total summer school programs -                27,512          58,957          (31,445)          

Total instruction 32,646,396   35,146,400   31,675,015   3,471,385       
Support Services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 4,069,283     3,803,527     3,311,420     492,107          
Materials and services 2,069,248     1,751,518     2,052,646     (301,128)        
Total students 6,138,531     5,555,045     5,364,066     190,979          

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 5,874,609     8,527,234     6,252,245     2,274,989       
Materials and services 2,992,095     1,520,686     3,156,573     (1,635,887)     
Total instructional staff 8,866,704     10,047,920   9,408,818     639,102          

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 176,165        921,692        645,868        275,824          
Materials and services 140,003        84,913          459,163        (374,250)        
Total school administration 316,168        1,006,605     1,105,031     (98,426)          

Business:
Salaries and benefits 23,222          79,784          70,809          8,975              
Materials and services 57,869          118,538        110,659        7,879              
Total business 81,091          198,322        181,468        16,854            
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support Services (continued):
Central:

Salaries and benefits 366,273        1,582,495     756,204        826,291          
Materials and services 1,179,371     557,751        1,259,938     (702,187)        
Total central 1,545,644     2,140,246     2,016,142     124,104          

Total support services 16,948,138   18,948,138   18,075,525   872,613          
Enterprise and Community Services:

Food Services:
Materials and services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            
Total food services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            

Community Services:
Salaries and benefits 932,280        1,344,924     885,785        459,139          
Materials and services 87,499          42,820          240,079        (197,259)        
Total community services 1,019,779     1,387,744     1,125,864     261,880          

Total enterprise and community services: 1,239,224     1,739,224     1,420,099     319,125          

Total current expenditures 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   4,663,123       

Excess of revenues over expenditures -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance - beginning of year -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance  - end of year -$              -$              -$              -$               

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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COMBINING STATEMENTS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Student Body Activities
Accounts for the receipts and disbursements of funds by schools for each school's activities. Principal
revenue sources are donations, fund raisers, individual support from PTA's and booster clubs, sales in
student stores, and club dues.

Cafeteria
Accounts for revenues and expenditures of the District's food service programs. Principal revenue
sources are cash sales and federal subsidies under the National School Lunch and Breakfast
Programs.

PERS Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund
Accounts for the reserves needed to help minimize large fluctuations in the PERS rate assesed on
salaries and wages to repay the PERS unfunded actuarial liability borrowing relative to the District's
participation in the Oregon School Boards Association Pension Bond Program. Sole revenue source is
operating transfers from the General Fund.

Special Revenue
Accounts for revenues and expenditures of special revenue restricted for specific projects. Principal
revenue sources are state grants, foundations, charges to participants, and donations.

BESC Cafeteria
Accounts for the operations of the employee cafeteria in the Blanchard Education Service Center. The
primary source of revenues is the sale of meals.

Debt Service Funds

System Project Debt Service
Accounts for the debt service payments for the 1999 Certificates of Participation. The certificates were
issued to finance the implementation process and purchase of equipment upgrades relating to the
computer systems used for financial and student information as well as for instructional applications in
the classroom.  The principal funding source is operating transfers from the General Fund.

Blanchard Education Service Center Special Obligation Debt Service
Accounts for the debt service payments for the 1993 Series A refunding special obligation bonds. The
bonds were issued to refund the lease obligations for the Blanchard Education Service Center. The
principal funding source is operating transfers from the General Fund.

Bond Sinking
Accounts for the debt service payments of the 1998 and 2004 limited tax general obligation refunding
bonds.  The principal funding source is property taxes.

General Obligation Bond Debt Service
Accounts for the debt service payments of the 1995 and 1996 series general obligation bonds. The
bonds were issued to finance construction of a new elementary school, acquisition and installation of
computer software and hardware in classrooms, major renovations and priority building repairs of the
District's facilities, including Americans with Disabilities Act and safety requirements. The principal
funding source is property taxes.

Special revenue funds are used to account for certain revenues that are restricted to expenditures for designated
purposes.

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of long-term
debt principal, interest, and related costs.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet by Fund Types
June 30, 2004

Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor

Special Revenue Debt Service
Funds Funds Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 19,939,125$      33,900$            19,973,025$   
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agents -                    412,394            412,394          
Investments -                    1,581,615         1,581,615       
Accounts and other receivables 1,868,069          -                    1,868,069       
Property and other taxes receivable -                    1,887,359         1,887,359       
Due from other funds 600,000             -                    600,000          
Inventories 632,464             -                    632,464          

Total assets 23,039,658$      3,915,268$       26,954,926$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 523,371$           13,335$            536,706$        
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits payable 1,634,022          -                    1,634,022       
Deferred revenues -                    1,645,488         1,645,488       

Total liabilities 2,157,393          1,658,823         3,816,216       

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved 20,882,265        2,256,445         23,138,710     

Total liabilities and fund balances 23,039,658$      3,915,268$       26,954,926$   
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2004

PERS
Rate

Student Body Stabilization Special BESC
Activities Cafeteria Reserve Revenue Cafeteria

Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,728,032$  799,266$    11,300,000$ 5,085,068$ 26,759$ 19,939,125$ 
Accounts and other receivables 89,726         984,512      -                783,288      10,543   1,868,069     
Due from other funds 600,000       -              -                -              -         600,000        
Inventories -              612,963      -                -              19,501   632,464        

Total assets 3,417,758$  2,396,741$ 11,300,000$ 5,868,356$ 56,803$ 23,039,658$ 

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other 

current liabilities 161,825$     240,554$    -$              107,927$    13,065$ 523,371$      
Accrued salaries, wages and

benefits payable -              654,012      -                941,094      38,916   1,634,022     
Total liabilities 161,825       894,566      -                1,049,021   51,981   2,157,393     

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved 3,255,933    1,502,175   11,300,000   4,819,335   4,822     20,882,265   

Total liabilities
   and fund balances 3,417,758$  2,396,741$ 11,300,000$ 5,868,356$ 56,803$ 23,039,658$
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2004

BESC General
System Special Obligation
Project Obligation Bond Bond

Debt Service Debt Service Sinking Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents -$             -$             33,900$        -$             33,900$        
Cash and cash equivalents

with fiscal agents -               -               107,925        304,469       412,394        
Investments -               -               88,128          1,493,487    1,581,615     
Property and other taxes receivable -               -               72,341          1,815,018    1,887,359     

Total assets -$             -$             302,294$      3,612,974$  3,915,268$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other 

current liabilities -$             -$             13,335$        -$             13,335$        
Deferred revenues -               -               -               1,645,488    1,645,488     

Total liabilities -               -               13,335          1,645,488    1,658,823     

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved -               -               288,959        1,967,486    2,256,445     

Total liabilities
   and fund balances -$            -$            302,294$     3,612,974$  3,915,268$  
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances by Fund Types
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor

Special Revenue Debt Service
Funds Funds Total

REVENUES
Property and other taxes -$                  45,672,830$ 45,672,830$   
Federal and state support 9,591,757          -                9,591,757       
County and Intermediate sources 631,982             631,982          
Charges for services 6,071,957          -                6,071,957       
Extracurricular activities 7,259,049          7,259,049       
Investment earnings -                    222,452        222,452          
Other 3,364,370          -                3,364,370       

Total revenues 26,919,115        45,895,282   72,814,397     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction
Regular programs 10,299,398        -                10,299,398     
Special programs 1,307,392          -                1,307,392       
Summer school programs 274,584             -                274,584          
Total instruction 11,881,374        -                11,881,374     

Support services:
Students 378,031             -                378,031          
Instructional staff 848,343             -                848,343          
General administration 14,050               -                14,050            
School administration 459,418             -                459,418          
Business 434,625             -                434,625          
Central 25,589               -                25,589            
Total suport services 2,160,056          -                2,160,056       

Enterprise and community services:
Food services 12,848,383        -                12,848,383     
Community services 13,828               -                13,828            
Total enterprise and community services 12,862,211        -                12,862,211     

Debt Service:
Principal -                    46,980,000   46,980,000     
Interest and fiscal charges -                    6,131,538     6,131,538       
Bond issuance cost -                    110,568        110,568          
Total debt service -                    53,222,106   53,222,106     

Total current expenditures 26,903,641        53,222,106   80,125,747     
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 15,474               (7,326,824)    (7,311,350)      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 9,644,216          6,891,209     16,535,425     
Bond proceeds -                    11,900,000   11,900,000     
Bond advance refunding principal -                    (11,325,000)  (11,325,000)    
Bond advance refunding interest -                    (517,867)       (517,867)         

Total other financing sources (uses) 9,644,216          6,948,342     16,592,558     
Net change in fund balances 9,659,690          (378,482)       9,281,208       

Fund balances - beginning of year 11,222,575      2,634,927   13,857,502     
Fund balances  - end of year 20,882,265$     2,256,445$  23,138,710$   
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2004

PERS
Rate

Student Body Stabilization Special BESC
Activities Cafeteria Reserve Revenue Cafeteria

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
REVENUES
Federal and state support -$            9,562,982$ -$              28,775$      -$          9,591,757$   
County and Intermediate sources -              -              -                631,982      -            631,982        
Charges for services -              3,421,964   -                2,109,816   540,177    6,071,957     
Extracurricular activities 7,259,049   -              -                -              -            7,259,049     
Other -              29,194        -                3,335,176   -            3,364,370     

Total revenues 7,259,049   13,014,140 -                6,105,749   540,177    26,919,115   

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:

Instruction
Regular programs 7,380,361   -              -                2,919,037   -            10,299,398   
Special programs -              -              -                1,307,392   -            1,307,392     
Summer school programs -              -              -                274,584      -            274,584        
Total instruction 7,380,361   -              -                4,501,013   -            11,881,374   

Support services:
Students -              -              -                378,031      -            378,031        
Instructional staff -              -              -                848,343      -            848,343        
General administration -              -              -                14,050        -            14,050          
School administration -              -              -                459,418      -            459,418        
Business -              -              -                434,625      -            434,625        
Central -              -              -                25,589        -            25,589          
Total suport services -              -              -                2,160,056   -            2,160,056     

Enterprise and community services:
Food services -              12,303,329 -                -              545,054    12,848,383   
Community services -              -              -                13,828        -            13,828          
Total enterprise and 

community services -              12,303,329 -                13,828        545,054    12,862,211   
Total current expenditures 7,380,361   12,303,329 -                6,674,897   545,054    26,903,641   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (121,312)     710,811      -                (569,148)     (4,877)       15,474          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 124,312      19,904        9,500,000     -              -            9,644,216     

Total other financing sources 124,312      19,904        9,500,000     -              -            9,644,216     

Net change in fund balances 3,000          730,715      9,500,000     (569,148)     (4,877)       9,659,690     

Fund balances - beginning of year 3,252,933   771,460      1,800,000     5,388,483   9,699        11,222,575   
Fund balances - end of year 3,255,933$ 1,502,175$ 11,300,000$ 4,819,335$ 4,822$      20,882,265$ 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2004

BESC General
System Special Obligation
Project Obligation Bond Bond

Debt Service Debt Service Sinking Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

REVENUES
Property and other taxes -$          -$           11,832,046$ 33,840,784$ 45,672,830$ 
Investment earnings -            -            53,382         169,070        222,452        

Total revenues -             -              11,885,428    34,009,854    45,895,282    

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 4,205,000  1,200,000 10,875,000  30,700,000  46,980,000   
Interest and fiscal charges 1,239,682  253,200    1,196,531    3,442,125    6,131,538     
Bond issuance costs -            -            110,568       -                110,568        

Total expenditures 5,444,682  1,453,200   12,182,099    34,142,125    53,222,106    
Excess of expenditures over revenues (5,444,682) (1,453,200)  (296,671)        (132,271)        (7,326,824)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 5,438,009  1,453,200   -                 -                 6,891,209      
Bond proceeds -             -              11,900,000    -                 11,900,000    
Bond advance refunding principal -             -              (11,325,000)   -                 (11,325,000)   
Bond advance refunding interest -             -              (517,867)        -                 (517,867)        

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,438,009  1,453,200   57,133           -                 6,948,342      
Net change in fund balances (6,673)        -              (239,538)        (132,271)        (378,482)        

Fund balances - beginning of year 6,673         -              528,497         2,099,757      2,634,927      
Fund balances - end of year -$           -$            288,959$       1,967,486$    2,256,445$    

48



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

49



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 136,093,501$  130,909,747$  135,683,459$  4,773,712$    
State School Fund 162,983,148    162,983,148    166,519,106    3,535,958      
Local option taxes 17,067,552      22,251,306      17,164,911      (5,086,395)     
County and intermediate sources 63,746,510      63,746,510      49,280,852      (14,465,658)   
State Common School Fund 1,170,000        1,170,000        1,251,379        81,379           
Charges for services 2,808,500        2,808,500        3,578,214        769,714         
Investment earnings 800,000           800,000           844,998           44,998           
Other 5,905,071        5,905,071        5,842,037        (63,034)          
Total revenues 390,574,282    390,574,282    380,164,956    (10,409,326)   

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 162,616,300    159,698,329    152,970,161    6,728,168      
Materials and services 6,002,428        6,476,021        5,458,344        1,017,677      
Total regular programs 168,618,728    166,174,350    158,428,505    7,745,845      

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 50,152,438      47,160,985      46,859,664      301,321         
Materials and services 13,389,631      13,329,462      12,368,909      960,553         
Total special programs 63,542,069      60,490,447      59,228,573      1,261,874      

Total instruction 232,160,797    226,664,797    217,657,078    9,007,719      
Support services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 31,339,562      30,175,733      29,215,061      960,672         
Materials and services 2,654,896        2,721,347        1,177,282        1,544,065      
Total students 33,994,458      32,897,080      30,392,343      2,504,737      

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 9,814,622        9,392,902        9,161,817        231,085         
Materials and services 2,110,353        2,536,594        1,429,328        1,107,266      
Total instructional staff 11,924,975      11,929,496      10,591,145      1,338,351      

General administration:
Salaries and benefits 1,695,927        1,855,351        1,612,942        242,409         
Materials and services 1,219,728        1,380,190        2,713,046        (1,332,856)     
Total general administration 2,915,655        3,235,541        4,325,988        (1,090,447)     

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 27,214,870      26,300,081      25,240,649      1,059,432      
Materials and services 569,899           225,085           121,193           103,892         
Total school administration 27,784,769      26,525,166      25,361,842      1,163,324      
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support services (continued):
Business:

Salaries and benefits 17,842,425      17,229,974      16,616,373      613,601         
Materials and services 36,005,692      36,178,348      34,343,589      1,834,759      
Total business 53,848,117      53,408,322      50,959,962      2,448,360      

Central:
Salaries and benefits 10,399,313      9,726,866        8,556,933        1,169,933      
Materials and services 3,398,750        4,039,566        4,971,463        (931,897)        
Total central 13,798,063      13,766,432      13,528,396      238,036         

Facilities acquisition  & construction:
Materials and services -                  -                  943,391           (943,391)        
Total facilities acquisition  & construction -                  -                  943,391           (943,391)        

Total support services 144,266,037    141,762,037    136,103,067    5,658,970      
Other expenditures:

Debt Service
Principal 960,384           552,243           552,243           -                 
Interest 275,000           683,141           431,441           251,700         

Total debt service 1,235,384        1,235,384        983,684           251,700         
Total current expenditures 377,662,218    369,662,218    354,743,829    14,918,389    

Operating contingency 7,000,000        7,000,000        -                  7,000,000      
Total expenditures 384,662,218    376,662,218    354,743,829    21,918,389    

Excess of revenues over expenditures 5,912,064        13,912,064      25,421,127      11,509,063    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (16,535,425)    76,639           
Proceeds from the sale of property -                  -                  756,800           756,800         

Total other financing sources and (uses) (8,612,064)      (16,612,064)    (15,778,625)    833,439         
Net change in fund balance (2,700,000)      (2,700,000)      9,642,502        12,342,502    

Fund balance  - beginning of year 2,700,000        2,700,000        3,548,452        848,452         
Fund balance  - end of year -$                -$                13,190,954$    13,190,954$  

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Student Body Activity Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Extracurricular activities 7,500,000$     7,500,000$     7,259,049$     (240,951)$       

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs

Materials and services 8,186,681       8,186,681       7,380,361       806,320          

Excess of expenditures over revenues (686,681)         (686,681)         (121,312)         565,369          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 186,681          186,681          124,312          (62,369)           

Net change in fund balance (500,000)         (500,000)         3,000              503,000          
Fund balance - beginning of year 3,500,000       3,500,000       3,252,933       (247,067)         
Fund balance  - end of year 3,000,000$     3,000,000$     3,255,933$     255,933$        

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Cafeteria Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 4,353,302$     4,353,302$     3,421,964$     (931,338)$       
Federal and state support 10,067,920     10,067,920     9,562,982       (504,938)         
Other -                  -                  29,194            29,194            

Total revenues 14,421,222     14,421,222     13,014,140     (1,407,082)      

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Enterprise and Community Services:
Food services:

Salaries and benefits 7,183,946       7,236,780       6,495,539       741,241          
Materials and services 6,992,874       6,940,040       5,807,790       1,132,250       

Total food services 14,176,820     14,176,820     12,303,329     1,873,491       

Excess of revenues over expenditures 244,402          244,402          710,811          466,409          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 27,500            27,500            19,904            (7,596)             

Net change in fund balance 271,902          271,902          730,715          458,813          
Fund balance - beginning of year 200,000          200,000          771,460          571,460          
Fund balance  - end of year 471,902$        471,902$        1,502,175$     1,030,273$     

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
County and Intermediate sources 5,004,744$   772,407$      892,796$      120,389$        
Federal and state support 45,088,181   54,350,975   49,599,419   (4,751,556)     
Other 740,833        710,380        678,424        (31,956)          

Total revenues 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   (4,663,123)     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 5,591,524     5,381,681     4,650,142     731,539          
Materials and services 1,305,996     1,990,105     1,912,114     77,991            
Total regular programs 6,897,520     7,371,786     6,562,256     809,530          

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 22,612,064   22,336,624   20,159,646   2,176,978       
Materials and services 3,136,812     5,410,478     4,894,156     516,322          
Total special programs 25,748,876   27,747,102   25,053,802   2,693,300       

Summer school programs:
Salaries and benefits -                7,421            36,627          (29,206)          
Materials and services -                20,091          22,330          (2,239)            
Total summer school programs -                27,512          58,957          (31,445)          

Total instruction 32,646,396   35,146,400   31,675,015   3,471,385       
Support Services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 4,069,283     3,803,527     3,311,420     492,107          
Materials and services 2,069,248     1,751,518     2,052,646     (301,128)        
Total students 6,138,531     5,555,045     5,364,066     190,979          

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 5,874,609     8,527,234     6,252,245     2,274,989       
Materials and services 2,992,095     1,520,686     3,156,573     (1,635,887)     
Total instructional staff 8,866,704     10,047,920   9,408,818     639,102          

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 176,165        921,692        645,868        275,824          
Materials and services 140,003        84,913          459,163        (374,250)        
Total school administration 316,168        1,006,605     1,105,031     (98,426)          

Business:
Salaries and benefits 23,222          79,784          70,809          8,975              
Materials and services 57,869          118,538        110,659        7,879              
Total business 81,091          198,322        181,468        16,854            

54



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Grant Fund (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support Services (continued):
Central:

Salaries and benefits 366,273        1,582,495     756,204        826,291          
Materials and services 1,179,371     557,751        1,259,938     (702,187)        
Total central 1,545,644     2,140,246     2,016,142     124,104          

Total support services 16,948,138   18,948,138   18,075,525   872,613          
Enterprise and Community Services:

Food Services:
Materials and services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            
Total food services 219,445        351,480        294,235        57,245            

Community Services:
Salaries and benefits 932,280        1,344,924     885,785        459,139          
Materials and services 87,499          42,820          240,079        (197,259)        
Total community services 1,019,779     1,387,744     1,125,864     261,880          

Total enterprise and community services: 1,239,224     1,739,224     1,420,099     319,125          

Total current expenditures 50,833,758   55,833,762   51,170,639   4,663,123       

Excess of revenues over expenditures -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance - beginning of year -                -                -                -                 
Fund balance  - end of year -$              -$              -$              -$               

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
PERS Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund

Schedule of Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 1,500,000$   9,500,000$     9,500,000$    -$              

Net change in fund balance 1,500,000     9,500,000       9,500,000      -                
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,800,000     1,800,000       1,800,000      -                
Fund balance - end of year 3,300,000$   11,300,000$   11,300,000$  -$              

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
County and Intermediate sources 1,434,956$    1,440,056$    631,982$       (808,074)$      
Federal and state support 282,350         282,350         28,775           (253,575)        
Charges for services 1,828,406      1,828,406      2,109,816      281,410         
Other 2,734,188      2,729,088      3,335,176      606,088         

Total revenues 6,279,900      6,279,900      6,105,749      (174,151)        

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Instruction:
Regular programs:

Salaries and benefits 3,171,748      3,063,307      2,527,305      536,002         
Materials and services 710,913         819,354         391,732         427,622         
Total regular programs 3,882,661      3,882,661      2,919,037      963,624         

Special programs:
Salaries and benefits 1,396,407      2,090,927      1,203,742      887,185         
Materials and services 1,151,596      457,076         103,650         353,426         
Total special programs 2,548,003      2,548,003      1,307,392      1,240,611      

Summer school programs:
Salaries and benefits 271,830         288,745         248,807         39,938           
Materials and services 11,251           (5,664)            25,777           (31,441)          
Total summer school programs 283,081         283,081         274,584         8,497             

Total instruction 6,713,745      6,713,745      4,501,013      2,212,732      
Support Services:

Students:
Salaries and benefits 475,613         357,236         248,146         109,090         
Materials and services 38,193           156,570         129,885         26,685           
Total students 513,806         513,806         378,031         135,775         

Instructional staff:
Salaries and benefits 961,243         801,440         536,197         265,243         
Materials and services 419,691         579,494         312,146         267,348         
Total instructional staff 1,380,934      1,380,934      848,343         532,591         

General administration:
Salaries and benefits 65,397           7,000             8,535             (1,535)            
Materials and services -                 58,397           5,515             52,882           
Total general administration 65,397           65,397           14,050           51,347           

School administration:
Salaries and benefits 410,436         229,901         368,566         (138,665)        
Materials and services 229,057         409,592         90,852           318,740         
Total school administration 639,493         639,493         459,418         180,075         
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
 Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Support Services (continued):
Business:

Materials and services 409,961         409,961         434,625         (24,664)          
Central:

Materials and services 6,473             6,473             25,589           (19,116)          
Total support services 3,016,064    3,016,064    2,160,056    856,008         

Enterprise and Community Services:
Community Services:

Salaries and benefits -                 11,818           13,678           (1,860)            
Materials and services 50,091           38,273           150                38,123           
Total community services 50,091         50,091         13,828         36,263          

Total current expenditures 9,779,900      9,779,900      6,674,897      3,105,003      
Excess of expenditures over revenues (3,500,000)     (3,500,000)     (569,148)        2,930,852      

Fund balance - beginning of year 3,500,000      3,500,000      5,388,483      1,888,483      
Fund balance - end of year -$               -$               4,819,335$    4,819,335$    

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
BESC Cafeteria Fund

Budgeted As: Blanchard Education Service Center Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 558,085$         558,085$         540,177$         (17,908)$         

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Enterprise and Community Services:
Food services:

Salaries and benefits 288,163           346,495           367,280           (20,785)           

Materials and services 257,077           198,745           177,774           20,971            

Total food services 545,240           545,240           545,054           186                 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 12,845             12,845             (4,877)             (17,722)           

Fund balance - beginning of year 10,000             10,000             9,699               (301)                
Fund balance - end of year 22,845$           22,845$           4,822$             (18,023)$         

Note: Bolded lines indicate legally required appropriation budget levels of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
System Project Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 4,205,000$   4,205,000$   4,205,000$   -$              
Interest and fiscal charges 1,240,183     1,240,183     1,239,682     (501)              

Total expenditures 5,445,183     5,445,183     5,444,682     (501)              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 5,444,683     5,444,683     5,438,009     (6,674)           

Net change in fund balances (500)              (500)              (6,673)           (6,173)           
Fund balance - beginning of year 7,580            7,580            6,673            (907)              
Fund balance - end of year 7,080$          7,080$          -$              (7,080)$         

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
BESC Special Obligation Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 1,200,000$    1,200,000$    1,200,000$    -$               
Interest and fiscal charges 253,200         253,200         253,200         -                 

Total expenditures 1,453,200      1,453,200      1,453,200      -                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 1,453,200      1,453,200      1,453,200      -                 

Net change in fund balances -                 -                 -                 -                 
Fund balance - beginning of year -                 -                 -                 -                 
Fund balance - end of year -$               -$               -$               -$               

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Bond Sinking Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 11,992,225$  11,992,225$  11,832,046$  (160,179)$      
Investment earnings 71,800           71,800           53,382           (18,418)          

Total revenues 12,064,025    12,064,025    11,885,428    (178,597)        

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 10,875,000    10,875,000    10,875,000    -                 
Interest and fiscal charges 1,271,563      1,271,063      1,196,531      74,532           
Bond issuance costs -                 -                 110,568         (110,568)        

Total expenditures 12,146,563    12,146,063    12,182,099    (36,036)          *
Excess of expenditures over revenues (82,538)          (82,038)          (296,671)        (214,633)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds -                 -                 11,900,000    11,900,000    
Bond advance refunding principal -                 -                 (11,325,000)   (11,325,000)   *
Bond advance refunding interest -                 -                 (517,867)        (517,867)        *

Total other financing sources (USES) -                 -                 57,133           57,133           
Net change in fund balance (82,538)          (82,038)          (239,538)        (157,500)        

Fund balance  - beginning of year 150,000         150,000         528,497         378,497         
Fund balance - end of year 67,462$         67,962$         288,959$       220,997$       

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control

*Debt Service expenditures, while in excess of appropriation, are not out of compliance with Oregon Budget Law.
According to ORS 294.326 expenditures of the proceeds of advance refunding bonds, such as for bond issuance
costs, are allowed exceptions under local budget law.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property and other taxes 33,811,750$  33,811,750$  33,840,784$  29,034$         
Investment earnings 199,000         199,000         169,070         (29,930)          

Total revenues 34,010,750    34,010,750    34,009,854    (896)               

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 30,700,000    30,700,000    30,700,000    -                 
Interest 3,443,625      3,442,125      3,442,125      -                 

Total expenditures 34,143,625    34,142,125    34,142,125    -                 
Excess of expenditures over revenues (132,875)        (131,375)        (132,271)        (896)               

Fund balance  - beginning of year 230,000         230,000         2,099,757      1,869,757      
Fund balance - end of year 97,125$         98,625$         1,967,486$    1,868,861$    

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control

63



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
System Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Investment earnings 20,834$        20,834$        37,227$        16,393$        

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Central:

Salaries and benefits 331,187        331,187        328,931        2,256            
Materials and services 816,181        940,917        793,922        146,995        

Total Support Services 1,147,368     1,272,104     1,122,853     149,251        
Facilities Acquisition  & Construction:

Materials and services 100,000        100,000        77,910          22,090          
Total current expenditures 1,247,368     1,372,104     1,200,763     171,341        
Excess of expenditures over revenues (1,226,534)    (1,351,270)    (1,163,536)    187,734        
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,226,534     1,835,765     1,835,765     -                
Fund balance - end of year -$              484,495$      672,229$      187,734$      

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Facilities Improvement/Technology Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Investment earnings 174,497$      174,497$      607,583$      433,086$     

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Instructional staff:

Materials and services 770,700        770,700        490,713        279,987       
Business:

Materials and services 1,000            1,000            11,020          (10,020)        
Central:

Materials and services 871,771        871,771        143,932        727,839       
Total support services 1,643,471     1,643,471     645,665        997,806       

Facilities Acquisition  & Construction:
Salaries and benefits 429,468        392,329        399,621        (7,292)          
Materials and services 7,836,211     7,873,350     6,573,380     1,299,970    

Total Facilities Acquisition  & Construction: 8,265,679     8,265,679     6,973,001     1,292,678    
Total expenditures 9,909,150     9,909,150     7,618,666     2,290,484    

Excess of expenditures over revenues (9,734,653)    (9,734,653)    (7,011,083)    2,723,570    
Fund balance - beginning of year 15,595,290   15,595,290   16,041,441   446,151       
Fund balance - end of year 5,860,637$   5,860,637$   9,030,358$   3,169,721$  

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Facilities Improvement II Fund

Budgeted As: Facilities Improvement II/Technology Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Investment earnings 72,931$        72,931$        39,904$        (33,027)$       

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Business:

Materials and services 2,500            2,500            2,500            -                
Facilities Acquisition  & Construction:

Salaries and benefits -                -                6,685            (6,685)           
Materials and services 5,435,869     5,435,869     2,119,892     3,315,977     

Total Facilities Acquisition  & Construction: 5,435,869     5,435,869     2,126,577     3,309,292     
Total expenditures 5,438,369     5,438,369     2,129,077     3,309,292     

Excess of expenditures over revenues (5,365,438)    (5,365,438)    (2,089,173)    3,276,265     
Fund balance - beginning of year 5,365,438     5,365,438     5,351,374     (14,064)         
Fund balance - end of year -$              -$              3,262,201$   3,262,201$   

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Self-Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)

For the year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/ 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 4,664,408$   5,001,602$   4,749,985$   (251,617)$     
Investments 55,000          55,000          34,110          (20,890)         
Insurance recoveries -                2,271,586     2,051,386     (220,200)       
Other 25,000          25,000          28,109          3,109            

Total revenues 4,744,408     7,353,188     6,863,590     (489,598)       

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

Support Services:
Salaries and benefits 477,109        477,109        348,267        128,842        
Materials and services 392,500        392,500        193,000        199,500        
Claims expense 4,306,000     6,860,585     6,710,172     150,413        

Total expenditures 5,175,609     7,730,194     7,251,439     478,755        
Excess of expenditures over revenues (431,201)       (377,006)       (387,849)       (10,843)         
Fund balance - beginning of year 964,200        627,006        627,006        -                
Fund balance - end of year 532,999$      250,000$      239,157        (10,843)$       
Less salaries and benefits accrued under GAAP (8,660)           
Retained earnings at end of year, GAAP basis 230,497$      

Note: Bolded line indicates legally required appropriation budget level of control
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OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule By Source
June 30, 2004

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land 9,049,378$       
Buildings and site improvements 295,611,876     
Vehciles and equipment 24,263,531       
Construction in progress 14,764,671       

Total governmental funds capital assets 343,689,456$   

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:
General fund 146,375,144$   
Special Revenue funds 903,412            
Capital Projects funds 196,410,900     

Total governmental funds capital assets 343,689,456$   
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule By Function and Activity
June 30, 2004

Buildings Vehicles
and Site and Construction

Function and Activity Land Improvements Equipment in Progress Total

General government:
Instruction 7,041,878$  270,062,445$  537,571$       14,764,671$  292,406,565$  
Supporting services 2,007,500    25,549,431      23,401,000    -                 50,957,931      
Food services -              -                   324,960         -                 324,960           

Total governmental 
funds capital assets 9,049,378$  295,611,876$  24,263,531$  14,764,671$  343,689,456$  
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Capital Funds Capital

Assets Assets
Function and Activity July 1, 2003 Additions Deductions June 30, 2004

General government
Instruction 275,777,512$  31,648,872$ 15,019,819$ 292,406,565$  
Supporting services 50,270,544      939,665        252,278        50,957,931      
Food services 210,398           114,562        -                324,960           

Total governmental funds capital assets 326,258,454$  32,703,099$ 15,272,097$ 343,689,456$  
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Governmental Activities 2002 2003 2004
Expenses by Function/Program

Instruction 278,299,538$     246,091,005$     264,429,734$     
Support services 167,000,814       160,169,734       160,112,027       
Enterprise and Community Services 14,879,069         14,736,156         13,737,717         
Facilities acquistion & construction -                          15,638,257         9,177,488           
Interest and fees on long-term debt 12,209,858         10,607,253         5,381,506           

Total Expenses 472,389,279       447,242,405       452,838,472       

Program Revenues
Charges for services:

Instruction 8,165,250           6,318,753           3,561,322           
Supporting Services -                      -                      2,126,708           

  Enterprise and Community Services 4,693,192           4,213,286           3,962,141           
Total charges for services 12,858,442         10,532,039         9,650,171           
Operating Grants & Contributions 83,955,434         75,616,763         69,603,337         

Total Program Revenues 96,813,876         86,148,802         79,253,508         

Total Net (Expense)/Revenue (375,575,403)      (361,093,603)      (373,584,964)      

General Revenues by Source
Property taxes, levies for operations 128,574,250       131,056,316       135,183,185       
Property taxes, levies for debt service 39,312,267         47,081,715         45,672,830         
Local option taxes 14,879,271         16,263,204         17,164,911         
State School Fund 193,284,103       150,705,317       183,619,106       
State Common School Fund 1,527,383           3,100,444           1,251,379           
County & intermediate sources 10,863,837         24,440,903         50,805,630         
Investment earnings 5,310,974           2,187,551           1,786,274           
Other 2,278,644           5,343,708           6,383,011           
Gain on disposal of capital assets 2,098,078           239,238              5,492,841           

Total Revenues 398,128,807       380,418,396       447,359,167       

Change in Net Assets 22,553,404$       19,324,793$       73,774,203$       

* The District implemented GASB Statements 34 & 35 beginning in 2002. As a result, ten years data
  is not available.  Over time, ten fiscal years will be presented.

Source data:
School District No. 1, Multnomah County, financial statements

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON
Table I

Changes in Net Assets

Last 3 Years *
 (accrual basis of accounting)
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1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
General Fund:

Instruction:
Regular Programs 148,965,576$  150,813,899$  150,133,204$  150,321,408$  155,011,503$  
Special Education 31,088,264      36,387,363      38,189,666      40,481,167      42,524,537      

Total Instruction 180,053,840    187,201,262    188,322,870    190,802,575    197,536,040    

Support services:
Students -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Instructional Support 47,800,715      44,345,697      41,351,498      43,610,554      53,132,634      
General Administration 3,204,345        4,251,456        4,673,486        4,635,215        5,106,413        
School Administration -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Business -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Central -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Administrative Support 2,840,300        1 6,334,685        2 11,773,641      12,399,427      14,460,242      
Operation and Maintenance 38,417,126      37,564,506      39,673,723      36,645,684      35,242,254      
Student Transportation 9,665,395        9,676,852        10,335,147      12,738,556      13,702,513      

Total Support services 101,927,881    102,173,196    107,807,495    110,029,436    121,644,056    

Facilities acquisition & const. 1,370,106        1,650,714        1,251,757        994,734           807,839           
Debt Service -                       -                       -                       2,659,232        3 1,562,153        
Transfers Out 20,659,574      22,075,004      20,876,984      21,796,278      20,979,306      
Bond Defeasement -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total General Fund 304,011,401$  313,100,176$  318,259,106$  326,282,255$  342,529,394$  

Student enrollment:
Average daily membership 49,287             49,276             49,357             49,712             49,532             

Cost per Pupil:
Instruction 3,653$             3,799$             3,816$             3,838$             3,988$             
Students -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Instructional Support 970                  900                  838                  877                  1,073               
General Administration 65                    86                    95                    93                    103                  
School Administration -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Business -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Central -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Administrative Support 58                    129                  239                  249                  292                  
Operation and Maintenance 779                  762                  804                  737                  712                  
Student Transportation 196                  196                  209                  256                  277                  
Capital Outlay 28                    33                    25                    20                    16                    
Debt Service -                       -                       -                       53                    3 32                    
Transfers Out 419                  448                  423                  438                  424                  

Total Cost per Pupil 6,168$             6,353$             6,449$             6,561$             6,917$             

Percent Change -5.18% 3.00% 1.51% 1.74% 5.43%

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON
Table II

 General District Expenditures and Other Financing Uses by Function and Program

2) During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, the General Fund was reimbursed for a total of $5,000,000 of capital expenditures made in 
previous years from the proceeds of the 1995 series general obligation bonds.  Since the $5,000,000 represented a reimbursement of previous 
expenditures, the District applied this credit to Support services in the General Fund.

1) During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 the Health and Welfare Trust that administers District employee health and welfare insurance
offered the District an $8,000,000 credit on insurance costs.  This credit was associated with several years accumulation of excess reserves the 
Health and Welfare Trust maintained for future District employee benefits.  The District had no authority to demand the credit because the Health 
and Welfare Trust is a seperate legal entity governed by an independent Board of Trustees.  Since the $8,000,000 credit was associated with 
previous years contributions, the District applied this credit to Support services in the General Fund

Last Ten Years
General Fund
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

161,878,770$  156,421,886$  161,989,456$  149,803,286$  158,428,505$  
47,359,762      58,761,699      57,256,967      55,520,634      59,228,573      

209,238,532    215,183,585    219,246,423    205,323,920    217,657,078    

-                       29,039,622      4 29,694,267      28,167,370      30,392,343      
51,993,849      15,483,389      11,613,180      11,105,578      10,591,145      
5,491,143        5,216,157        3,323,942        2,693,485        4,325,988        

-                       25,989,859      27,581,331      26,100,103      25,361,842      
-                       56,037,473      53,972,966      51,458,624      50,959,962      
-                       8,918,219        10,871,513      10,330,001      13,528,396      

14,274,750      -                       -                       -                       -                       
35,793,914      -                       -                       -                       -                       
14,096,579      -                       -                       -                       -                       

121,650,235    140,684,719    137,057,199    129,855,161    135,159,676    

499,956           -                       -                       -                       943,391           
1,865,109        2,767,862        2,776,058        5,589,580        983,684           
9,888,370        6,896,908        6,973,589        8,850,365        16,535,425      
2,759,464        -                       -                       -                       -                       

345,901,666$  365,533,074$  366,053,269$  349,619,026$  371,279,254$  

48,900             48,478             48,152             46,945             5 44,882             5

4,279$             4,439$             4,553$             4,374$             4,850$             
-                   599                  617                  600                  677                  

1,063               319                  241                  237                  236                  
112                  108                  69                    57                    96                    

-                       536                  573                  556                  565                  
-                       1,156               1,121               1,096               1,135               
-                       184                  226                  220                  301                  

292                  -                       -                       -                       -                       
732                  -                       -                       -                       -                       
288                  -                       -                       -                       -                       
10                    -                       -                       -                       21                    
38                    57                    58                    119                  22                    

202                  142                  145                  189                  368                  

7,016$             7,540$             7,602$             7,448$             8,272$             

1.43% 7.47% 0.82% -2.03% 11.06%

3) Debt Service was not reported as a separate category prior to the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

5) Estimated amount from Oregon Department of Education, Update #9 for 2002-2003 and 2003-2004

Source data:  School District No. 1, Multnomah County, financial statements.

4) In 2001 the District converted to the state chart of accounts in order to be consistent with other districts 
statewide.  This change effected the program expense categories.
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General General
Year Obligation Obligation Bond Sinking

Ended Bond Debt Bond Debt Debt Service
June 30 Total General Fund Service Fund Service Fund Fund

1995 151,905,630$ 151,905,630$ -$                   -$                   -$                   

1996 112,344,741   112,344,741   -                     -                     -                     

1997 140,830,071   123,485,381   17,344,690    -                     -                     

1998 146,819,152   118,269,829   28,549,323    -                     -                     

1999 146,232,030   122,681,145   17,508,467    6,042,418      -                     

2000 153,441,078   114,761,695   16,995,788    9,003,047      12,680,548    

2001 170,147,642   132,561,145   25,417,901    -                     1 12,168,596    

2002 181,309,089   141,996,822   27,144,461    -                     12,167,806    

2003 194,465,911   147,384,196   34,227,854    -                     12,853,861    

2004 198,521,200   152,848,370   33,840,784    -                     11,832,046    

Source Data:
School District No. 1, Multnomah County financial statements: Schedule of Property Tax Transactions

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

Property Tax Revenues by Fund
Last Ten Years

1 The General Obligation Bond II Debt Service Fund was collapsed into the General Obligation Bond Debt 
Service Fund effective July 1, 2000.

Table V

S6



Percent of Property
Tax Levy to

Year Expenditures,
Ended Expenditures and Transfers, and Bond

June 30 Transfers Out Property Tax Levy Defeasance
1995 304,353,256$   303,332,739$    99.66%
1996 313,191,845     321,532,703      102.66%
1997 318,259,106     359,256,279      112.88%
1998 323,951,337     117,116,027      1 36.15%
1999 342,529,394     128,711,288      37.58%
2000 345,901,666     117,523,818      33.98%
2001 365,305,289     136,663,944      37.41%
2002 366,053,269     144,421,460      39.45%
2003 349,619,026     150,413,676      43.02%
2004 371,279,254     155,248,999      41.81%

Percent of Property
Tax Levy to

Year Expenditures,
Ended Expenditures and Transfers, and Bond

June 30 Transfers Out Property Tax Levy Defeasance
1998 24,793,750$     29,482,580$      118.91%
1999 23,113,750       24,383,735        105.49%
2000 38,176,261       39,710,388        104.02%
2001 40,055,651       40,316,174        100.65%
2002 41,869,416       41,733,919        99.68%
2003 43,786,042       50,222,484        114.70%
2004 46,324,224       48,323,730        104.32%

Source data:
School District No. 1, Multnomah County financial statements

1 The levy amount beginning in 1998 is the net levy after the Measure 5 and Measure 50 property tax 
limitations.

General Fund

Bond Sinking Debt Service Fund and General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON
Table VI

Comparison of Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Bond Defeasance to Tax Levy
Last Ten Years
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Year
Ended Personal Public Utility

June 30 Total Real Property 2 Property 2 Property 2

1995 21,500,430,034$  19,751,109,431$  921,771,052$    827,549,551$   

1996 24,246,393,871    22,378,472,521    1,028,618,696   839,302,654     

1997 1 26,856,347,066    24,876,971,751    1,106,224,351   873,150,964     

1998 22,376,333,121    20,284,046,065    1,197,627,997   894,659,059     

1999 24,229,184,394    21,769,942,965    1,464,770,211   994,471,218     

2000 25,405,546,175    22,319,499,180    1,750,770,992   1,335,276,003  

2001 26,719,188,363    23,489,121,931    1,844,821,053   1,385,245,379  

2002 27,988,718,415    24,566,867,585    1,894,362,915   1,527,487,915  

2003 28,804,279,021    25,564,542,271    1,880,220,524   1,359,516,226  

2004 29,572,717,648    26,464,086,805    1,796,571,156   1,312,059,687  

Source data:
Multnomah County Division of Assessment and Taxation, and the
Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission

2 Valuations for Washington and Clackamas counties are estimated based on Multnomah County distribution.

1 Beginning July 1, 1997 property taxes were based on an assessed value.  Assessed value is defined as the 
lower of "maximum assessed value" or "real market value".  For the 1997-1998 tax year, "maximum assessed 
value" was set at the 1995-1996 real market value less 10 percent.  Assessed value for later years is limited 
to 3 percent annual increases.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON
Table VIII

Valuation of Taxable Property Within School District No. 1 Boundaries
Last Ten Years

Assessed Valuation
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Real Market Value 47,935,003,326$    
Allowable Proportion 0.0795                    

Debt Limit: 7.95% of Real Market Value 1 3,810,832,764       

Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit:
General Obligation Bonded Debt 34,675,000             
Less: Amount Available in Debt Service Funds (3,915,268)              

Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit: 30,759,732             

Legal Debt Margin 3,780,073,032$      

Allowable Percentage of Real Market Value:
A  Kindergarten through eighth grade, 9  x  .0055 4.95%
B  Ninth through twelfth, 4  x  .0075 3.00%

Allowable Percentage 7.95%

Source data:
Market value per Multnomah County, Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission
All other data per School District No. 1, Multnomah County financial statements.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON
Table IX

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2004

1 ORS 328.245 establishes a parameter of bonded indebtedness for school districts.  Aggregates are 
governed by real market values of all taxable properties within the District based on the following:

A  For each grade from kindergarten to eighth for which the District operates schools, fifty-five on-
hundredths of one percent (.0055) of the real market value.
B  For each grade from ninth to twelfth for which the District operates schools, seventy-five one-hundredths 
of one percent (.0075) of the real market value.

S10



Ratio of Net
Year Average General Bonded Net General Net General

Ended Population Daily Real Market Net General Debt to Real Bonded Debt Bonded Debt
June 30 (Estimated) Membership r Value 1 Bonded Debt Market Value per Capita per Student

1995 413,571  49,287     21,500,430,034$  93,983,928$  0.00437      227$        1,907$     

1996 413,571  49,276     24,246,393,871    186,519,500  0.00769      451          3,785       

1997 413,571  49,357     26,856,347,066    264,069,500  0.00983      639          5,350       

1998 413,571  49,712     29,402,327,828    239,102,604  0.00813      578          4,810       

1999 413,571  49,532     31,277,523,213    214,716,422  0.00686      519          4,335       

2000 427,037  48,900     36,354,590,972    189,040,000  0.00520      443          3,866       

2001 427,037  48,478     38,977,401,805    158,580,000  0.00407      371          3,271       

2002 427,037  48,152     43,036,388,539    124,845,000  0.00290      292          2,593       

2003 427,037  46,945     3 45,323,151,918    578,848,897  2 0.01277      1,356       12,330     

2004 427,037  44,882     3 47,935,003,326    537,302,875  0.01121      1,258       11,971     

Source data: 

All other data per School District No. 1, Multnomah County financial statements.

1 Real market value excludes urban renewal.
2 Fiscal year 2003 includes the debt related to the advance payment of PERS unfunded actuarial liability.
3 Fiscal years 2003 and 2004 ADMr are estimated amounts from Oregon Department of Education, Updates #9

Market value per Multnomah County, Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission.  

Table X
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

Last Ten Years

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Real Market Value,
 and Net General Bonded Debt per Capita and per Student
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Ratio of Debt Service
Total Expenditures to Total

General Fund General Fund
Year Expenditures, Expenditures,

Ended Transfers Out, and Transfers Out, and
June 30 Principal Interest Total Bond Defeasance Bond Defeasance

1995 6,980,000$        6,439,138$      13,419,138$     304,353,256$         0.04                             

1996 7,490,000          5,878,373        13,368,373       313,191,845           0.04                             

1997 19,150,000        15,543,073      34,693,073       318,259,106           0.11                             

1998 24,255,000        13,664,373      37,919,373       323,951,337           0.12                             

1999 85,685,000        12,616,174      98,301,174       342,529,394           0.29                             

2000 27,285,000        10,891,261      38,176,261       345,901,666           0.11                             

2001 30,460,000        9,595,651        40,055,651       365,305,289           0.11                             

2002 33,735,000        8,134,416        41,869,416       366,053,269           0.11                             

2003 37,270,000        6,516,042        43,786,042       349,619,026           0.13                             

2004 41,575,000        4,638,656        46,213,656       371,279,254           0.12                             

Source data:
School District No. 1, Multnomah County financial statements.

General Bonded Debt

to Total General Fund Expenditures, Transfers Out and Bond Defeasance

Table XI
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

Last Ten Years

Debt Service Expenditures for

Ratio of Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt
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Percent Overlapping Gross
Within Property-tax

Overlapping Government District Backed Debt

City of Portland 84.03% 223,284,983$      

Multnomah County 71.57% 90,047,431          

Portland Community College 43.51% 130,085,535        

Tri-Met 34.62% 32,303,446          

Metro 34.46% 53,013,429          

Port of Portland 31.68% 17,305,409          

Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue District 2.25% 144,990               

City of Beaverton 1.79% 334,046               

Tualatin Hills Park & Rec. District 1.31% 233,430               

Clackamas County 1.06% 196                      

City of Milwaukie 0.69% 18,673                 

Washington County 0.60% 398,923               

Tualatin Valley Water (Wolf Creek Bond) 0.43% 8,131                   

City of Lake Oswego 0.13% 46,118                 

Mt Hood Community College 0.07% 75                        

Clackamas County RFPD #1 0.05% 4,229                   

Total 547,229,044$      

Source data:

Table XII

Oregon State Treasury, Debt Management Division

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

June 30, 2004
Schedule of Overlapping Debt
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Year Actual Weighted 
Ended Average Daily Average Daily Average Daily Ratio of ADA

June 30 Enrollment 1 Membership(r) 2 Membership(w) 3 Attendance to ADMr

1995 56,899       50,175             60,188              45,866         0.914          

1996 57,266       50,358             60,602              45,821         0.910          

1997 58,022       50,017             60,454              45,545         0.911          

1998 56,583       49,713             60,318              45,289         0.911          

1999 55,831       49,532             60,298              45,837         0.925          

2000 54,746       48,900             59,931              45,457         0.930          

2001 54,427       48,478             59,758              45,094         0.930          

2002 54,150       48,152             59,586              45,017         0.935          

2003 52,969       46,945             4 58,298              4 43,889         0.935          

2004 48,883       44,882             4 54,510              4 41,561         0.926          

Ethnic composition for fiscal year 2004:

European-American 28,990             59.30%
African-American 8,020               16.41%
Asian American 4,925               10.08%
Hispanic-American 5,744               11.75%
American Indian 1,048               2.14%
Unspecified 156                  0.32%

Total 48,883             100.00%

4 Estimated amounts from Oregon Department of Education, Update #9 for FY 2003 and FY 2004

Source data:
Enrollment and ADA: School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Budget Department
ADMr and ADMw: Oregon Department of Education

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

Last Ten Years

3 Weighted Average Daily Membership (ADMw) is the Resident Average Daily Membership (ADMr) 
adjusted to reflect students with special needs.  Kindergarten students are counted as half-time students.

2 Resident Average Daily Membership (ADMr) is the average of daily student enrollment for students 
residing within the district.  Some resident students may attend school in another district.  Kindergarten 
students are counted as half-time students.

1 Includes pre-kindergarten, kindergarten and special schools' enrollment

Table XIII
Enrollment, Average Daily Membership (ADMr and ADMw),
Average Daily Attendance (ADA), and Ratio of ADA to ADMr
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Amount of
Titles Surety Bond 1

Superintendent 350,000$      

Deputy Clerk - Budget Officer 350,000        

All other School District employees 250,000        

Source data:
School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Department of Risk Management

Surety Bonds of Principal Officials
June 30, 2004

1 Each of the listed officials is covered under a Public Employees Blanket Bond for $250,000 
plus an additional $100,000 under Public Official Bond.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON
Table XV
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Assessed Percentage of
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Total Value

Ten Largest Taxpayers

Qwest Corporation Telephone Utility 440,769,567$         0.97%

Portland General Electric Electric Utility 341,868,880           0.75%

Pacificorp Electric Utility 271,934,000           0.60%

Wacker Siltronic Corp Computer and Electronics 211,842,450           0.47%

Northwest Natural Gas Co. Gas Utility 149,728,420           0.33%

Boeing Company Aircraft Parts 143,485,820           0.32%

Oregon Steel Mills Inc Steel Manufacturing 135,060,590           0.30%

Freightliner Corporation Commercial Vehicle Manuf. 131,602,990           0.29%

LC Portland, LLC Rental, Commercial Rental 130,196,970           0.29%

Fred Meyer Stores Inc Retail 115,006,530           0.25%

Total of Ten Largest Taxpayers 2,071,496,217        4.55%

All Other Taxpayers 43,471,216,696      95.45%

Total All Taxpayers 45,542,712,913$    100.00%

Source data:
Multnomah County, Division of  Assessment and Taxation

Table XVI
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

Principal Taxpayers in Multnomah County
June 30, 2004
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Portland Public Schools:
Date of incorporation December 15, 1851
Date of consolidation March 31, 1856
Form of government Quasi corporation
Area - square miles 145.6
Area - physical plants - acres 854.72
Number of facilities:

Primary and elementary 59
Intermediate and middle 17
Secondary 10
Alternative, special administrative, support, and holding facilities 20

Total number of facilities: 106

School District Community:
Population:

Census population count from last six censuses: Total
1950 373,628        
1960 372,676        
1970 382,619        
1980 373,409        
1990 404,123        
2000 427,037        

Age distribution of population from last four censuses:
1970 28% 57% 15%
1980 26% 61% 13%
1990 22% 64% 14%
2000 20% 69% 11%

Source data:
Demographic and general information per School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Budget Department.
Population and income information per Portland State University, Population Research Center.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

Miscellaneous Statistics
June 30, 2004

Percentage 
Under 18

Percentage 
18-65

Percentage 
Over 65

Table XVII
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Elections:
Registered voters in Multnomah County: Total

June 30, 2000 341,210        
June 30, 2001 365,596        
June 30, 2002 356,211        
May 20, 2003 363,841        
May 18, 2004 363,589        
Percentage decrease from 2002 to 2003 -0.1%

Votes cast last general election (November 5, 2002) 245,238        
Percent of registered voters voting 67.5%

Economics:
Property valuations:

Income level for a family of four, census years in which data is available: Median (family)
1960 6,872$          
1970 10,463          
1980 20,250          
1990 38,723          
1995 34,533          
2000 51,118          

Source data:
Election Information per Multnomah County Elections Division
Demographic and general information per School District No. 1, Multnomah County, Budget Department.
Population and income information per Portland State University, Population Research Center.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1, MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

Miscellaneous Statistics, continued
June 30, 2004

Beginning July 1, 1997 property taxes were based on an assessed value.  Assessed value is defined 
as the lower of "maximum assessed value" or "real market value".  For the 1997-1998 tax year, 
"maximum assessed value" was set at the 1995-1996 real market value, less 10 percent.

Table XVII
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